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DEFINITIONS
B=

In this annual report, unless the
context otherwise requires, the
following expressions shall have
the following meanings:

“2022 AGM”
[TE-—FRERAFRT]

“AGM”
[RRBFAEZ]

“Angame”

[Angame |

“ARPPU”

[ARPPU

“Articles”
[AREZ=F2 48]

“Audit Committee”
[BEZZEE ]

“Board Committees”

[EFZBg)

“Board of Directors” or “Board

===

“BVI”
[HEELHS ]

“Beijing You Lai”

[b s

ERFEHRA - BXEZBREIN  TIFAEEBEUTERE

the AGM to be held on June 21, 2022
ARAFER B —EA-+—BETHREREARS

annual general meeting of the Company

ARAFHBRBFRE

Angame Inc., a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability on July 5, 2005,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
—FR_ZERFLARREEBELRSTMRINERARF - BARRFE

Angame Inc. "

2 EMBLRR

average revenue per month per paying user, which represents our revenue recognized
for a particular game, a particular type of games or all of our games, as applicable, in the
period divided by the number of paying users of the game, the type of games or all of our
games, as applicable, in such period
BENERFERATHRA - H—FEE - —REESERMMEEE (NER) R —ERAMAMR
TR - BRAZREERL - BB M BB (ER) N BRAn N ERFEE

the memorandum and articles of association of the Company as amended from time to
time
KR AEEDRAE RT AR A = 12 A48 K2 48 A

the audit committee of the Board
ExgBTERZES

the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
EREZET FWZEGRIEREES

the board of Directors of the Company
ZN/NSIE: =]

British Virgin Islands
HERLHS

Beijing You Lai Information Technology Company Limited* (it RiE#E 8 RHL AR A F), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability on November 14, 2014, which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
ERBEFEEREBRAR  — KR ZE—NF+—ATHEBEFRBEKZHERART + BEAR
AMEEEEWE AT
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DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B (&)

“Beijing You Tang”

b |

“CG Code” or “Code”

[ EATAS 8]

“China” or “PRC”

[FE )

“Company”, “our Company”, “Digital

n o« » o«

Hollywood”, “Group”, “our Group”,

« n o«

we”, “our” or “us”

[ARNA - [ERES ] - [AREH ]I

Ez 45N

“Controlling Shareholder(s)

[ R AR ]

“‘COVID-19 Outbreak”
[COVID-19%15

“Director(s)

[E%]

“FY2020”
[T -_THBFEE]

“FY2021’
[ZZE=—BRFE]

Beijing You Tang Information Technology Company Limited* (It R#EE{EERHEER L
A]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on July 17, 2015, which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EREZEEMBRERAR  — KR ZT—AFtAT+HHAERBKINERDR - AERRQH
BfE 2 E B A A

the “Corporate Governance Code” as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

LR BT ERHIUAT R A [ (R E AT

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region
of the PRC and Taiwan

hEARANE - ERAFREMBIRANE - TREEE  RFENTRERSE

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited (#2%E &)5£E AR A E)*), a company incorporated
under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on November 24, 2014 and
except where the context indicated otherwise (1) our subsidiaries and (2) with respect to
the period before our Company became the holding company of our present subsidiaries,
the business operated by our present subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
predecessors

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited 3 B B)EEBRAF) — KR _T—NF+—A=
THAEREFEREEETMRIMNERLATE - UERBRXESEMEN - (1YEMOHERE R
Q)BERERRKAREMBEARIMNZERARANBENE - aRAMB AR (RIERME)
HAI 5 RRPMEENER

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules and unless the context requires
otherwise, refers to Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin, Mr. HUANG Guozhan, Mr. HUANG
Degiang, LYF Digital Holdings Limited, Angel Age Limited, LXT Digital Holdings Limited
and HDQ Digital Holdings Limited

BERLTRAUMETEORE  BXESEMEN  BERELE  REHFXL  FBEES
4 - H{E58 5 A - LYF Digital Holdings Limited * Angel Age Limited + LXT Digital Holdings
Limited }2HDQ Digital Holdings Limited

the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
FAEMRREHAEE

the director(s) of the Company or any one of them

ARREELENERN—REE

the year ended December 31, 2020
He-_ T - ZF+_A=+—HItFE

the year ended December 31, 2021
HE-_Z-—+-A=+—HULEE
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DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B= (&)

“Guangzhou SYND”

[EM PR AR

“Guangzhou You Lai”

[ 38 3 )

“Guangzhou ZYK”

[EINZmeE ]

“HK$” or “Hong Kong Dollars”

8]

“Hollywood BVI”

[ Hollywood BVI]

“Hollywood HK”

[Hollywood HK |

“Hong Kong”

(&%)

‘HTML5”

[HTML5 |

“IFRS”
[ BIFR B 5 22 A |

Guangzhou Suiyue Niandai Software Technology Company Limited* (/1 msx A FER &M
EHEZHBR A R]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on June 12, 2010,
which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
BNTHRAFREEREERAT  — KR _E—ZF AT _BEFEKINERAR - A
AARNEE2EME AR

Guangzhou You Lai Information Technology Company Limited* (B # %= SR ERE A
A]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on May 13, 2015, which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BMNEREEREARAF  — KRR ZE—AFREAT=AEFEKINERAR + AAAA
WEZEZEWNE AR

Guangzhou Zhang Ying Kong Information Technology Company Limited* (Bl £miEE 5
EHEZHBR A R]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on March 6, 2013,
which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BMNERZEEREARAR  —RR T =F=ANBEHFBEKINERAIF - AEQH
WEZEZEWNE AR

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

EREEERET

Digital Hollywood International Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on November 25, 2014, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Digital Hollywood International Limited * — RN _Z—NE+— AT HHELABRZHS
MK BERAR - BERARINZEMNE AR

Game Hollywood Hong Kong Limited, a company established in Hong Kong with limited
liability on December 5, 2014, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

Game Hollywood Hong Kong Limited - —XR_ZT—NF+ AR AEEBKRIMNER A
A BRARFNEEZENB AR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBRFRITHER

hypertext markup language 5, the fifth and current major version of the hypertext markup
language standard; used for structuring and presenting content on web pages and for
creating web applications

EOMBYFRLES  BXFELESFRENEDREBATNEERAS  AREHE LB
REHRAE - RAEEEERET

International Financial Reporting Standards

B B 765 R o 2R R
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DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B (&)

‘IPO”
[ERABEE
“JV Partner”
[REBH]

“Listing”
[ £

“Listing Date”
[ E EE]
“Listing Rules”

[ E#R 8]

“‘MAUs”

[§AERAF

“Model Code”
[1Z 257 Al

“Nomination Committee”

et ZEg ]
“‘Now To Play Game”

[Now To Play Game]

“Now To Play Game (Spain)”

[Now To Play Game (FaHIZF) |

the initial public offering of the Company, having become unconditional in all aspects on
December 15, 2017
ERFEEAEGEER  ARAFAR Bt F A THRETHNERARHEES

Guangzhou Red Circle Information Technology Company Limited* (/N 4L B SR AR
7x|]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability
BMAEEEREERAR  —RRFREKAERAE

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
P&tn TERE A2 P AR BT

December 15, 2017, on which the Shares were listed and from which dealings therein
were permitted to take place on the Stock Exchange

TR+ F+-A+HA - AROREBRM LT REEENBERTETESN B S

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended from
time to time)
B AP E R A (R ERHERT)

monthly active users, which refers to the number of individuals who login to a particular
game in the relevant calendar month; average MAUs for a particular period is the average
of the active users in each month during that period

BRAERAFPE  EEFMEANERSEEEOAZ  NMEEHENTOERERAPEE
ZEEE ARERAP T

the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRAIBERTATE [ T RITAEEEITES R S MNEESTA ]

the nomination committee of the Board
EESBRTIREEES

Now To Play Game Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on
March 29, 2011, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Now To Play Game Limited - XA -E——F=A -+ N BEBBAMKINBRAR
RERBNEEZEME LR

Now To Play Game Sucursal En Espafia, a branch office established in Spain on July 24,
2014 by Now To Play Game, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Now To Play Game Sucursal En Espafia * —ZXHNow To Play GameiX —Z — &+ A =
TOBRERT RN D B - RARROEEZEZENB AR
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DEFINITIONS (Continued)

B= (&)

“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”
[ERRRESEERET S

“Prospectus”

[ T2 ]

“Qianhai Huanjing”

(R84 ]
“Remuneration Committee”
[FEEE ]

“RMB”
[AR¥]

“SDK”

[SDK]

“SFO”
[ 787 & R 156 )

“Share(s)”
[tn |

“Shareholder(s)”
A5 |

“Shenzhen 7Road”

RYIELAE ]

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on May 27, 2017
ARARZB—HFHA =+ HB GRS ERRET S

the prospectus of the Company dated December 5, 2017
ARBABPA-ZT—+F+-ALRNBRERE

Shenzhen Qianhai Huanjing Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (FIITATELBMERRER
X 7]), a company established in the PRC on July 12, 2015, one of our game developer
partners and a fellow subsidiary of 7Road Holdings, a substantial shareholder of the
Company

RYNTRNE A RBEBRAERAR  —ZR_E—AF AT ZBETEKIZHANA - BEA
BB EREH 2 - RELREERNBRNBAR  ARARFNEIERE

the remuneration committee of the Board

ExgRETHFMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
PEUEEEBARE

software development kit, typically a set of software development tools that allows the
creation of applications for a certain software package, software framework, hardware
platform, computer system, video game console, operating system, or similar development
platform

PHREEE  —MRA—ERNURETA USRS EEM4e MEESE  BHTE SRR
o MEBEEH - RERGREUNHETERIEMARER

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEEPIESTIEEZ S LB - K ARHER] ~ s A B 5 &k

ordinary share(s) of US$0.001 each in the share capital of the Company
RABRAHFARE(EO0.001 5= 7T H) & AR

holder(s) of Shares
LSHESEEPN

Shenzhen 7Road Technology Co., Ltd.* (RYIE-XKERHEHBRAE), a company
established in the PRC on January 22, 2008, one of our game developer partners and a
fellow subsidiary of 7Road Holdings, a substantial shareholder of the Company
FRYBLREMBARLA  —FZR _ZEN\F-A- T - HERBEKRINLA - BRIk
BREEBH 2 —RBELRNEBERORREMB AR  RARRNEZRR
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DEFINITIONS (Continued)
B3 (5)

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ B8 32 P | BERBMARGAERAT

“U.S. Dollars”, “USD” or “US$” United States Dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

EH EEDEFEWET

“VR” virtual reality, a computer technology that uses certain equipment to generate realistic

images, sounds and other sensations that simulate a user’s physical presence in a virtual
or imaginary environment

[EHE SR ERER EAETREREREREREREINERIIENRED  EMELZEEY
& BENEMEE 2 B

“7Road” 7Road Holdings and its fellow subsidiaries

[E+KiE] FELRETERRER ZHE AT

“7Road Holdings” 7Road Holdings Limited (5t K:EERBRAF*), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on September 6, 2017, a substantial shareholder of the
Company

[ REER] FLREEZERARLAA  — KR _E—tFNANBERSESIMKXINEGRAR - BAA
AN EERR

“%” per cent.

(%] Bt

*  For identification purposes only * EHEE)
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CORPORATE PROFILE
NEEFR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. LU Yuanfeng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. HUANG Guozhan
Mr. HUANG Degiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor CHAU Chi Wai, Wilton (appointed with effect from June 2, 2021)

Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum (retired with effect from June 2, 2021)
Mr. LI Yi Wen
Mr. LU Qibo

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Professor CHAU Chi Wai, Wilton (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from June 2, 2021)
Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum (retired with effect from June 2, 2021)
Mr. LI Yi Wen
Mr. LU Qibo

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LI Yi Wen (Chairman)

Mr. LU Yuanfeng

Mr. LU Qibo

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LU Yuanfeng (Chairman)

Mr. LI Yi Wen

Mr. LU Qibo

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. FOK Po Yi (resigned with effect from February 2, 2021)

Mr. WONG Wai Chiu (appointed with effect from February 2, 2021)
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LU Yuanfeng
Ms. FOK Po Yi (resigned with effect from February 2, 2021)
Mr. WONG Wai Chiu (appointed with effect from February 2, 2021)
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CORPORATE PROFILE (Continued)
ARER (&)

AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited

23/F, Tower 2, Enterprise Square Five, 38 Wang Chiu Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

2nd Floor, No. 368 Jiang Nan Da Dao (South)
Haizhu District

Guangzhou

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

11/F, Tai Sang Bank Building
784 Nathan Road

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
2/F, 673 Nathan Road

Mong Kok, Kowloon

Hong Kong

BBVA Compass Bank
Placa de Tetuan, 26
08010, Barcelona
Spain

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER

P.C. Woo & Co.
12th Floor, Prince’s Building
Central Hong Kong

B

HELEG R EBAERAR
BB

NENEE
RIRBI8FR I EIS T 22318

AN EE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

RBRPEEEEF R

&

BEM T

BIRE

TLF KB 36858 =8

BERTEERMH

)

B
FHBT845
ANERITRE1E

FEAERRIT
B LOERRIT
&t

FUBERE f5
FSE673M21E

BBVA Compass Bank
Placa de Tetuan, 26
08010, Barcelona
Spain

EREERER
a2 EMEB
BB
KFRE121E

PEHREBHEEGRART T —FFIR @



CORPORATE PROFILE (Continued)
ARIEFR (&)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

Stock Code: 2022

WEBSITE

www.gamehollywood.com/company/

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021

FERODBFERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

EBROVBFERSE
EEFEHFELBRAT

BB

T

ERKREFR1835

AR 541E

IR A L8R

et 5% - 2022

48 A

www.gamehollywood.com/company/



MILESTONES
EEw

Year Events

F15 X0

2010 . Our founders became the beneficial shareholders of our first operating entity, Guangzhou SYND

—T-TF o BAMAIRAKARMEREEERENRAFRNEZRE

2011 . The first overseas subsidiary was established to develop overseas operation

T o KUBE-RBINERRIAERGINET

2012 . Launched multiplayer web game Wartune with an exclusive license for overseas publishing in English-
speaking markets

—E—C—F « BEMEMRBEBEEWartune - WA ERETISHETBINEITRE

2013 . We were granted the “Facebook’s Excellent Game-Advertiser Award”

—T-=F « BB Facebook B F e EiE S £ K2

. Wartune was granted the “Facebook Staff Favorites Recognition”
« Wartune % [ Facebook B T & & & /8 5% |

. Launched Stallion Race on Facebook

. A Facebook# i Stallion Race

. We were granted the “Best Overseas Publisher Award” by 7Road

 BMRERNELRERE [ RETINEREITAAE]

2014 . Established Now To Play Game (Spain) as our liaison office in Europe

—T—ME «  BK3iZNow To Play Game(Fa ¥t 7T ) {E BB AFIERBUM BB A& B F R

2015 . Launched several successful casual shooting games, including a special edition featuring sports figures
and scenes licensed from Barcelona Football Club

“E—AF « EMBUERDHARESTEER  BEMADEES ERSEENEBEAYN SRR

2016 . Launched our cross-platform Wing SDK

S NGS «  EMETEWing SDK

. Entered into the VR market with our investment in a VR studio in China

- BBRETE-RERERIUERR EEERERMS

2017 . Launched Lord of Star, a mobile game in cross-platform format on Gameroom
—T—+F « M Gameroom# M5 T &&= B FHIERILord of Star

. Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 2022) on December 15, 2017
o BORZZ—tFTZATHAEBRMER LT (RHRE : 2022)

PEHREBHEEGRART T —FFIR @



MILESTONES (Continued)

2w ()

Year Events
F15 X0
2018 . French, German, Polish and Turkish versions of Dragon Awaken were launched successively, fully
penetrating into the European market
—T—)\F «  Dragon Awaken®) ;=B ~ (26 B - THHRAREE LR 2EEFEENTS
. Robot Tactics, the strategic mobile game featuring anime graphics, was launched on and featured by
Google Play in more than 100 countries and regions around the world
o BIETMEHIEN CRJTHR SRS F 52 8% B E0 15 Google PlayfE 2 B8 100 18 Bl K M & 8 HE B
. Digital Hollywood was awarded the 6th Jincha Award for 2018 Best Mobile Publisher
- PBREHREENESRE T \REBHEHETE]
. Be elected as the vice-president of the Gaming Industry Association Guangzhou Branch
 EBEBENTBETEDERISREM
. Dragon Awaken was awarded “2018 Zhuoer Award for Top 10 Most Popular Windows Games” in 2018
Globe Windows Game Conference
«  Dragon Awaken®&GWGCEHHEEHRE —_T— \FREEE [ T — \FEERRMUEAME T AHZI IR
2019 . A number of HTML5 games launched for global distribution
—E-NEF o HEEIREITEZHHTMLEEE
2020 . Completed the technical replacement of flash to HTML5 and clients.
—ToTHF o SEAREflashBZEHTMLS k& P i # Rl E &
. Distribute HTML5-based products in multi-terminal, multi-platform, and multilingual to meet the game
needs of global users in different scenarios.
 B1ZW - ZTARZBSHHIMLSER - AR EAPETRBRMERFK
2021 . Conduct several salons on the official game developer event of Gamescom
—TE- 4 «  fEGamescomHIE T ¥R E R EHTRE TEEDH

@ Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue for FY2021 amounted to approximately US$12.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 27% from approximately
US$17.6 million recorded in FY2020.

Gross profit for FY2021 amounted to approximately US$5.4 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 41% from approximately
US$9.2 million recorded in FY2020.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for FY2021 amounted to
approximately US$3.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately
6% from approximately US$3.6 million recorded in FY2020.

Non-IFRS adjusted loss attributable to owners of the Company" for
FY2021 amounted to approximately US$3.3 million, representing an
increase of approximately 10% from approximately US$3.0 million
recorded in FY2020.

Ul To supplement our consolidated financial statements which are presented
in accordance with IFRS, we also use non-IFRS adjusted (loss)/profit
attributable to owners of the Company as an additional financial measure
to evaluate our financial performance by eliminating the impact of items
that we do not consider indicative of the performance of our business. Our
non-IFRS adjusted (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company was
derived from our (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company for the

year excluding share-based compensation and listing expenses.

R -HMBRFENBALNAR128BEET B
TECTHMRFEHESHNN17T6ASETL MEY
27% °

—E--UREEMNEMNNASAAERT B
Z_THBFEHENN9.2BEET THL41% -

—E-HBEEARBAEEARGEERNRI.4
BEXT B_Z_THRFEHENN36HE
KR #I6% °

—T - HRTRAR AR AR FERY R
SRAEHEBAOORIIEBET  R-FT
BT SRS #9103, 0 B B TTHINAI10% -

m RHARPVR IR BRI B &R 208 01875
ik - HAAIIE R IERIBR B TS MRS AR RS T EE (S
18), S FERBEINNEBEITE - BILEBREMR
RUBPNEBRRITBEZEENREZFE
ARHE R PIOF S E4E - RPN ARREE AR
HIER RSB REERLHE (BR),EF IR
BRMOADAEEARME (BB SZFFES
H MAREARN SERMNH R EHRX -

T —FFR @

EREHEEBRL



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

PR

For the year ended December 31,

BEt+t-ZA=+t—-HLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—tF —FT-)N\F T-AF —T-TF ZBZ-F
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$’000
FET FET F=T FET FER
Revenue @N 28,621 24,161 17,919 17,550 12,753
Gross profit E A 15,926 13,319 8,397 9,160 5,413
Profit/(Loss) before income tax TS i), (&i8) 3,982 2,008 (5,603) (3,439) (3,191)
Income tax expense Frisfimx 2,255 1,071 159 200 177
Profit/(Loss) for the year FRER(BE) 1,727 937 (5,762) (3,639) (3,368)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: LA TFEMRER],(EE) :
Owners of the Company RAREER A 1,727 937 (5,762) (3,639) (3,368)
Non-Controlling interests FEPERR S - - - - -
Non-IFRS adjusted RNENHEB A B IEBIER
profit/(loss) attributable BT RS AR AT FA
to owners of the Company wH S (EE) 6,516 3,570 (4,184) (2,986) (3,301)
As at December 31,
Rt+t=A=+-—8H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—+tF —F-)N\F —T-NF —T-FTF ZBZ-F
Us$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 UsS$’000 Us$’000
FET TET FET FET FERT
Total assets WEE 63,830 63,731 59,336 56,272 52,001
Total liabilities FER=Ri 13,767 10,454 12,060 11,167 10,807
Equity attributable to the RABHEE AEIEER
owners of the company 50,063 53,277 47,276 45,105 41,194

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE|E

Chairman: Mr. LU Yuanfeng
T BRI

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board and the management of Digital Hollywood
Interactive Limited, | am pleased to present to you the annual report of

the Company and its subsidiaries for FY2021.

OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP

We are a leading global online game publisher for China-based game
developers, with fast-growing in-house development capabilities for
mobile games. Our mission is to bring engaging, differentiated gameplay
experience to users across languages, cultures and borders. We offer
compelling value proposition to game developers by helping them
penetrate the international markets with one-stop solutions, including
game redesign, optimization, marketing, distribution, monetization,

payment support and other user-related services.

DR AR

AANERREXREHEEBRAFNEFERERE
- mAm BMEEARRKEMBAR T
—HBFENFR -

1 5

B AT ENEEFAEHREAREN2IRE
EWBERBETH  HRRIERNFRERS T
WHEEEE S - HPIME B EHS ARAB A~
BERBTHREZEE  BXERBEEINAPL - &
FIA—uE BV BRIR TS 5= (BB E#RET - B - 17
B BT B MNPSOS REMEEREFEN
RB)EDBEETHZERRTS - BEG KR
AWs| WEESRE -

PEHREBHEEGRART T —FFIR @



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
ERERE ()

We began our business as an international web game publisher and
grew quickly to become the leading web game publisher. Besides, we
strategically expanded our business focuses to develop and launch
mobile games by enhancing in-house development capabilities to capture
the market opportunity from the fast-growing smartphone users, and our
mobile games achieved considerable success in a number of regional
markets.

In recent years, the Group has begun to deepen the business of HTML5
multiplayer games and established a self-developed HTML5 game
platform. As such, the Group has the technical capability to achieve the
data exchange between personal computers and mobile terminals, and
embarked to launch a variety of HTML5 games of different types.

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

As of December 31, 2021, we launched and operated 45 games including
web games, mobile games and HTML5 games over the world. 13 of such
games were self-developed games, accounting for 28.9% of the total
number of games launched and operated.

As of December 31, 2021, calculating based on IP addresses we
recorded, we had cumulative registered users of approximately 86.6
million located in over 200 countries and regions.

As of December 31, 2021, our average MAUs for online games were
more than 0.4 million.

In 2021, we launched 11 HTML5 games and took advantage of our
global distribution network in the HTML5 game markets. We will continue
deepen our involvement in the HTML5 game distribution markets and
cooperate closely with our outstanding business partners in research
and development, distribution and promotion in the global HTML5 field,
vigorously enlarge our market shares in emerging markets for HTML5
games and further strengthen our leading position in overseas distribution.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP

Revenue of the Group for FY2021 amounted to approximately US$12.8
million, representing a decrease of approximately 27% from approximately
US$17.6 million for FY2020. The decline in revenue was mainly due to
the offline of certain games of the group. Despite market volatility, the
Group actively responded to the impact of market changes, and continued
to improve the layout of the HTML5 games.

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP

Looking forward, on the basis of its overseas operation and development
in the past years, the Group will continue to leverage its advantage
on overseas publishing in order to consolidate the existing and future
partnerships, integrate games from various co-developers and bring
more excellent products to users. In the future, the Group will actively
cooperate with more game incubator organizations to gradually build
a traffic pool for the Group’s reserve projects. Meanwhile, through
integrating the exchange and cooperation model formed during the
pandemic in the past two years, the Group will use a flexible and mature
online model to actively participate in various large-scale exhibitions such
as GameBCN and ChinaJoy’s official cooperation activities.

The Group is actively building a GHG game platform (gamehollywood.com)
to meet the demands of users. By accessing various games to the
platform, launching of the platform and its operation, it can satisfy the
users’ needs for cross-terminal use on mobile terminals and PC terminals.
Meanwhile, the construction of the platform will provide users with more
products and experiences and enhance the loyalty of users on the
platform.

The Group will persist to optimize and update existing game products,
increase investment, and continuously launch iterative versions to elevate
and enrich the game experience of players, as well as extend the life
cycle of game products to stabilize the Group’s income. Constantly relying
on the know-how of the professional marketing and promotion team,
experienced experts and management team and resources including
existing game players, the Group will capitalize on this opportunity to
strengthen the control of distribution channels, reduce the dependence on
game license operators, and enhance its comprehensive competitiveness
and anti-risk ability by integrating a variety of resources, so as to advance
the Group’s position in the industry.
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In addition, the Group plans to further strengthen cooperation with the
R&D team in the future, deeply explore the game preferences of players,
and use HTML5 technology and/or other new technologies to develop
better web-based game products, so as to maintain its strength in web
game operations. We will expand overseas markets by cooperating with
a number of well-known third-party game distribution channels across
the globe, in order to promote our games to more potential regions and
districts, continuously consolidate our position in major global markets
and elevate our competitiveness to a higher level. The Group will actively
seek cooperation opportunities that can generate synergies to cope with
the possible impact of the increasingly competitive industry environment
and changing industry policies.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the
management of the Group and all our staff for their hard work over the
past year. In particular, | would like to express our thankfulness to Ms.
Imma LING Kit-sum who retired her position as the independent non-
executive Director. While our Company believes there will be no adverse
impact to be felt by our Group following her retirement, we appreciate
the valuable service provided by Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum to the Board
during her tenure. | would also like to extend my sincere gratitude to our
Shareholders, business partners and stakeholders for their continued
support.

LU Yuanfeng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, March 28, 2022
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

§§§§Zirfhliﬁ=ﬂﬂﬁgf§1Q'

Below are the brief profiles of the current Directors and senior NTAAESERTESRaREEENBEEL -

management of the Group.

DIRECTORS 5=

The Board currently comprises six Directors, of which three are executive EXeRRAALEFAN  BE-2ITEER
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. The —HEBUFNITES c TR EBREFHNER -

following table sets forth information regarding the Directors.

Name Age Position

%& Fie B

Date of Appointment as
Director

BEZERESHWAY

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. LU Yuanfeng 42 Chairman, executive Director and
chief executive officer

e 42 FF BOESEKEFATE

Mr. HUANG Guozhan 42  Executive Director and chief
operating officer

=mEE KA 42 HOTEEREFEZE

Mr. HUANG Degiang 48 Executive Director and chief
technology officer

| L 48 BITEENARRMNE

Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHITES

Professor CHAU Chi Wai, Wilton 60 Independent non-executive Director

AEEHE 60 BUIFMITES

Mr. LI Yi Wen 50 Independent non-executive Director

FRE 50 BUIFBMITESE

Mr. LU Qibo 54 Independent non-executive Director

& RUK 52 4 54 BUIFBITES

November 24, 2014

—E-EF+—AZ+HmA
November 2, 2015

—ET-AF+—A=H
June 28, 2017

—ET—+FRA=ZF+NH

June 2, 2021
—E-_—F,"AZH
November 24, 2017
—tF+—HA=+mA
October 3, 2019
—NF+A=H
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Yuanfeng, aged 42, is an executive Director, our chief executive
officer and the chairman of the Board. Mr. LU has overall responsibilities
for strategic planning and positioning and management of the Group. Mr.
LU founded our Group in June 2010 and was appointed as an executive
Director on November 24, 2014. He also serves as a director of Angame,
Hollywood BVI, Hollywood HK and Guangzhou You Lai.

Mr. LU has over 19 years of experience in the game industry.

Prior to founding our Group, Mr. LU founded Guangzhou Blue Power
Digital Technology Company Limited (“Guangzhou Blue Power”) which
is primarily engaged in software development in May 2001 and served as
its chief executive officer from 2004 to January 2011, mainly responsible
for development, publication and operation of various games. From June
2001 to February 2004, Mr. LU served in various positions up to the chief
editor of the game channel at 21cn.com operated by 21CN Corporation
Limited which is primarily engaged in the provision of information
technology services.

Mr. LU graduated from Guangdong University of Technology with a
bachelor degree in architectural engineering on June 30, 2001.

Mr. HUANG Guozhan, aged 42, is an executive Director and our chief
operating officer. Mr. HUANG oversees the strategic planning and
development for the game projects, and he is also responsible for the
operation and marketing of the Group. Mr. HUANG joined our Group in
June 2010 and was appointed as an executive Director on November 2,
2015. He also serves as a director of Now To Play Game, Beijing You
Tang, Guangzhou SYND and Beijing You Lai.

Mr. HUANG has over 14 years of experience in the game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. HUANG served as a video game operation
and planning officer at Guangzhou Blue Power from January 2006 to
January 2011. From February 2003 to January 2006, he served as
a radio host at Guangzhou Sheng Se Chuan Bo Entertainment and
Production Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in installation services of
stage lighting and audio equipment and cultural communication, mainly
responsible for hosting and planning radio programs.

Mr. HUANG graduated from Guangdong University of Technology with
a bachelor degree in architectural engineering on June 30, 2002. Mr.
HUANG obtained a certificate as a host issued by the State Administration
of Radio, Film and Television on February 12, 2005.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Mr. HUANG Degqgiang, aged 48, is an executive Director and our chief
technology officer. Mr. HUANG is responsible for developing information
technology and operation and maintenance of the Company. Mr. HUANG
joined our Group in June 2010 and was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief technology officer on June 28, 2017.

Mr. HUANG has over 14 years of experience in the game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. HUANG served as the manager of the
technology department of Guangzhou Blue Power from October 2004 to
January 2011.

Mr. HUANG graduated from Guangdong Financial and Trade Cadre
Academy with a college degree in financial management in July 1997.
He was enrolled in Aptech Certified Computer Professional, an IT career
program taught by Aptech Beida Jade Bird, from December 2001 to June
2003. Mr. HUANG obtained a national certificate as an intermediate
programmer and a national certificate as a software engineer in
December 2002 and June 2003, respectively, both issued by the Ministry
of Labor and Social Security of the PRC (now known as the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC). In August 2003, he
was also certified as a Sun Certified Programmer by Sun Microsystems,
Inc.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor CHAU Chi Wai, Wilton, aged 60, is the proposed independent
non-executive director of the Company.

Professor CHAU has over 35 years of experience in venture development
and investment. Professor CHAU has led a number of projects in the
Asia-Pacific region and has extensive experience in investment on
technology companies. He has served in Temasek, a venture capital fund
in Singapore, mainly responsible for investment business in the North
Asia Region and concurrently served as vice chairman or director for a
number of technology companies; and has also served as independent
director and member of audit committee of various state-owned
enterprises in China. Currently he is the founding chairman of the Pan-
Asia Venture Development Platform (PAVD) and a vice chairman of the
Hong Kong Biotechnology Organization (HKBio). In addition, he is on the
board of several technology ventures and listed companies, including
Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited (2327.HK), a health
care medical operator, where he is acting as an independent director and
the chairman of the audit committee.

In the academic area, Professor CHAU is a Professor of Practice in
Entrepreneurship in the Business School, the Chinese University of
Hong Kong (CUHK), and an Adjunct Professor in the Shenzhen Finance
Institute, developing and teaching MBM, MBA, and EMBA courses
covering topics of new venture creation, entrepreneurship, venture capital
and private equity and conducting study trips to Singapore, Malaysia and
Taiwan. Under his leadership, PAVD also cooperates with postgraduate
programs of several universities, including the Chinese University of
Hong Kong (Shenzhen), the Singapore Management University and
the National Taiwan University of Science and Technology, to provide
entrepreneurship training and help existing technology ventures or SMEs
develop their own commercialization program and fundraising strategy in
Asia. Professor CHAU was also an Adjunct Professor in the Department
of Strategy and Policy at the Business School of the National University
of Singapore, teaching MBA courses covering topics of technology
innovation and venture capital.

Professor CHAU holds a bachelor’s degree in applied mathematics,
a bachelor’'s degree in law and a master’s and doctorate degree in
business administration. He is also a member the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants.
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Mr. LI Yi Wen, aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. LI
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on November
24, 2017.

Mr. LI has over 14 years of experience in the information technology
industry.

Mr. LI has served as a director of Aleo BME, Inc. which is primarily
engaged in biotechnology research and development since January
2016. He served as a director of Ningbo Lehui International Engineering
Equipment Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in development,
manufacturing of industrial equipment from March 2016 to November
2018. From January 2011 to October 2013, he also served as a
director, chief financial supervisor and secretary of the board at Guiyang
Longmaster Information & Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300288) which is primarily
engaged in wireless games and Internet medical service. He served as
the general manager of Sina Net Technology (China) Co., Ltd. which is
primarily engaged in wireless games and deputy manager of Guangzhou
Xunlong Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in wireless
games from October 2002 to February 2004 and June 2001 to October

2002, respectively.

Mr. LU Qibo, aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. LU
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on October 3,
2019.

Mr. LU has over 23 years of experience in media and internet industry.

Mr. LU served as the chief executive officer of Guangdong Senlong Group
from May 2018 to December 2018. From 2014 to 2017, Mr. LU worked
as the president of KUFM of Guangzhou Kugou Computer Technology
Co., Ltd.,
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: TME). Tencent

a subsidiary of Tencent Music Entertainment Group, which

Music Entertainment Group is a subsidiary of Tencent Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
700). Mr. LU founded Shengse Chuanbo Inc. in 1997 and served as its
chief executive officer and an executive director from 1997 to 2010. Mr.
LU served as an anchorman in Guangdong People’s Radio Station from
1989 to 1995.

Mr. LU completed his junior college study at South China Normal
University in July 1989.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LU Yuanfeng, see the above “Executive Directors” for details.
Mr. HUANG Guozhan, see the above “Executive Directors” for details.
Mr. HUANG Degiang, see the above “Executive Directors” for details.

Mr. LIU Jiahua, aged 41, joined our Group as our chief financial officer
on March 21, 2014. He is primarily responsible for the investment, the
legal affairs and the overall management of the finance of our Group. He
has served as the chief financial officer since March 2014.

Mr. LIU has over 18 years of experience in the field of financial
management.

Mr. LIU served as the finance controller at Moonbasa E-commerce Group
which is primarily engaged in the online sales of women apparels from
September 2010 to March 2014. From April 2009 to August 2010, he
served as a financial director at China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd. which
is primarily engaged in pharmaceutical retail, a company previously listed
on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: NPD). From November
2004 to February 2009, Mr. LIU served in PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian LLP.

Mr. LIU graduated from Sun Yat-sen University with a bachelor degree in
international finance on June 24, 2003.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021

I_Jm& B EEJE

BERESLE - HBEREXIHTES] -
EEESELE  FRBRLXI#HTEE] -
EEBALE FBRRLXIWTEE]-
BIEERE M R E-NF=A-+—RAMN

AFEHETERBE - BREZEEAEENK
B ARASHRERYBERE - WA T -NF
ZAREFERUBE -

BN MIEE IR A B B8 F &L -

BAEAER T ZFNAAZTNF=ZAREE
DEFEBER (T 2UFH EHEERE)EE
MiGRE RN _TENFUAE-_T-ZF/)\A -

BERAPEEBEEREHREEFRAR (—RERE
WEFZZMEmH LR (RHASE NPD) - X2
REERTE)ETYBEE - R -_TTMF+—
RE-ZZNF A BIEERNEEKEP R
b =8 74 P (E B8 ©

BRAER_ZEZ=ZF XA -_THRAZERP X
B ESEReRS TR -



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEREAEEEER (H)

Mr. SHI Lijia, aged 38, joined our Group as a vice president on August
17, 2015. He is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
research and development of the Group.

Mr. SHI has over 11 years of experience in the game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. SHI served as the game producer in certain
medium and large companies which are researching and developing
game products from March 2010 to April 2015, mainly responsible for
game development and general administration.

Mr. SHI graduated from Lanzhou University with a bachelor degree in
information and computing sciences in 2007.

Mr. CHEN Yangzhao, aged 44, was appointed as our vice president on
July 1, 2015. He is primarily responsible for the management of Platform
Research and Development System and Operations Platform System of
our Group.

Mr. CHEN has over 19 years of experience in technology and software
engineering of game industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. CHEN served as the technology manager
of Guangzhou Tianya Internet Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily
engaged in software development from January 2009 to March 2010. He
served from a platform development team member to a senior developer
at Beijing Bokee Net Information Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily
engaged in technology service from October 2005 to November 2008. He
served as the senior software engineer at Guangzhou Ruixun Computer
Technology Co., Ltd. which is primarily engaged in development and
manufacture of computers’ hardware and software from September
2002. He briefly served as a software engineer at Asiainfo Technologies
(China) Inc.,
primarily engaged in development of network system from April 2002. Mr.
CHEN started his career in July 2001 with Guangdong Xiantong Digital
Technology Co., Ltd. as a software engineer.

a Nasdag-listed company (stock code: ASIA) which is

Mr. CHEN graduated from South China University of Technology with a
bachelor degree in computer science and technology on July 1, 2001.

AYREE 385 RZE—HF/\A+HEHMA
AEBEETHEE FEIEABEARENERHR
B -

AREEBRITERBB 1 FER
RIMAREER - AXER_T-—TF=AZ_F

—AFMOAEFECEERERMENE THEARL
NEIBBREIEA - AXRETEGEBEIME N —
MRITHERE -

RAER =TT
BB B o

FRENBTIMAR - BiE 885

LA —HEZRE
ES 9S8

BREEREL @ 445 W_T—
RABHE BEXEBEAKBENTAME
ETERGNERE -

BRI AR BB R R B TAZIT R B B9 F K5

MAREER - REENR-_ZTNF-HAEC
TEZAREE M%fﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁ@ T(E%%
EMHHTNORMERE - FR_FZTRF+AE
TEZNFH-AREERBERESRERA
A (EERERMRYE) -2 RFAEMNF A FHEH
BSKE - B —TF - FNAREEEMEAG
ERMBRERAR(EEREREREES TR
EEM) SR TIEM - e — 2T -FMA
EEEEEESEMR(PE)BERAF (—HKMH
Er LA (RO ASIA) - TEREMEH
MEF)NMTIZM - REENR -_ZTZE-F LA
FIgHBELE  EEMIZHBREARARE
EE M TA2AD -

BAER ST —FLtA—HEXEREFEIK
2 EEERM BB TS -

EREHEEBRL

T —FFR @



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

2021 was a challenging year for many businesses around the world.
Our HTML5 games have maintained steady growth throughout FY2021,
however, as competition in the global game industry remained intense
and challenging due to market competition, government regulation and
the ongoing global pandemic, the overall revenue declined as compared
to the corresponding period of the previous year. Revenue of the Group
for FY2021 amounted to approximately US$12.8 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 27% from approximately US$17.6 million
for FY2020. Loss attributable to owners of the Company for FY2021
amounted to approximately US$3.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 6% from approximately US$3.6 million for FY2020. Non-
IFRS adjusted loss attributable to owners of the Company for FY2021
amounted to approximately US$3.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 10% from approximately US$3.0 million for FY2020. Our
ARPPU amounted to US$35.0 for FY2021, as compared with US$36.0 for
FY2020.

In 2021, the Group continued to strive for the deployment of HTML5
games. HTML5 is a technology integration of a series of web page
interactive effects made using the fifth generation HTML. It provides a
new framework and platform for the Internet, including providing free
plug-in audio and video, image animation, ontology storage and more
extended functions, and standardizing and opening up these applications,
enabling the Internet to achieve a desktop-like application experience.
HTML5 games are browser games, i.e. web-based games on mobile
terminals, developed with the HTML5 technology, which can be played
online with a click on a mobile phone without download and offers a
convenient and fast experience to players without
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occupying their mobile phone memory. The games can be played in both
PC and mobile, and can facilitate data exchange between PC and mobile
terminals. It does not only maintain the cross-end, multi-platform and mild
attributes of HTML5 games, but also solves the problem of the restriction
on the promotion and access of HTML5 games. The data exchange
between PC terminals and HTML5 can also enable the diversion of
traditional mobile game users to HTML5 games, thus creating more
profit space for HTML5 games. During the year, the Group launched a
number of HTML5 games, including Miligirls Fantasy, a multi-role-playing
game combining 2D shooting and barrier placement, while Scarlet Fate,
a two-dimensional barrier placement role-playing game, and keep on
expanding the Group’s HTML5 product line. As one of the pioneers of
HTML5 cross-terminal games, the Group has continued to develop the
array of the product types of HTML5 games and deepened the adaptation
technology on user ends, therefore more Group’s products can fulfill the
needs of users on mobile phone and PC terminals at the same time. As
such, not only does users’ royalty increase, the users of traditional mobile
games are also introduced into HTML5 games, thus expanding the total
consumer base.

In recent years, the scale of pan-dimensional users has gradually
expanded, and the enthusiasm of the related cultural market has gradually
risen. The continuous growth of pan-dimensional users has driven the
enhancement of the scale of two-dimensional game users. Given this
trend, the composition of the user group of two-dimensional games are
younger, it is mainly due to the two-dimensional theme dominated by
young users can more effectively embrace the current main group of
mobile game consumers. At the same time, sufficient market potential is
revealed following by the boost of the users scales over the years. Under
such circumstances, the Group has also introduced a two-dimensional
mecha strategy mobile game, which currently enters the testing phase.

During the year, the Group also carried on optimizing its existing HTML5
products to enrich the user experience and promote a steady upsurge in
the number of overseas users. Among the products, Eternal Fury2 HS5,
a massively multiplayer online role-playing game, has been launched or
is about to be launched in several European versions such as German,
French, Polish, Spanish, etc., basically economies of major European
languages and realizing more comprehensive coverage of people with

various language systems in Europe.
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In 2021, the Group further strengthened its global research and
development deployment. The Group has established a partnership with
GameBCN, an independent game incubator with more than 70 Spanish-
language cooperative studios in Barcelona of Spain. Both parties
leverage their own greatest strengths and integrate existing resources
to provide more support to global game developers. In August 2021, we
participated in devcom, the official game developer event of Gamescom,
which is the largest conference of game developer industry in Europe.
During the event, we joined 11 game industry organizations, media and
independent developers all over the world to carry out four symposiums
with the theme of “Indie-under Lockdown-published Worldwide”. During
this industry conference, we have contacted more than 30 game industry
organizations, game development studios and media in regions such as
Europe, Southeast Asia and South America to prepare for future product
reserves and further cooperation is expected in the future.

The Group has actively built a global developer network and cooperated
with game associations and institutions in different regions in order
to obtain more excellent products, as well as to provide support for
subsequent development of the Group.

Currently, the COVID-19 is still severe around the world, and more and
more people prefer staying at home to outdoor activities. In the past
years, the Group has made great efforts to enrich its game contents,
actively enhance its product portfolio, and focus on product refinement
and operational diversification. Such efforts not only can meet the
needs of users for home entertainment, but will also bring better game
experience for users in the future.

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND GROUP
STRATEGIES

Please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s Statement — Prospects
and strategies of the Group” in this annual report for the industry outlook
and Group strategies.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our operations and prospects and future financial results involve, and
could be materially and adversely affected by, certain risks. The following
highlights the principal risks exposed to the Group and is not meant to be
exhaustive:

. A small number of games have contributed a substantial majority of
our revenue.

. We work with game distribution platforms to distribute our games,
and our business may be materially and adversely affected if
they breach their contractual obligations, or if we fail to maintain
relationships with a sufficient number of platforms, or if the platforms
lose popularity among Internet users.

. Our growth prospects will suffer if we are unable to successfully
implement our game development strategies on mobile and HTML5
games.

. Our businesses rely on our data analysis capabilities, any impact on
which would materially and adversely affect our ability to formulate
appropriate business strategies.

. Our steady growth during the past years may not be indicative of our
future growth, and our limited operating history makes it difficult to
evaluate our growth prospects and future financial results.

. If we fail to successfully execute our growth strategies, including
launching games of new genres, themes or operating formats and
investing in new technologies, our future results of operations and
growth prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

. Protecting user and customer data is the top priority, and we are
fully aware that any loss or leakage of such information could have
a significant negative impact on the affected users and customers
and our reputation. This could in turn lead to potential legal actions
against us.
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. The Internet and technology industry is still evolving yet getting more
mature. Regulatory authorities in different jurisdictions have been,
in an attempt to keep up with such evolution, heightening respective
regulatory requirements. As we continuously expand our businesses
in the PRC and overseas to more countries and jurisdictions, it is
required to keep up and comply with the relevant applicable laws
and regulations in different countries and jurisdictions, including but
not limited to laws relating to data protection, Internet information
and cyber security, IP, gaming, Internet finance, etc. In addition,
development of various industries around the world may be impacted
by regulatory uncertainties.

To mitigate the identified risks, the Company improves its management
capability and adaptability and further ensures the realisation of the
business objectives and sustainable growth. We aim at implementing the
following strategies to further capture players and enhance profitability of
our games:

. Our growth also depends on our ability to continuously launch new
games that attract and retain a significant number of users, in order
to grow our revenue and maintain our competitive position.

. We strengthen our relationships with major international game
publishing and distribution partners to expand the reach of our
games to new countries and regions.

. We further strengthen and expand our mobile and HTML5 games
portfolio by developing additional high-quality mobile and HTML5
games, and offer more specific value-adding features to enrich
users’ game experience on devices.

. Our team members can utilise our various data analysis engines to
collect and store all user behavior data in a timely manner.

. We manage our expanding business, continue to offer new
games and enhance our existing games, maintain and expand our
collaboration with game distribution platforms, anticipate and adapt
to evolving user interests, industry trends and market conditions.
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We have expanded our product offerings to attract a
demographically diverse user community and will continue to
identify new genres with high monetization potential from game
developers, meanwhile we actively enhance our in-house research
and development capabilities.

We are obliged to protect user and customer data, and as such,
we strive to provide the highest level of protection on such
information and data. In this regard, we have formulated and
kept optimising control measures to protect such information
and data. Information security is ensured through effective
management systems, encryption, access restrictions and controls,
and continuously improving the business continuity and disaster
recovery management. In addition, we arrange regular reviews by
independent specialists over our data protection practices; and
provides training for staff to enhance their awareness of information
security.

We have invested enormous compliance resources and efforts to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements.
This includes setting up special department and specialist team,
as well as engaging external professional consultants to work
closely with management to track on changes in relevant laws and
regulations; and take appropriate responding actions or measures to
ensure us is in compliance with such applicable laws and regulations
in the PRC and overseas. In addition, we also engage in active
dialogue with relevant regulatory authorities, and exchange view and
information with relevant regulatory authorities on the market trends
and the development of Internet and technology industry.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overview

For FY2021, loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately US$3.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately
US$0.2 million or 6% from approximately US$3.6 million for FY2020.
Non-IFRS adjusted loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately US$3.3 million for FY2021, representing an increase of
approximately US$0.3 million or 10% from approximately US$3.0 million
for FY2020.

Revenue

For FY2021, revenue of the Group amounted to approximately US$12.8
million, representing a decrease of approximately US$4.8 million or 27%
from approximately US$17.6 million for FY2020. The decline in revenue
was mainly due to the offline of certain games of the Group. Despite
market volatility, the Group actively responded to the impact of market
changes, and continued to improve the layout of the HTML5 games.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit Margin

For FY2021, cost of revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
US$7.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately US$1.1 million
or 13% as compared with approximately US$8.4 million for FY2020. The
gross profit margin of the Group decreased from 52.3% for FY2020 to
42.4% for FY2021.

Other Losses, Net

For FY2021,
US$0.16 million, as compared with other losses of the Group amounted to

other losses of the Group amounted to approximately

approximately US$0.03 million for FY2020. The other losses of the Group
for FY2021 primarily consisted of the net exchange loss.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

For FY2021, selling and marketing expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately US$3.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately
US$2.3 million or 43% from approximately US$5.4 million for FY2020,
primarily due to the decrease in advertising and promotion expenses.
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Administrative Expenses

For FY2021, administrative expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately US$3.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately
US$1.9 million or 39% from approximately US$4.9 million for FY2020.
The decrease was mainly due to (i) the decrease of impairment loss of
assets; and (ii) the decrease in the share-based remuneration expenses
of employees.

Research and Development Expenses

For FY2021, research and development expenses of the Group amounted
to approximately US$1.9 million, as compared to approximately US$1.9
million for FY2020.

Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

For FY2021, net impairment losses on financial assets of the Group
amounted to approximately US$0.5 million, as compared to approximately
US$0.5 million for FY2020.

Impairment of Investment in an Associate

For FY2021, impairment of investment in an associate of the Group was
nil (FY2020: nil).

Income Tax Expense

For FY2021, income tax expense of the Group amounted to approximately
US$0.2 million, as compared to approximately US$0.2 million for FY2020.

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

As a result of the above, loss attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately US$0.2 million or 6% from approximately
US$3.6 million for FY2020 to approximately US$3.4 million for FY2021.

Non-IFRS Adjusted Loss Attributable to Owners
of the Company

To supplement this annual results announcement which is presented in
accordance with the IFRS, we also use unaudited non-IFRS adjusted loss
attributable to owners of the Company as an additional financial measure
to evaluate our financial performance by eliminating the impact of items
that we do not consider indicative of the performance of our business.
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For FY2021, non-IFRS adjusted loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately US$3.3 million, representing an
increase of approximately US$0.3 million or 10% from approximately
US$3.0 million in FY2020. Our non-IFRS adjusted loss attributable to
owners of the Company in FY2021 and FY2020 was calculated according
to the loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the respective
years, excluding share-based compensation of approximately US$0.07
million in FY2021 and approximately US$0.7 million in FY2020.

Liquidity, Treasury Policy and Source of Funding
and Borrowing

As at December 31, 2021, the Group’s total bank balances, cash
and short-term deposits amounted to approximately US$32.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately 2.5% as compared with
approximately US$31.9 million as at December 31, 2020. The increase
in total bank balances, cash and short-term deposits during the year was
primarily resulted from the increase in the net cash flow generated from
operating activities.

As at December 31, 2021, current assets of the Group amounted to
approximately US$44.9 million, including bank balances, cash and
short-term deposits of approximately US$32.7 million and other current
assets of approximately US$12.2 million. Current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately US$9.4 million, including trade payables
and contract liabilities of approximately US$4.0 million and other current
liabilities of approximately US$5.4 million. As at December 31, 2021, the
current ratio (the current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group
was 4.8, as compared with 5.0 as at December 31, 2020. The Group
adopts a prudent treasury management policy to ensure that our Group
maintains a healthy financial position.

Gearing ratio is calculated on the basis of total borrowings (net of cash
and cash equivalents) over the Group’s total equity. The Group does not
have any bank borrowings and other debt financing obligations (excluding
lease liabilities) as at December 31, 2021 and the gearing ratio is nil (as
at December 31, 2020: nil). The Group intends to finance the expansion,
investments and business operations with internal resources.
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Significant Investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during FY2021.

Material Acquisitions

The Group did not have any material acquisitions of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during FY2021.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Future plans and use of
proceeds” in the Prospectus, the Group currently has no other plan for
material investments and capital assets.

Material Disposals

The Group did not have any material disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during FY2021.

Pledge of Assets

As at December 31, 2021, none of the Group’s assets was pledged (as at
December 31, 2020: nil).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at December 31, 2021
(as at December 31, 2020: nil).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

As at December 31, 2021, the Group mainly operated in the global
market and majority of its transactions were settled in USD, being the
functional currency of the group entities to which the transactions relate.
We currently do not hedge transactions undertaken in foreign currencies
but manage our exposure through constant monitoring to limit as much
as possible the amount of our foreign currencies exposures. Foreign
exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to RMB, EURO and Hong Kong dollar. As at December 31,
2021, the Group did not have significant foreign currency exposure from
its operations.

EXRE
AEER =T - —HRFELETHEARE -

ERWEE

AEER-_Z--UBRFELEEFABBIEL
A BEARRAERENERUE -

EARREREFREENRKGE

BHRERERATRRASI RAERIERSE | —8MHEK
BEIN  AKEBENUEBERENREREAEE
B ARAE B -

ERHE

AEER-_Z--UBRFELEEFABEBIEBEL
Al BERARRAECENERLE -

EEEHA

RZZBE-Z—F+-_A=+—8  AEETEEIMNE
EEER (R _Z=2F+=-_A=+—H: &)

AR

RZTFZ—F+_A=+—H  XEBEWHEEKNK
RABERZZEZZF+=A=+—H: &)

SMEE LB

HEZZ-—F+-A=+—H ZXxEEFZEEE
HKMBEE  MEXIIRFHEIUETLEE - m=E
TRAXSEENEEERENNEEY - HMERIT
ERAINEHITHR HETER  MEABTHE
REWER - LRI ERGIINERBHSTE - &K
REAER G RICEREAERBBOFHEEE I IEZ
FEMNEEY - AeHBRIMNERK - REETE
RIS X - ARZEASEEERRSIBH I
ERER - EZHEERE AR - BUTREBT -
RZFEZ—F+ZA=+—08 FAEETERHEE
EMEEERINERERE

PEHREBHEEGRART T —FFIR @
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Events Occurred Since The End of FY2021

On January 20, 2022, Guangzhou You Lai (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an investment cooperation
agreement with JV Partner pursuant to which Guangzhou You Lai and the
JV Partner have agreed to establish a project company in the PRC for the
an investment project which consists of proposed properties acquisition by
way of bidding at the public auction and potential subsequent operational
management of the target properties in case of successful bidding. For
further details, please refer to the circular of the Company dated March
16, 2022.

Save as disclosed above, The Group did not have any significant events
after December 31, 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREARE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance by focusing on principles of integrity,
accountability, transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness.
The Company has developed and implemented sound corporate
governance policies and measures, and the Board is responsible for
performing such corporate governance duties. The Board continues to
review and monitor the corporate governance of the Company, as well as
various internal policies and procedures, including but not limited to those
applicable to the relevant employees and Directors, with reference to the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements so as to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance of the Company.

During FY2021, the Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions of the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG
Code as disclosed below.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. However, the Company does
not have a separate roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. LU Yuanfeng currently performs these two roles. With extensive
experience in the internet industry, Mr. LU Yuanfeng is responsible for
the overall strategic planning and general management of the Group and
is instrumental to the Company’s growth and business expansion since its
establishment on November 24, 2014. The Board considers that vesting
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the same person is
beneficial to the management of the Group. The balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operation of the senior management and the
Board, which comprises experienced individuals. The Board currently
comprises three executive Directors (including Mr. LU Yuanfeng), and
three independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leadership and the internal control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has
general powers for the management and operation of the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are delegated
by the Board to the management of the Company, who implements the
strategy and direction as determined by the Board.

The Board currently consists of six Directors, namely Mr. LU Yuanfeng
(chairman and chief executive officer), Mr. HUANG Guozhan and Mr.
HUANG Deqgiang as executive Directors, and Professor CHAU Chi Wai,
Wilton, Mr. LI Yi Wen and Mr. LU Qibo as independent non-executive
Directors. None of the Directors has a relationship (including financial,
business, family or material/relevant relationship) with each other.
The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 23 of this
annual report.

Code provision B.2.2 of Part 2 of the CG Code states that every director,

including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EERERHRE (F)

In accordance with the Articles, all the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at an annual general meeting of the Company at least once
every three years. Any new Director appointed by the Board (i) to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company following his appointment and shall be subject to
re-election at such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company and the Company has issued letters of appointment to
each of the independent non-executive Directors. Each of the executive
Directors is appointed for a term of one to three years and is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of one to
three years, subject to retirement by rotation at lease once every three
years. The terms of the service contracts and the letters of appointment
may be renewed in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and
other applicable laws.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors for FY2021 was approximately USDO0.2 million.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and performance of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management for FY2021 are set out in Note
13 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal proceedings against the Directors.

The Board has agreed, as stipulated in code provision C.5.6 of Part
2 of the CG Code, on the procedure agreed to enable Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure
that the Board procedures are followed. The company secretary of the
Company is Mr. WONG Wai Chiu. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, Mr. WONG Wai Chiu has undertaken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended December 31,
2021. During FY2021, the main contact person of Mr. WONG Wai Chiu in
the Company is Mr. LU Yuanfeng.

Starting from February 2, 2021, Ms. FOK Po Yi ceased to be the
company secretary of the Company, and Mr. WONG Wai Chiu replaced
Ms. FOK Po Yi as the company secretary of the Company with effect from
February 2, 2021. Mr. WONG Wai Chiu is the associate director of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited and he has the necessary
qualifications and experience as required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing
Rules. The main contact person of Mr. WONG Wai Chiu in the Company
is Mr. LU Yuanfeng.
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During FY2021, the following Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending in-house briefing or reading

materials on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge

and skills:
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Event/Reading
Materials motes

EE,
B R AR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. LU Yuanfeng e IR U 5 A 1,2
Mr. HUANG Guozhan HEELEA 1,2
Mr. HUANG Degiang =HEREE 1,2
Independent non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Professor CHAU Chi Wai, Wilton B f@%ﬂ%
(appointed with effect from June 2, 2021) (B=ZF=—FNAZ-HEEZ(F) 1,2
Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum }xk%lbﬁi
(retired with effect from June 2, 2021) (B=—F=—FA-HEFT) 1
Mr. L1 Yi Wen EREAE 1
Mr. LU Qibo & RUK St 4 1
Notes: BR5E -
1. Reading materials relevant to corporate governance and regulations. 1. BEEBEOOEE AR ERNME -
2. Attending training session(s) relevant to corporate governance and 2. HEAEBDEE A NMEBOE -
regulations.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy which aims to build
and maintain a Board with a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills,
professional experience, educational background, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender. A truly diverse Board will include
and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors.
These differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit
while taking into account diversity (including gender diversity).

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates to serve as a director
of the Company, the Nomination Committee would consider the above
criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendations to the Board.

The Company seeks diversity of members from multiple perspectives in
designing the composition of the Board, including gender, cultural and
education background, as well as professional experience. As at the
date of this annual report, the Board consists of six Directors. Directors
are with an extensive background in fields such as finance, accounting,
audit, economics and management, while some of them have multiple
professional backgrounds. The Board is fully aware that diversity is now
not considered to be achieved through a single gender board. The Board
plans to appoint at least one female director by December 31, 2024.
The Board plans to implement recruitment and promotion policies which
encourage the sufficient presence of women in top managerial positions.
The Board will also review the board diversity policy on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETING

The Company adopts a practice to convene Board meetings regularly
which is at least four meetings per year and roughly on a quarterly basis.
A notice of a regular Board meeting shall be delivered to all the Directors
at least 14 days in advance with the matters to be discussed specified in
agenda of the meeting. For other Board and Board Committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally served. Agendas or relevant documents
of the Board or Board Committees meetings shall be despatched to the
Directors or members of the Board Committees at least 3 days prior to
the convening of the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the relevant documents and be adequately prepared for the
meetings. When Directors or Board committee members are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman prior
to the meeting. The minutes are kept by the company secretary of the
Company and the copies are circulated to all Directors for reference and
record purpose.
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The minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Board Committees
thoroughly recorded all matters under consideration and decisions made
by consensus including any problems raised by the Directors. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting and the Board Committees meeting are
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
on which the meeting is held. Directors have a right to review the minutes
of the Board meetings and the Board Committees meetings.

According to code provision C.5.1 of Part 2 of the Code, board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of the majority of the Directors, either in
person or through electronic means of communication.

Five Board meetings and the AGM for 2021 were held during FY2021.
The Directors’ attendance is listed below:

EERNEFLEERRANERLBEHE
ﬁ’*§$A&?§$§AE?ﬁ%)@E’J$E& iﬁzuﬂzs’]
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BECEEATAMNTAKRIE =HBHEC.5.1

EESL—FRTOK AHMEEE
BIT—R - MABHEFHEBRSHE  A[HHHK
FREBFRASNLEEH® -

ARRR_E_—MBRFEANCETAREEER
BARZT - —FRRAFRE  SEEZHER
SEFIEAT

Attendance/
Number of meetings
eligible to attend

HERYEHEERRE
Board meeting AGM for 2021
B

EZEER BRRBFRE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. LU Yuanfeng BRI 58 A 5/5 11

Mr. HUANG Guozhan EEESTAE 5/5 11

Mr. HUANG Degiang EEELAE 5/5 1/1

Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITES

Professor CHAU Chi Wai, Wilton EREHE 1/5 1/1
(appointed with effect from June 2, 2021) (B=ZFE=—FNAZHEEZ(F)

Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum ERO T 1/5 0/1
(retired with effect from June 2, 2021) (B=F=—FNH=HEFFE)

Mr. L1 Yi Wen FRE 2/5 11

Mr. LU Qibo B RUR St 2/5 11

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three Board Committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Each of the
Board Committees operates under its terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board Committees are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has also amended the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee reflecting the changes to the Code in respect
of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems, which
became effective on November 24, 2017. The Company further amended
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee on November 23, 2018.
The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Professor
CHAU Chi Wai, Wilton, Mr. LI Yi Wen and Mr. LU Qibo, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Professor CHAU Chi Wai,
Wilton has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise, and
provide an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
oversee the audit process and perform other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.

Two meetings of the Audit Committee were held during FY2021. The
attendance of the committee members is listed below:
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Attendance/
Number of meetings
eligible to attend

HERE,
Members RE EHEER R
Professor CHAU Chi Wai, Wilton BAEEHE
(appointed with effect from June 2, 2021) (B=F=—FNA-HEEZ(F) 11
Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum ??%?f—%/ll\ﬁ:t
(retired with effect from June 2, 2021) (B=—ZF=—FA-HEFT) 1/1
Mr. LI Yi Wen FRXTE 2/2
Mr. LU Qibo J&RUK St 4 2/2
For FY2021, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s audited RZEBEZ—MBRFE  BREZESCEFHLEEEH
annual results for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the Group’s BT CEFT AT -HBIEFENKERFE
unaudited interim results for the six months ended June 30, 2021, and ¥ERASEEHEE T -—FNA=THIEXEAR
was of the opinion that the preparation of the relevant financial statements MAGCEZPHES  URAHBUBERERDE

complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that adequate disclosure has been made. The Audit Committee provided
an independent view of the risk management and internal governance
systems of the Group. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and selection
and appointment of the external auditors.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, being Mr. LI Yi Wen and Mr. LU Qibo, and one
executive Director, being Mr. LU Yuanfeng, who is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing and
assessing the composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and making recommendations to
the Board on appointment and removal of Directors. In recommending
candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
convene a meeting to consider candidates on merit against objective
criteria and with due regards to the benefits of the Board. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations or nominations to the Board
for candidates to fill a casual vacancy or for those who are elected at a
general meeting. A notice issued to shareholders will provide information
on the candidates. The Board shall make the final decision on all matters
in respect of the election of its proposed candidates at any general
meeting. The selection criteria for Board members will be considered
from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to all aspects of
integrity, achievement, experience and diversity, such as gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience, technical and
professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and
time to be devoted as a Director. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from time
to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during FY2021. The
attendance of the committee members is listed below:
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Mr. LU Qibo & RUR S 11

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the nomination committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed
the independence of independent non-executive Directors, and
considered the re-election of retiring Directors for 2021 AGM and made
recommendations to the Board.
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EERHRE (H)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee has three members,
comprising two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LI
Yi Wen and Mr. LU Qibo, and one executive Director, namely Mr. LU
Yuenfeng. Mr. LI Yi Wen is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
of the Company. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors of the Company;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities, and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors
and senior management of the Company for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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(9)

(h)

(i)

@

In carrying out its duties under these terms of reference,

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate;

to ensure that no director of the Company or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

where the service contract of a director or proposed director of
the Company or its subsidiaries is required to be approved by the
shareholders of the Company pursuant to Rule 13.68 of the Listing
Rules, the Remuneration Committee (or an independent board
committee) shall form a view in respect of such service contract and
advise shareholders (other than shareholders who are directors with
a material interest in such service contract and their associates)
as to whether the terms are fair and reasonable, advise whether
such service contract is in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole and advise shareholders on how to vote;
and

to consider all other matters as referred to the Remuneration
Committee by the Board.

the

Remuneration Committee should:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

provide the remuneration packages sufficient to attract and retain
directors to run the Company successfully without paying more than
is necessary;

be sensitive to the wider scene, including pay and employment
conditions elsewhere, especially when determining annual salary
increases;

ensure that the performance-related elements of remuneration
form a significant proportion of the total remuneration package of
executive directors of the Company and should be designed to align
their interest with those of shareholders and to give these directors
keen incentives to perform at the highest levels; and

ensure that executive share options (if any) are offered in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

(9)

(h)

(M)
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One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during FY2021.
The attendance of the committee members is listed below:

R-ZTZZ—HMBEE  FMEEERTT—RE
o BNBZHBEAEINNAT ¢
Attendance/

Number of meetings
eligible to attend

xR,/
Members RE Bﬁﬂjﬁﬁ% #
Mr. L1 Yi Wen ER L 11
Mr. LU Yuanfeng e IR U 5 A 11
Mr. LU Qibo B RUR & 11
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the remuneration committee BHEZZT-_—F+A=1+—HLFE FHZE
surveyed peer companies’ remuneration packages and reviewed the ERETRER TEI’J%*’%@W—?% CWIRE THITES
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the management. EafERENHmers
MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS &% X 5 W1E%<F Bl
The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the RATE A LR BB 8+ PR eV iR E<FRIVER

Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities
of the Company by the Directors and the Group’s senior management
who, because of his/her office or employment, is likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Group or the Company’s securities.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the year under review. In addition,
the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the Model Code by
the senior management of the Group during the year under review.

FRAMEWORK FOR DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has in place a policy on handling and dissemination of
inside information (the “Policy”) which sets out the procedures and
internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside information in a
timely manner in such a way so as not to place any person in a privileged
dealing position and to allow time for the market to determine the price of
the listed securities of the Company with the latest available information.
This Policy also provides guidelines to staff of the Company to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company from breaching the
statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be
conducted by publishing the relevant information on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the requirements of the
Listing Rules.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited has been appointed as the external
auditor of the Group for the financial year ended December 31, 2021
with effect from December 7, 2021. The former auditor of the Group,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from December 6, 2021. There are no disagreement
or unresolved matters between the Company and PwC, and that there
are no other matter in connection with the resignation of PwC which
needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.
For further details regarding the change of auditor, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated December 6, 2021.

For FY2021, the fees paid/payable for audit and non-audit services
(primarily related to tax advisory services) are approximately USD257,401
and USDO, respectively.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during FY2021.
A statement from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 113 to 115 of this annual report.
In preparing the financial statements for FY2021, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The basis on which the Company generates or preserves value over the
longer term and the strategy for delivering its objectives are explained in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 26 to 36 of
this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems on an annual
basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Company also has an internal audit function
which primarily carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems, and reports their findings to the Board on, at
least an annual basis. The Company implements and strictly enforces
procedures on inside information according to the relevant procedures
stated under the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department’s business and to implement
the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis so as to
identify, evaluate and manage significant risks in a timely manner.
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During FY2021, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group to ensure that a sound
system is maintained and operated by the management in compliance
with the agreed procedures and standards. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. In particular, the Board considered the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions are adequate. The review was conducted through discussions
with the management of the Company, its external auditor and the
assessment performed by the Audit Committee. The Board believes that
the existing risk management and internal control systems are adequate
and effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance as well as for resolving internal control defects (if any).

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For FY2021, Guangzhou ZYK instituted legal proceedings (the “Legal
Proceedings”) against Qianhai Huanjing in relation to the losses and
damages sustained by Guangzhou ZYK as a result of the unilateral
termination by Qianhai Huanjing of the IP Licensing Agreements. On 8
April 2022, the Company received the judgment (the “Judgment”) handed
down by the Guangzhou Intellectual Property Court* (F& )N 054 & #%b7 ) of
the People’s Republic of China (the “Court”), pursuant to which the Court
ruled that the IP Licensing Agreements shall be rescinded and Qianhai
Huanjing shall repay the licensing fee in the amount of RMB6,556,900 to
Guangzhou ZYK within 10 days from the effective date of the Judgment.
Details of the Legal Proceedings are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 18 May 2020, 8 March 2021 and 8 April 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group was not involved in any material
legal proceedings during FY2021.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles were conditionally adopted by the Board on November 24,
2017 and became effective on the Listing Date. A copy of the Articles
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
During FY2021, there was no significant change in constitutional
documents of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
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Under Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may at all times have the right, by a written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require the convening of an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

The Board is not aware of any provision allowing the Shareholders to put
forward proposals at general meetings of the Company under the Articles
and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish
to put forward proposals at general meetings may refer to the preceding
paragraph to make a written requisition to require the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director are published on the Company’s website.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company as follows:

Address: 2nd Floor, No. 368 Jiang Nan Da Dao (South), Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, PRC

Attention: Office of the Board
The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Communication with Shareholders and Investors
Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meeting and other extraordinary
general meetings. At the general meetings, Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - £ EHEHERRE

This is the fifth environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report
issued by the Group. The ESG report disclosed our sustainability policy
and performance for FY2021. The scope of the ESG report includes the
environmental and social performance of the Group’s headquarters in
Guangzhou during the period under review (unless otherwise stated). The
relevant data for all other regional offices have not been collected and
therefore is not disclosed in this ESG report.

The preparation of the ESG report complies with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 (2020)
to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange and abides by the
mandatory disclosure requirements and “Comply or Explain” provisions
contained therein. The Board of Directors assumes full responsibility
for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting, and through reviewing the
ESG report, guarantees that the reported content is true, accurate, and
complete.

The Group has prepared the Report in compliance with four reporting
principles of the 2020 ESG Guide. The following is the application method
of each principle in the Report:

Materiality

The Group regards ESG as part of its fiduciary responsibilities and
strives to integrate ESG considerations into its day-to-day operations and
management. The Board has overall responsibility for ESG matters and
oversees ESG strategy, direction and policy. The Board makes timely
decisions on important ESG issues, supported by regular reporting and
approval of annual ESG reports by Company management.

Quantitative

The Group disclosed or explained the quantified key performance
indicators (“KPI”) applicable in the 2020 ESG Guide and set out the
criteria, methodology, assumptions and/or references for the calculation
of the quantitative KPIs, including the source of the key conversion
factors, for comprehensive assessment of the ESG performance of the
Group during the Reporting Period,

Balance

The ESG report has fully applied the principle of balance.
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Consistency

Where feasible, the ESG report uses methods consistent with the previous
reporting period to collect statistics on KPI related information, so that
all stakeholders can make meaningful comparisons of ESG performance
during the Reporting Period. If the statistics of the Reporting Period and
the method of collecting KPI related information are inconsistent with the
previous reporting period, the Group will specifically list them in the form
of notes.

ABOUT DIGITAL HOLLYWOOD

Digital Hollywood was listed on the Stock Exchange in 2017. The Group
is committed to becoming a leading global online game publisher while
building success in developing and launching dozens of high-quality
mobile games.

We help China-based game developers penetrate into the international
markets with one-stop solutions, including game redesign, optimization,
marketing, distribution, monetization, payment support and other user-
related services.

We offer a diverse selection of games consisting primarily of casual
games and mid-and hardcore games in both web and mobile formats to a
demographically diverse user community.

VISION

To become and be recognized as an interactive entertainment group
providing world-class user experiences.

OBJECTIVE

Connecting with happiness among players, business partners and
employees.

CORPORATE CULTURE - CORE VALUES

We firmly believe that pooling people who agree with and adhere to
the common pursuit of long-term goals in creating cohesion is the most
valuable and worth-inheriting asset for us. In other words, the F.A.M.I.L.Y
(Focus/Agile/Mind/In-touch/Learn/You) culture.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLICY

We are a leading global online game publisher for China-based game
developers, with fast-growing in-house development capabilities for
mobile games. In recent years, we have strategically expanded our
business focuses to develop and launch mobile games by enhancing in-
house development capabilities. This has also reflected our commitment
to sustainable development. We are committed to ensuring business
continuity, while sparing no effort in integrating ESG principles into our
business administrative practices, which has produced a positive impact
on the environment and the entire community.

The Board is responsible for executing corporate governance as defined
in the terms of reference, and for holding meetings at least once a year
to discuss issues concerning the Group’s corporate governance. In
keeping with the general trend of sustainable development of enterprises,
the Board is acutely aware of the importance of ESG governance to the
sustainable development of the Group. The Board is responsible for
supervising the Group’s ESG matters and assumes full responsibility for
strategy and the reporting of all these matters. The Board performs its
ESG governance responsibilities and holds meetings to discuss ESG
governance matters of the Group when necessary. For day-to-day ESG
governance, the Board authorises Company management to organise
and coordinate the ESG work of each subsidiary to ensure that its
decisions are implemented. The Board is committed to maintaining good
communication with Company management and making timely decisions
on important ESG issues, supported by regular reporting and approval
of annual ESG reports by Company management, to implement its ESG
supervisory function for the Group As a responsible corporate citizen,
the Group has formulated different policies on ESG and other issues to
advance and manage matters relating to social responsibility, such as
product responsibility, labor practices, environmental protection, health
and safety, and supply chain management, so as to guide the Group’s
business partners in putting sustainable development into practice.
The relevant policies and measures and our sustainable development
performance in all respects can be found in the corresponding sections of
this ESG report.
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STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

Our stakeholders mainly include employees, customers, suppliers,
business partners, Shareholders, the government and, in a broad sense,
the community. We are firmly convinced that our sustainable development
benefits from the unremitting support and trust of stakeholders. We listen
to the voices of stakeholders and respond to their needs through a range
of communication channels such as meetings, interviews, hotlines, official
websites, WeChat public accounts, emails, as well as communicate
with our stakeholders via the publication of annual and interim results
announcements, so as to maintain a close and harmonious relationship
with them and accordingly achieve long-term success.

COMMITMENT TO CUSTOMERS

As a technology company, we strive to create value for customers by
providing quality products and superior services. We offer services and
products primarily relating to web and mobile games. In recent years, we
have strategically expanded our business focuses to develop and launch
mobile games by enhancing in-house development capabilities to capture
the market opportunity from the fast-growing smartphone users, and our
mobile games have immediately achieved considerable success in a
number of regional markets. Since the beginning, we have established
an integrated business model and the resulting synergies have further
enhanced the overall performance of the Company. Our rich experience
in web game publishing has enabled us to effectively identify key success
drivers for mobile games and create game content that appeals to users.
Moreover, disclosure on description of quality assurance process and
the number of products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons are not applicable due to the Group’s business nature.
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We help China-based game developers penetrate into the international
markets with one-stop solutions, including game redesign, optimization,
marketing, distribution, monetization, payment support and other user-
related services. With our deep understanding of the international
markets, rich distribution experiences and proprietary technologies, we
continuously provide solutions to game developing partners for them to
reach and monetize their global user base, thereby bringing an extremely
attractive value to them. When a game is launched, we will update and
repair the system on a regular basis. We are committed to maintaining
relationship with players by creating a highly-interactive and information-
based online gaming community and organising a series of activities in
and out of the game. In addition, we will collect player comments and
suggestions through various means such as questionnaires, forums
and customer services to improve the game and enhance the player
experience. The Group strictly abides by national laws and regulations
that are relevant to the business in developing products and providing
services that have significant impact on the Group, as well as other laws
and regulations relating to the health and safety of products and services
provided, advertising, labelling and privacy matters and remedies,
including but not limited to the Regulations on Internet Publishing, the
Measures on Internet Information Services and the Measures for the
Administration of Online Games.

The Group is committed to providing quality products and services and
values customers’ feedback. We require game masters to record and
report every potential complaint, which will be followed up via an interview
by our staff to properly collect player opinions for game improvement. To
prevent inappropriate handling of complaints and recurring complaints
from players, the Group keeps the staff responsible for the complaint
informed of the complaint handling process and result, analyzes the
reasons for complaint, and consults with relevant business departments.

During the period under review, the Group was not aware of any matter
that had been in violation of laws and regulations in relation to the
provision and use of the Group’s products and services, including but
not limited to matters concerning the health and safety of products and
services, information and labels, marketing communications (including
advertisement and promotion materials), property rights (including
intellectual property rights), and privacy issues that have a significant
impact on the Group.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We are committed to protecting the achievements of our research and
development team. To this end, we have established the Intellectual
Property Management System under which standard work programs are
formulated in respect of applying for and managing intellectual property
rights and strengthening the protection of intellectual property and this
can effectively protect the intangible assets of the Group. The Group’s
intellectual property included copyrights, trademarks, patents, trade
secrets and other rights conferred by (i) the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, (ii) the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China, (iii) the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China, (iv) the
Measures for the Administration of Internet Domain Names in China, (v)
the Measures for the Administration of Software Products, (vi) the Law
of the People’s Republic of China Against Unfair Competition and other
applicable laws and regulations as well as other rights relating to the
protection of games, software, designs, new technologies, techniques,
etc.

We attach great importance to confidentiality in protecting intellectual
property. All interested parties are prohibited to divulge or provide
relevant information to others in the process of product development
and creation. In accordance with the “Measures for the Administration
of Content Self-review by Internet Cultural Business Entities”, our self-
inspection system will ensure that all products comply with our intellectual
property measures and relevant regulations.

HEALTHY NETWORK

As a company with a focus on the internet business, we have the
responsibility to uphold and strengthen a healthy network culture.

For our game development business, we strictly abide by the Measures
for the Administration of Online Games and other applicable laws and
regulations. In view of this, we have built a professional content review
team. There are professionally qualified content reviewers on the team
responsible for close scrutiny to ensure that the game elements, including
names, backgrounds, sound effects, maps, scenes, character designs,
building designs, prop designs and features, do not contain any legally
prohibited or improper wordings and materials, neither should any
pornography, gambling, violence and abetment be promoted. Therefore,
the Group strictly complies with the legal requirements on healthy gaming
of the countries where it operates.
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DATA SECURITY

Given the nature of our business, we need to collect and process a
large amount of player data. Therefore, we are exposed to the risks of
cyber attacks and the loss and leakage of data. To minimize these risks,
we have adopted a series of data security measures, such as access
authorization, password and data transmission encryption, so that data
are stored in at least two different locations on our internal server and
further backup is implemented in our disaster recovery system. The Group
has taken a number of measures to ensure network system security and
stable operation, in terms of network, system and application.

PRIVACY PROTECTION

Ensuring data privacy is crucial to protect our business and maintain our
relationship with customers and business partners. Employees must sign
a non-disclosure agreement to confirm their responsibility for keeping
the data (including sales data, business plans, customer’s personal
data, and intellectual property) in strict confidence. We have set access
authorization with respect to the customer’s personal data, restricting
employees from accessing sensitive data only unless otherwise as
required. We have also devised specific procedures to collect and process
user data to ensure that our products and services are in compliance with
applicable legal requirements.

ADVERTISING LABELS

We ensure the compliance, accuracy and authenticity of all published
materials, including press releases, labels, articles, and web contents, in
accordance with the Advertising Law of the PRC, and through the review
of the legal department.

COMMITMENT TO EMPLOYEES
Equal opportunity

The Group always upholds the principles of fairness, openness and
justice, and applies these principles in the recruitment, assessment,
promotion, development and welfare of its staff. The Group will not allow
any employment discrimination arising out of race, color, nationality,
language, age, gender, disability, religious belief, marital status,
pregnancy, etc., and related systems are formulated in internal documents
such as the code of conduct.
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Staff development

The Group adheres to the cultural core values of F.AIM.I.L.Y., and has
employees kept informed of the latest industry information and new job
skills for them to realize their full potential through a variety of training
formats and courses.

In order to meet the developmental needs of employees in different
positions, the Group provides our employees with management, expertise
and general knowledge learning channels, and organizes various sharing
and exchange programmes at the company level. We aim to create a
learning-oriented corporate culture, and thus encourage employees to
excel and pursue their career path development. Currently, the training
types received by employees include, but are not limited to, conventional
classroom training, on-the-job coaching and experience sharing sessions,
such as induction training, orientation, mini talks, etc.
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In 2021,
meetings — mini talks, which were held in the form of “online classes”

for example, the company organized experience sharing

by the corporate executives. As a multinational internet enterprise, the
Group perceives the impact of the epidemic around the world more
comprehensively. Through data tracking spanning about half a year,
samples of user data from all over the world and interviews with gaming
companies from different countries, the impacts of the epidemic on
the game industry were summarized then shared among employees
participating in the training.

Through continuous optimization and improvement of the performance
management system, the Group conducts regular and timely performance
evaluation of employees and maintains an annual comprehensive
performance evaluation. The main business units conduct monthly
performance appraisal. After each appraisal, employees are required to
review their performance in their daily work and set out new achievement
targets with their supervisors. Through the two-way communication
mechanism, we can receive employee’s feedback and suggestions in a
timely manner to facilitate the growth of both parties.

The promotion of employees is determined based on the results of
their performance evaluation and potentials. The Group has also put
in place promotion mechanisms for employees. Employees may apply
for competitive promotion provided that they meet the relevant years of
service and performance requirements and that they have no records of
misconduct and are in line with the Group’s corporate culture and values.
This will accordingly stimulate the initiative of excellent employees, which
is conducive to selecting and cultivating talents and maintaining the
sustainability of talents.
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Caring for talents

The Group has always regarded employees as the key to sustainable
business development. Accordingly, the Group provides competitive
remuneration packages and benefits to employees and organises
diversified staff activities.

The Group strictly abides by labor laws and regulations of the PRC
and other laws and regulations regarding compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare, including the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Social
Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulations on the
Administration of Housing Provident Funds and Employee Paid Annual
Leave Regulations, to provide domestic employees with social insurance
covering pension insurance, unemployment insurance, medical insurance,
maternity insurance, work-related injury insurance, critical illness
insurance and supplementary medical insurance as well as housing
provident funds. In addition to public and statutory holidays, employees
are entitled to paid leaves, such as marriage leave, pregnancy check-up
leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, annual leave, bereavement leave,
sick leave and bonus leave, and other benefits including meal allowances,
attendance awards, festive gifts, charity soft drinks and birthday gift.
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Work-life balance T B4 E T

We attach great importance to the healthy development of employees’ BMETEREESORERR  SRAZTEN
physical and mental health. We enrich employee’s spare time life by XIRKEES - @EREBESRET  HIPEK -
organising various recreational activities, such as badminton, table tennis EE  ENRERLEH - ARLEHAE  HRAE
and basketball games, monthly birthday parties, festival events, Children’s B N—REXREH - BB =) \BXE - 8F
Day on the 1st of June, Thanksgiving Day, Woman’s Day on the 8th of 7 FEHEY  FREEXREHHEAME S
March, Halloween and annual dinner. These recreational activities have ETHRBE X bAE - e T B THRE ) ME B
greatly enriched the spiritual and cultural life of employees and enhanced WIERETT o

their cohesiveness and teamwork.
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. ZZFZ—% 82021 Annual Dinner
. IR ETRIE ¥ Women'’s Day Activity
. R FKEREEIMid-Autumn Activity

. AN EE) Christmas Activity

. B@&E#) Team Building Activity

. E&/E#) Team Building Activity

. 1024727 8 H)E #1024
Programmer’s Day Activity

8. B T4 H&Birthday party
9. BEENEBHalloween Activity
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Attention to two-way communication

We strive to establish sound and humanized communication channels,
formal and informal, for our employees. Currently, the various
communication channels established include conferences, work reports,
WeChat, Enterprise WeChat, instant messaging software (QQ), emails
and performance appraisal interviews. Employees may express their
ideas and views through these communication channels.

Occupational health and safety

The Group is committed to providing employees with a safe, healthy and
comfortable working environment. The Group conducts unified guidance
and supervision of the safe operation of the Group companies in
accordance with China’s laws and regulations on occupational health and
safety and industry standards. The Group grants badges to all employees
and only employees with badges can enter the office area. Non-company
personnel are required to register identity information at the front desk
and enter with a temporary visitor card. To solve the pollution problem
arising from the newly decorated office and to ease employees’ concerns
on the potential negative impacts on their health from the renovation, the
Group is equipped with high-efficiency air purifiers and protective masks
in the office area. We also plant and place large quantities of green
plants throughout the office area, taking care of the health and safety of
employees with practical actions. A complete set of fire-fighting facilities
that meet fire protection standards are placed at a prominent position in
the office. Clear guidelines for emergency exit routes are available in the
office and fire inspections are conducted to prevent from potential fire
hazards.

Strictly abiding by laws and regulations concerning the provision of a safe
working environment and the protection of employees from occupational
hazards, such as the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, the Group provides annual physical examination
for employees and routinely publicizes the knowledge of occupational
diseases through different channels, to protect the health and related
rights and interests of employees.

As of December 31, 2021, no incidence of any work-related injury or
fatality was identified by the Group.
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Since the beginning of 2021, in response to the COVID-19 outbreak,
safety and health of the employees are the prime concern. A number of
strict protective measures have been imposed amid the period by the
Group, such as comprehensive disinfection in public facilities with a higher
visitor frequency, further enhancing the ventilation in the office areas,
and providing personal protective hygiene products to all employees. To
strengthen the control even further, all activities surrounding the office
area are monitored, with tightening visitor and vehicle controls, to lower
the chance of office infection, hence maintaining a safe environment for
all employees.

Labor standards

Strictly abiding by laws and regulations concerning the prevention of child
labor or forced labor, such as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors and other
laws and regulations, the Group prohibits the employment of child labor
and forced labor. Upon the joining of an employee, the Group strictly
implements the relevant processes of employment, so that the employee’s
data file, including identity and age, will be reviewed thoroughly to
prevent the occurrence of child labor. During the review, any child or
forged identity data found will be handled in accordance with the law. The
Group strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations of the jurisdiction in
the place of operation, signing labor contracts with employees according
to law and pays social insurance and protects the personal privacy of
employees in strict accordance with provisions.

In addition, our staff handbook and labor contracts have set out details
concerning the arrangements about working hours, overtime, leave and
dismissal. The Group’s implementations are carried out in a unified
manner according to standard working hours to ensure that the working
hours of employees are reasonable. Employees are not forced to work
and, if overtime is required, they need to obtain approval in advance and
receive paid leave afterwards. In the case of forced labor, employees
have the right to appeal to the Group’s Personnel Administration Center.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had not identified any employment
of child labor and forced labor and no labor dispute had happened.
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COMMITMENT TO THE COMMUNITY

The Group always attaches great importance to the establishment and
maintenance of harmonious relations with the community and society. The
Group’s priorities include, but are not limited to, recruiting and cultivating
outstanding university graduates in the place of operation to take up
positions dedicated to game development and operations. In 2021, the
Group sent a total of 4 employees to visit higher education schools in
Guangzhou to conduct 2-day campus presentations and recruitment
activities and received enthusiastic responses. Promoting the employment
of university students through such activities is an effective measure for
achieving economic development and social harmony.

In respect of the requests by relevant administrative departments in
accordance with laws and regulations for the supervision and inspection
on the Company, the Group actively cooperates with them to ensure the
fulfilment of its own social responsibilities and obligations.
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CHARITY

Since COVID-19 Outbreak in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across China and other countries in the world. To shoulder our social
responsibilities and offer humanitarian support, the Group has promptly
launched an assistance scheme in response to the COVID-19 Outbreak.
Under this scheme, the Group has mobilised its global subsidiaries to
procure medical masks, protective gowns and other medical supplies and
has donated the same to front-line medical professionals and institutions
in China.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group’s commitment to combating unethical business practices,
including bribery, fraud, corruption, extortion and money laundering, can
be reflected in our Anti-fraud Management System. Employees should
report to us by phone or email if there is any suspected misconduct.
The relevant departments of the Group will seriously investigate the
misconduct allegations based on our internal protocols and make
rectification in a professional and timely manner. Divulgement of any
relevant information is strictly prohibited and offenders will be handled
in a solemn manner. A code of ethics and conduct will also be included
in the staff handbook. We will do our utmost to ensure that employees
pay attention to the code and make it part of our daily activities, so as
to create a corporate culture that upholds righteousness and integrity.
The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of China
against Money Laundering. We have not experienced any confirmed
matters or open legal proceedings involving the Group or its employees
over extortion, bribery, fraud, and money laundering during FY2021. All
the directors have received annual training in anti-fraud policies and
requirements, which includes the definitions and forms of fraud, anti-fraud
reporting channels, punishment for fraud cases, etc.

COMMITMENT TO THE SUPPLY CHAIN

As a responsible company, we attach great importance to environmental
and social factors and are committed to sustainable operations. Similarly,
we also expect our suppliers to be self-disciplined, thereby making
a positive influence on the supply chain. We have signed a code of
conduct with suppliers that requires them to meet the legal requirements
concerning occupational health and safety, anti-discrimination,
environmental protection, anti-corruption and anti-fraud.

We conduct preliminary assessment of quality and pricing for introducing
new suppliers. In purchasing important materials, such as servers,
computers and printers, qualified new suppliers will be recorded on
a supplier list. Under normal circumstances, the list should have at
least three different suppliers in each category so as to disperse the
risk arising from any of the suppliers due to disqualification or our
termination of cooperation. For the existing suppliers, we conduct an
annual assessment to maintain the most desirable list of suppliers. We
will review the prices, product quality, payment terms, delivery and after-
sales services of product suppliers as well as the service quality, staff
qualification and sense of cooperation of service providers. In addition,
the Group will also continuously evaluate and monitor suppliers for their
track record of handling social issues in the past. For suppliers who fail to
meet the standards of the Group, the cooperation with these suppliers will
be terminated.
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Considering the potential environmental and social impacts of the supply
chain, the Group takes into account the performance of environmental
protection, occupational health and safety, labour rights and compliance
with laws and regulations when selecting potential suppliers, with an
aim to bringing positive impacts to the entire supply chain. For example,
when inviting bids from travel suppliers, the Group requires the bidders
to comply with the Bidding Law of the PRC ((FF# A R FIERIZSX)) and
the Procurement Law of the PRC ({(FhZE AR HEAMBIERIEE)) in the bidding
process. Bidders are also required to protect the safety of employees in
accordance with the Labour Law of the PRC ((F#E AR KB EE))
and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC ((FFEARKMELHAEFRE)).
The Group also requires its bidders to pay taxes according to law.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group has 46 major qualified
suppliers, 28 are located in Mainland China, 12 are located in Hong Kong,
Macao and Taiwan, and 6 are located in other countries and regions.

COMMITMENT TO THE ENVIRONMENT
Emissions reduction

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations, such as
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Protection
and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation,
and vigorously advocates green office. Neither any significant exhaust
emissions and significant direct greenhouse gas emissions nor any water
and land pollution and hazardous and non-hazardous waste generation
and the like have been identified in the daily business operations of
the Group, and our business will not have any significant impact on the
environment and natural resources. The Group’s products are online
games and do not need to consume packaging materials. The main
consumption of resources is concentrated in the electricity and water
consumed in the Group’s operating premises and diesel oil used by
the Company’s vehicles. The Group spares no effort in environmental
protection. The Group adopts the low-carbon office concept in reducing
emissions, uses various measures including encouraging employees to
use public transport instead of private cars to reduce emissions, and
smoking is strictly prohibited in all parts of the office premises. Due
to these measures, the Group has been maintaining a relatively low
level of emissions, and such emission level does not pose significant
environmental and social impacts. Emissions are not considered as
material in relation to the Group’s businesses, therefore no emission
targets are in place during the year ended December 31, 2021.
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As an internet enterprise, the Group identified the two major sources
of waste: scrapped IT equipment and printing consumables. Therefore,
the Group has adopted corresponding measures to reduce resource
consumption, encourage recycling and reduce waste generation.For
scrapped IT equipment, including hosts, monitors and other equipment,
the Group will deal with it accordingly according to the situation of the
equipment.First,they are sorted according to the Company’s operational
needs and reusable parts are reserved for recycling and reuse purposes.
As such, the actual life cycle of electronic devices can be extended and
the aim of reducing the environmental hazard arising from electronic
product manufacturing can be achieved. Lastly, for dysfunctional
equipment, the Group will hire an electronic equipment recycling agency
to recycle it. By making rational use of such electronic equipment recycled
through these two major ways, the equipment can also be reused,
thereby reducing environmental pollution caused by electronic waste.
For printing consumables, the Group has engaged a printer maintenance
service provider to handle maintenance and repair of printers at several
offices to avoid the increased use of printing consumables due to the
aging and failure of printers. Going paperless in all work processes is
encouraged in the Group, with aims to reduce the use of paper and
printing consumables. Waste management is not considered as material
in relation to the Group’s businesses, therefore no reduction targets are
in place during the reporting year.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the papers recycled by the
Group amounted to approximately 466 kg.

Resource efficiency

The Group advocates the concept of environmental protection, energy
conservation and low carbon office. To save natural resources, we have
taken the following actions:

. Emails, instant communication tools and WeChat at Work are used
and employees are not encouraged to print paper. Only necessary
documents are printed and double-sided printing and paper recycling
are being promoted. The Group encourages paperless processes in
work attendance approval, application for using conference rooms
and internal announcements, etc.

. For used materials in offline activities, recyclable materials are used

and used materials are recycled as far as possible to comply with
the principle of recycling.
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. The Group advocates energy saving and emission reduction,
responds to green procurement. Priority is given to energy-saving
lighting and other energy-saving appliances in purchasing to reduce
electricity consumption.

. Air conditioners are turned off during non-working hours or when
the office occupancy rate is low. In non-summer seasons like winter,
the use of air conditioners is suspended to reduce exhaust gas and
electricity consumption. New office premises are equipped with
transparent glass to increase the transparency and lighting, thus
reducing the need for office lights and reducing energy consumption.

. Signs reminding employees to save water are posted in toilets to
enhance employees’ awareness of water conservation.

Due to the above measures, the Group has been maintaining a relatively
low level of electricity and water consumptions, and such consumption
level does not pose significant environmental and social impacts.

Energy use and water consumption are not considered material in relation
to the Group’s businesses, therefore no energy use and water efficiency
targets are in place during the year ended December 31, 2021.

The Group has not encountered any difficulties in sourcing suitable water
sources, and The Group’s offices has a stable water supply which meets
its daily operational needs.

Climate Change

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of online games
publication. Given the operation model of the Group, we consider there is
no climate-related issues that could have material impact on the Group.
Nevertheless, we continue to pay close attention to the possible impact of
climate change on our business, strategy and financial performance, and
fully support global climate-related actions.
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COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE
Prevention of bribery and corruption

mEmMERER
Bh L BB B B AL RS

2021 2020
Indicators EE —E-—fF —ZT-FF
Cases involving bribery, extortion, fraud and W RENERE - $IR - MEFRIERE
money laundering (number of cases) RS CR) 0 0
Product and service quality ERRkREEE
Service performance: MRHG &R -
2021 2020
Indicators EBE —F=— —T-FTF
Legal cases in which products and services are
suspected of safety and health issues (number E & MRS H % 2 B
of case) FAREM (R) 0 0
Cases in which products and services are
suspected of infringing intellectual property EmERESEREILMNBEREN
rights (number of case) ZMHHE (R) (] 0
Complaints due to divulgement of customer
information (number of complaint) ERFER P13 B miE B R &0 (h) 0 0

Approximately  Approximately

Number of products and service related complaints 78 28 1A 2 & M BR 75 B0 1% 57 25 B 20,270 22,200
received — Address players’ questions (incidence) - FRZ TR M (X) #20,270 4922,200
Emissions’ BEm

Air pollutant emissions (office vehicles)?: RESREMBER (P ARE) 2:

2021 2020

Indicators BE —E-—F —ETHF

Nitrogen oxide (NOXx) (kilogram) Aafky (=) 1.28 1.60

Sulphur oxides (SOx) (kilogram) ek () 0.03 0.07

1 The Group’s business scope involves a small amount of paper and e-waste
emissions. As the data collection system is still in the process of being
established, the related data is not disclosed in the ESG report.

2 The calculation method and the emission factor of air pollutant emissions
were established with reference to the Technical Guide for Air Pollutant
Emission Inventory for Road Vehicles (Trial) issued by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC. The scope of calculation of air
pollutant emissions in 2020 includes 2 private car owned and used by
the Group, and the scope of calculation of air pollutant emissions in 2021
includes 2 private cars owned and used by the Group.
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Greenhouse gas emissions: BE RSN
2021 2020

Indicators BE —E=-— —TFTF
Direct greenhouse gas emission®: RERBEEHRNE
Office vehicles

(kilograms of carbon dioxide equivalent) RARBE(FTR-E(REE 4,357.00 10,393.85
Average total direct greenhouse gas emissions

by each employee* (kilograms of carbon B EBTFHRERBERENEE

dioxide equivalent per person) (Fr=—&t ﬁ?éi//\) 25.62 59.39
Indirect greenhouse gas emission®: AEREREENE
Purchased electricity

(kilograms of carbon dioxide) SNBE ) (T8 kiR) 169,823.98 175,655.11
Average total indirect greenhouse gas emissions

by each employee (kilograms of carbon BEE P RAEREREHlNESE

dioxide per person) (Fr=—&tix/A) 998.96 1,003.74

3 The calculation method and the calculation of emission factors were established
pursuant to the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas
Emissions from Land-based Transportation Enterprises (Trial) issued by the

National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC.

4 The number of employees was derived from the total number of employees
of the Group as at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively.

5 The scope of calculation of indirect greenhouse gas emissions includes
the indirect greenhouse gas emissions of our business generated by the
use of purchased electricity. The calculation method and the calculation of
emission factor of emission were established with reference to the “Notice
on Making 2018 Annual Carbon Emission Report and Verification and
Emission Monitoring Plan” — the 2015 national grid average emission factor
in the 2018 carbon emission supplementary data accounting report template
issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC.
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Use of resources

BRER

Energy consumption: BEIRERE
2021 2020
Indicators B —E-—F ZECTF
Purchased electricity (kilowatts-hour) SNEE S (FEF) 292,296.00 287,912.00
Average electricity consumption by BEEFHENERRSE
each employee (kilowatts-hour per person) (FTEF,A) 1,719.39 1,645.21
Gasoline (liter) (A F) 1,860.00 3,100.00
Average total gasoline consumption by BiEB T THERRE
each employee (liter per person) (2F/AN) 10.94 17.71
Total energy consumption (megawatt-hour)? wiEE KRR e 309.60 316.75
Average total energy consumption by
each employee (megawatt-hour per person)  Efifg B P lfEEE KEH,A) 1.82 1.81
Paper consumption: R EREE -
2021 2020
Indicators EBE —EZ—F —E2EF
Total paper consumption (kilogram) FRMREE (F=) 298.00 358.34
Average total paper consumption by
each employee (kilogram per person) BEEFERAREE (TR A) 1.75 2.05

The total energy consumption includes private cars owned and used by
the Group and purchased electricity. The calculation method and related
references are factored, given in Appendix Il of the How to Prepare an
Environmental, Social and Governance Report: Reporting Guidelines for
Environmental KPIs A2.1 issued by the Stock Exchange, “Motor Gasoline”
GB 17930-2016 — Table 3 Technical Requirements issued by the General
Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the
PRC, the Standardization Administration of the PRC and Testing Party for
Motor Gasoline (VIA), and Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting
of Greenhouse Gas Emission of Enterprises in Other Industrial Industries
indicating that the low calorie-generating value of gasoline is 44.80 GJ/
tonne (Trial) — Table 2.1 Default values for common fossil fuel characteristic
parameters issued by the National Development and Reform Commission of
the PRC.
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Water consumption8: KOBEFERE -
2021 2020
Indicators B —E-—fF —EEF
Total water consumption (cubic meter) FRK#BE (3L75K) 1,415.00 1,421.00
Proportion of outsourced tap water (%) SME B ROKIE L (%) 100 100
Total water consumption by each person
(cubic meter per person) SuRERAKEE CIHKAN) 8.32 8.12
Employment E1E
Employee composition: EE 45K :
2021 2020
Indicators B —E-—fF —EEF
Number of employee (number)’ BEAE(A)T 170 175
By gender RIERIE D
Female employee (number) ZE R (AN) 65 60
Male employee (number) SEE(AN) 105 115
By different employment types REFENES
Full-time(number) 2HES (AN) 169 175
Part-time(number) FRES (A) 1 0
By geographical areas ZiEE D
The Mainland of China (number) PRI A (A) 164 170
Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan (number) BRaE (A) 2 1
Other countries and regions (number) HAb B R EibE (A) 4 4
By age group RERRE D
Below 30 (number)? 308 AT (A) 85 96
30 — 50 (number)? 30-507%% (A) 80 76
Above 50 (number)? 5058 A £ (A) 5 3
7 The number of employees was derived from the total number of employees 7 IHEEABBESABE_Z_—F+=_A=+

of the Group as at December 31,
respectively.

DA

2021 and December 31,

2020,

—HEEHEZ
BAH -

ZEES+_A=+—HONEERRE

—T - FFR @

BREBHEEERR
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Employee turnover ratio: EERAKLLE:
2021 2020
Indicators B —E-—F ZECTF
By gender RIERIE D
Female employee turnover ratio (%) g B RN (%) 32 20
Male employee turnover ratio (%) BB RKILLLE (%) 32 23
By geographical areas i EE D
The Mainland of China employee
turnover ratio (%) Fp A3 8 B 7T R EE (%) 83 22
Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan
employee turnover ratio (%) PER A R B RN (%) 0 0
Other countries and regions employee
turnover ratio (%) HMER &M E S K (%) 50 0
By age group RERED
Below 30 employee turnover ratio (%) 3055 A NME B i Kb (%) 53 22
30 - 50 employee turnover ratio (%) 30-507% 1 B /R Kb b (%) 13 22
Above 50 employee turnover ratio (%) 5055 LA _E{R B KAt (%) 0 0
Occupational health and safety BERERZE
Health and safety of employees: BIRREZS :
2021 2020
Indicators B —B-—F —ECTF
Number of work-related fatalities occurred
in the past three years including the BE=F (BEREFE)
reporting year® (number) EIT®mAZ(A) 0 0
Ratio of work-related fatalities occurred® (%) AT TR (%) 0 0
Days of work lost due to industrial injury (days) ET{ZEBLITERH(K) 0 0
8 Industrial fatality data and industrial injury data refer to work-related fatality 8 TITTHEHERIEEBEHERSANERATSRER
stories and industrial injury incidents recognized by the Bureau of Human REMAITHEHRIESHE -
Resources and Social Security.
9 Ratio of work-related fatalities occurred= Number of work-related fatalities 9 ATTHHE=FITHASBES AE -

occurred/total number of employees.
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Development and training B R BT
Employee training: BIHE :
2021 2020
Indicators B —E-—F ZECTF
Total training hours IR 2R (/) 148.50 330.00
Per capita training hours (hours per person NEE: 7 A UNS PPN 0.87 1.89
Per capita training hours by male employees
(hours per person) SRS AIEIIRE (N A) 0.87 1.89
Ratio of training by male employees (%) SMHEEZIIE S (%) 66 66
Per capita training hours by female employees
(hours per person) Z R B AR B (N A) 0.87 1.89
Ratio of training by female employees (%) ZMHEBZINE D (%) 34 34
Per capita training hours by management
employees (hours per person) S EREB ARSI A) 0.82 1.91
Ratio of training by management employees (%) &R EEEZIIE D (%) 6 6
Per capita training hours by Non-management
employee (hours per person) IFERERB ADEIEREE (N A) 0.88 1.88
Ratio of training by Non-management
employee (%) FEBEREZINEDL(%) 94 94
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INDEX OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
ISSUED BY THE HONG KONG STOCK

ERBXORE - HERERR
&Hi55]) &5

EXCHANGE
General —REE
disclosures Related sections in REEE ESGHER
and KPIs Description the ESG report MIBE it EBES
Environmental Aspect REHE
Aspect A1: Emissions EBEA1: B
General Information on: Emissions reduction —REE | BEERRREREBHN - | HOBK
Disclosure (a) the policies; and FKRTHEES - BER
(b) compliance with relevant laws and BEBEZVINEESH
regulations that have a significant (a) B : &
impact on the issuer relating to air (b) BFHETAREATE
and greenhouse gas emissions, HIER AR RGN E
discharges into water and land, and o
generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective | Comprehensive KPI A1.1 | BERUTEEE RABREBE IR | SRE B
emissions data. performance =35
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in | Comprehensive KPIA1.2 | RERBEHNE (LAME | GEEN
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | performance )k (mER)=mE (WG |&RER
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per ESEN - GERETE) -
facility).
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in Data collection KPIA13 |FESXESEENESE (A | WEBR
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | system in the process MEEtE) R (ER)RE (I | EuH
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per | of being established NEESEN - GERME
facility). ) o
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in | Data collection KPIA14 |FEEEEEEDES LA | WERR
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | system in the process MEEtE) R (EA)RE (I | #uH
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per | of being established NBEEEN - SERMER
facility). g)o
KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and | Emissions reduction KPIA1.5 | VB BERERIER | AR
steps taken to achieve them. REDELE ZMERK S
o
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- | Emissions reduction KPIA1.6 |flEEEEREEEEY | HIHEKR
hazardous wastes are handled, and a B 0% - KA PTRT S EDR
description of reduction target(s) set and BEEERAEIELEEM
steps taken to achieve them. FREE B o
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General —REE

disclosures Related sections in REARE ESGHRER

and KPIs Description the ESG report Mg i BRED

Aspect A2: Use of Resources EBEA2: §REMR

General Policies on the efficient use of Resource efficiency —REE | ERERER(BEER K| BREE

Disclosure resources, including energy, water and RE M RMEL) B
other raw materials.

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Comprehensive KPI A2.1 | ZERESMEER /B |HAEX
consumption by type (e.g. electricity, performance ERR(E - |3oh) @ | R%
gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and EUATETREFE)RE
intensity (e.g. per unit of production B (WABESER - BIBR
volume, per facility). et E) °

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity | Comprehensive KPIA2.2 |BFKERTE (WUBES |GAEN
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per |performance Bf - BIEHRBETE) =#H
facility).

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Resource efficiency KPI A2.3 | fHilge R et 8l FT | BRCE
initiatives and results achieved. BRRE -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue | Comprehensive KPI A2.4 | filSkKEGEAKE LRI BEE | GREER
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, | performance, RE - ARATETRAK | R
water efficiency target(s) set and steps | Resource efficiency BamAERAEIELRE |ERME
taken to achieve them. FTERER ) 25 8%

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for Not applicable KPIA2.5 |ZmTAREMENEE | TER
finished products (in tonnes) and, if (AMEETE) & (WER) 8%
applicable, with reference to per unit EBAhE -
produced.

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources EBHEA3: BIERRAER

General Policies on minimising the issuer's Not applicable —REE | REBTAHRRERARE | TEA

Disclosure significant impact on the environment TRIEKE R BEHUR
and natural resources.

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of | Not applicable KPIA3.1 |l EBEHHRERRA | THEHA
activities on the environment and natural ﬁ?ﬁﬂ’]ék%%&ﬁﬁéﬁi%ﬁ
resources and the actions taken to BEETENT
manage them.

Aspect A4:Climate Change BHEA4: RIEEL

General Policies on identification and mitigation of | Climate Change —BEE |HAIREHEERTEEY |REEL

Disclosure significant climate-related issues which BITANEAER %E’Jiﬁﬁﬂ
have impacted, and those which may BEEEERHECER -
impact, the issuer.

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- Climate Change BRER |HAEERITEEHETA |RIEE(L
related issues which have impacted, and BiEA41 )Xi ENBARIEIRES
those which may impact, the issuer, and - RESTTH
the actions taken to manage them.

-

iz

REEEEFRART —TZ—FFH
°s

g

= B




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
5 HERERRE ()

activities.

General —RiRE

disclosures Related sections in REEE ESGHER

and KPIs Description the ESG report MIEE it BRED

Social Aspect HEHE

Aspect B1: Employment BEB1: ERE

General Information on: Equal opportunity, —REE | BETHREE BERE | TEHRE -

Disclosure (a) the policies; and caring for talents and e TIERE - BRE - TE | BBRAS
(b) compliance with relevant laws and | Labor standards e - - Jiﬁﬁ%& LR

regulations that have a significant A 1538 J A A Y

impact on the issuer relating to (@) BUKR + &

compensation and dismissal, (b) BTFHBEITABEATE
recruitment and promotion, EEBERE RRDINE
working hours, rest periods, e

equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment | Comprehensive KPIB1.1 |ZMR - BEEE - FikM |GEEX
type, age group and geographical performance PIktEEDHEERY - | KRB
region.

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age | Comprehensive KPIB1.2 |#ZMAI « FRERIRInEE |GEER
group and geographical region. performance DEMEERKLR - E$5)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety BHEB2: RRERZ2

General Information on: Occupational health —MWE |EEREZEIERELMR |BEER

Disclosure (a) the policies; and and safety EEESSEBREMSEN : |HRE
(b) compliance with relevant laws and (a) B : &

regulations that have a significant (b) BTFHBEITABEATZ
impact on the issuer relating to IR AR RABINE
providing a safe working environment we

and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Comprehensive KPIB2.1 |EATEBEMETHAERL |HKAEX
fatalities. performance [ Es)

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Comprehensive KPI B2.2 THEEAIERE - EAEM

performance Eee)

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and | Occupational health KPI B2.3 |filFTEEMRBREREST | BERE
safety measures adopted, how they are |and safety 2 ANBBERTRE (8272
implemented and monitored. WA o

Aspect B3: Development and Training BEB3: &R RE

General Policies on improving employees’ Staff development —WRE |FRRAREETIERE |BEIERE

Disclosure knowledge and skills for discharging BRI R R BE A BOR o it
duties at work. Description of training EINEE o
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General —REE

disclosures Related sections in REARE ESGHRER

and KPIs Description the ESG report Mg i BRED

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Comprehensive KPIB3.1 |#ZURIRESER (WERE | GEEX
by gender and employee category performance BE HHREEE)EINT | KR
(e.g. senior management, middle JEEEAL -
management).

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed | Comprehensive KPIB3.2 |ZMFIREERRES & |HFaEX
per employee by gender and employee | performance HEBTRXIINTRE - | KB
category.

Aspect B4: Labor Standards BEB4: B TER

General Information on: Labor standards —REE | BEBEETISSGST LEER|

Disclosure (a) the policies; and B
(b) compliance with relevant laws and (a) B : &

regulations that have a significant (b) BFHETAREATE
impact on the issuer relating to HEBER RO E
preventing child and forced labor. o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labor standards KPI B4.1 | filiig s RISEFIMEEIL | SE%ER|
employment practices to avoid child and WEETRAGST -
forced labor.

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate | Labor standards KPIB4.2 |filli7EERERIE RN ER | 48%ER|
such practices when discovered. BEBRFTRRA S -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management EBEB5: HEHEERE

General Policies on managing environmental and | Commitment to the —RRE | ERHERNRERIERE | HHER

Disclosure social risks of the supply chain. supply chain BRERER o P

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Commitment to the KPIB5.1 |RitBEISHIHERmEE - | HtER
region. supply chain )

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Commitment to the KPI B5.2 | il & RIHE AR A it e
to engaging suppliers, number of supply chain Bl MERTERERNNE |MEE
suppliers where the practices are EEEE - ARBERTR
being implemented, and how they are ERFE -
implemented and monitored.

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify | Commitment to the KPIB5.3 |fiilEBAAIHERTER |HitEn
environmental and social risks along supply chain EIRRIE R 2R AIE B EGh
the supply chain, and how they are Bl - A RABERITRESRR
implemented and monitored. & o

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote | Resource efficiency KPI B5.4 |filfEREHEARREES |BRKE
environmentally preferable products FRREmMRRBHIED -
and services when selecting suppliers, ARARBERITRERAE »
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

FEHREEBEEFRAT T —FFH
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against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

RIFMEE RFRER -

General —REE
disclosures Related sections in REARE ESGHRER
and KPIs Description the ESG report MIEE it BRED
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility [EEB6: EmEE
General Information on: Commitment to —MEE |FEMREELNRBENE |HEPH
Disclosure (a) the policies; and customers FHze  BEEERL | &G
(b) compliance with relevant laws and | Advertising labels BEEURERTER BEEE
regulations that have a significant Healthy network (@) BUR + & {2 B A s
impact on the issuer relating to health (b) BTFHBEITABEATE
and safety, advertising, labelling and FIER AR RN E
privacy matters relating to products o
and services provided and methods
of redress.
KPI1 6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Not applicable KPI 6.1 |EEHEEXEREHT e
shipped subject to recalls for safety and %2 % B {fR RO 1 7 [ Y £
health reasons. EFa=a
KPI1 6.2 Number of products and service related | Commitment to KPI 6.2 |ZEMNERKRBENHEF |HEPH
complaints received and how they are | customers EEUREEHE - HGh
dealt with.
KPI 6.3 Description of practices relating to Intellectual property KPI 6.3 |filEERRIFMAERE | MHERE
observing and protecting intellectual BEWED -
property rights.
KPI 6.4 Description of quality assurance process | Commitment to KP16.4 |fillEERTHRERERD |HEFEH
and recall procedures. customers W - EE
KPI 6.5 Description of consumer data protection | Data security KPI 6.5 |fHilHEEEEMRERILRE |#ER2
and privacy policies, how they are B AREBERTRESR |ABRE
implemented and monitored. Fik e
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption EB@EB7: RES
General Information on: Anti-corruption —RWE | BEMLEEE  BR - BEF | RER
Disclosure (a) the policies; and Rk B -
(b) compliance with relevant laws and (@) B% : &
regulations that have a significant (b) BFHBEITABEATE
impact on the issuer relating to HEBER RRDINE
bribery, extortion, fraud and money o
laundering.
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Comprehensive KPIB7.1 | RERBALEITASEHE |GLEEX
regarding corrupt practices brought performance ERHWEBENETHA £
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General — RN E
disclosures Related sections in REARE ESGHER
and KPIs Description the ESG report MIgE it EBES
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and | Anti-corruption KPIB7.2 |k E®miET @ |RER
whistle-blowing procedures, how they LARABRAIENTT R K ©
are implemented and monitored.
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training Anti-corruption KPIB7.3 |ilmEZLETIRENR |RER

provided to directors and staff.

)55

Aspect B8: Community Investment

BEBS: HERE

General Policies on community engagement Commitment to the —REE | BRENAAE2EREREE | HHLEN

Disclosure to understand the needs of the community et B &R E Mg H%f% =
communities where the issuer operates EEEE B ERIEAECR o
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Commitment to the KPIB8.1 | Z X EEEE (IHE « 15 | HHEN
education, environmental concerns, community SECBIFEk @K X |[E#
labour needs, health, culture, sport). £ 888)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or | Commitment to the KPIB8.2 |EZF&EMEAER (NS | LHLEH
time) to the focus area. community o) o G
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on November 24,
2014 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Group is a leading global online game
publisher for China-based game developers, with fast-growing in-house
development capabilities for mobile games.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown
under Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue and operating profit for the year by principal activities is
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report and Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, particulars of important events affecting the Group during
the year, and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, could be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report. In addition, a discussion on
relationships with its key stakeholders is included in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”. The review and
discussion form part of this directors’ report.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEemE (E)

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated results of the Group for FY2021 are set out on pages
116 to 122 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final
dividend for FY2021 (FY2020: nil).

There is no arrangement in which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company currently does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. The amount of dividends actually distributed to the
Shareholders will depend on the Company’s earnings and financial
condition, operating requirements, capital requirements and any other
conditions that the Directors may deem relevant and will be subject to
approval of the Shareholders. The Board has the absolute discretion to
recommend any dividends.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from June 16,
2022 to June 21, 2022, both days inclusive, and during which period
no share transfer will be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM to be
held on June 21, 2022. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
2022 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m. on June 15, 2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 14 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group during
FY2021 are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements on
page 170 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment protection
and has not noted any material non-compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
has implemented environmental protection measures and has also
encouraged staff to be environmental friendly at work by consuming the
electricity and paper according to actual needs, so as to reduce energy
consumption and minimize unnecessary waste. For further details of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance, please refer to the
section of “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual
report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during FY2021
are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
190 to 191 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during FY2021 are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 192 to 195 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2021, the Company’s distributable reserves were
US$33.1 million.

BORROWINGS

As at December 31, 2021, the Company did not have any bank
borrowings.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the
laws of Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO amounted to approximately US$35.4
million after deducting share issuance costs and listing expenses. During
FY2021, the net proceeds from the listing were utilised in accordance
with the proposed applications set out in the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, with the balance
unutilised amounting to approximately US$8.8 million. The balance of
fund will continue to be utilised according to the manner as disclosed
in the Prospectus. The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in short-
term deposits with licensed institutions in Hong Kong. In 2022, the
Company will use the proceeds raised from the IPO in accordance with
its development strategies, market conditions and intended use of such
proceeds. Details are set out in the following table:

Net amount

BERLRBERSRRFEAR
ARRRERARBEEMSTIRFERISAAEE
BN BETRAR EHRX) - R-T=—§
BEE - EOAEFRIEFEEREARRNARE
RIARREE RS FIEMS | —HprE e R T
- MABARIBAARNRS.8ASBET - FIAME
HREBERRERREZ AEHA - FEEKRD
RS RIRF AR BRI T RN BB
B 2% ARAMRBEEERRE 5
BRARERARBEESHSTIENEE RS  BAZ
FHHE - HRBA TR

Unutilised

available as at
December 31,

Actual net
amount utilised

amount as at
December 31,

Expected timeline for
utilising the remaining

2020 during FY2021 2021 net proceeds ™ot
BE-Z-ZH -2 BE-Z=--F%
+T=ZA=+—8H BBREE tZA=+—-H BAKRTHESREFEN
AHE AR BERDAFR HABASE BHRBRYE
Usb’ 000 Usb’ 000 Usb’ 000
FT=x F=x T=rn
Investment 7,429.7 452.6 6,977.1  Expected to be fully utilised on or
before June 30, 2022
%4 BHR =T =—FA=1tHZZH
EHHA
Development and research 3,908.3 2,075.0 1,833.3  Expected to be fully utilised on or
before December 31, 2022
8 BT BN T __F+RA=+t—H%
ZAEHEA
Expansion of online game business - - —  Fully utilised
BREBESRE BEEHHA
Marketing and advertisement - - —  Fully utilised
e BEEHHA
Working capital and other general - - —  Fully utilised
corporate purposes
EEEe REM—REXAR BEEHHA
Total 11,338.0 2,527.6 8,810.4

st

Note: The expected timeline for utilising the remaining net proceeds is based on the
best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group. It will be
subject to changes based on the current and future development of the market

conditions.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021

M BRBRTHASRBEFENESNEBRRUAAEEYNA
BIORAREHEEKE - &R R RS
MERA PR -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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DIRECTORS

During FY2021 and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
consists of the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Yuanfeng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. HUANG Guozhan
Mr. HUANG Degiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor CHAU Chi Wai, Wilton (appointed with effect from
June 2, 2021)

Ms. Imma LING Kit-sum (retired with effect from June 2, 2021)

Mr. LI Yi Wen

Mr. LU Qibo

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 19 to 25
in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a specific term of one to three years commencing from
the date of the respective service contracts, which may be terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the
executive Director or the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a specific term of one to three
years commencing from the date of the respective appointment letters,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either of the Director or the Company. Under the respective
appointment letters, each of the independent non-executive Directors is
entitled to a fixed Director’s fee.

The appointments of the Directors are subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTRACT WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries during FY2021 or subsisted at the end of the year and no
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by a Controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries was entered into during FY2021 or subsisted at the end of
the year.
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DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements contained in this
annual report, no transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to
the business of the Group which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or any entity connected with such a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during FY2021.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation given
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest
paid individual in the Group are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report respectively.

For FY2021, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any Director or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
Directors has waived any emoluments for FY2021.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are
payable, for FY2021, by our Group to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

During FY2021, none of the Directors or their respective close associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than being a director of the Company and/or
its subsidiaries.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have any
other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the
Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On November 24, 2017, each of the Controlling Shareholders entered
into the deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) in
favor of the Company, pursuant to which the Controlling Shareholders
have irrevocably, jointly and severally given certain non-competition
undertakings to the Company. Details of the Deed of Non-competition
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus.

The Controlling Shareholders confirmed that they have complied with
the Non-competition Deed for FY2021. The independent non-executive
Directors have conducted such review for FY2021 and also reviewed the
relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the Deed of Non-competition
has been fully complied with.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters, no
contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or in
existence as at the end of the year or at any time during FY2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During FY2021, other than the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as set out
in the section under “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme” and consolidated
financial statements, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement.
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LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During FY2021, the Group had not made any loan or provided any
guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, senior
management of the Company, the Controlling Shareholders or their
respective connected persons.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On May 27, 2017, the Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme approved by the resolutions of our Shareholders. The purpose
of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
employees, Directors and other participants, and to provide a means of
compensating them through the grant of options (“Options”) pursuant
to the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme for their contribution
to the growth and profits of the Group, and to allow such employees,
Directors and other persons to participate in the growth and profitability of
the Group.

Our Board has appointed The Core Trust Company Limited as the trustee
(“Trustee”) for the administration of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
and to hold the Shares which may be granted under the Options through
Epic City Limited (“Nominee”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Trustee.
The Trustee shall act in accordance and cooperate with our Board for
the purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. Our Company will
use Shares held by the Nominee and new Shares to be allotted by us to
satisfy the Options upon exercise.

BERRER

RZZBZ—HHREFE - Zl-‘%llﬁﬁm??i{{ﬂ%
HEESBEAARAES 2R 8E « ERRK
%T,\u B H)#8; $/\if’ﬁﬁ}ﬂ%

BRARBERBRESS

R-_E—+tFRA-+ LR ARRARAERLH
%éf’%’éﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁzwlm%%@hﬁiﬁi%ﬁﬁtxﬁ =P
AFEBEERBEERBE ERS S EE

CEBEREMSERE Iﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁéx'ﬂﬂﬁvﬂ%%
%Hﬂ%ﬁ%‘]ﬁ’] TR IR i e ([ AR ARE ] B Al 1
HAREEAER N8N AEHA TR - AREZ
EE EERHEMALTSEAEBENERRAT
# o

%

& 4H1 B ‘Uﬂﬂ

EE g ZEThe Core Trust Company Limited{E
AZAANZEREA]D)  BEERALRABEEERE
5T 2| X% BEpic City Limited([REBA ] FFEAH
2EMBRRFERBEBEREAERDNRS -
RAANERBEEER R AREERERETE
WEMITEREEFTEEE - ARABERBHRE
ARERRG REBRMEENTRD - METE
BREFHFE -

EREHEEBRL

—E—FFH



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEERE (H)

Existing Shares held by the Nominee

The Shares which may be transferred from the Nominee upon exercise
of all Options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 149,999,973 Shares (i.e. being the Shares held by the
Nominee representing 7.5% of the enlarged issued share capital of our
Company as of the Listing Date). Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be counted
for the purpose of calculating this limit. For the avoidance of doubt,
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules only applies to the grant of options over
new shares or other new securities of a listed issuer or its subsidiaries.
For the Options to be satisfied by transfer of the existing Shares from
the Nominee to the relevant participants of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme upon exercised, as there will be no new Share allotted by the
Company to satisfy these Options, such grants of Options were not and
will not be governed by Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

New Shares to be issued by our Company

The new Shares which may be issued by our Company upon exercise of
all Options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and
other share option schemes of our Company (and to which the provisions
of the Listing Rules are applicable) shall not exceed 200,000,000 Shares,
(i.,e. 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue on the Listing Date
(“Scheme Mandate Limit") and as of the date of this annual report).
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating this
Scheme Mandate Limit.

As of the date of this annual report, 200,000,000 Shares are available for
issue, which representing 10% of the total issued Shares.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of
the options granted to or to be granted to each eligible person under the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue.
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An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be determined
by our Board at its absolute discretion and notified by our Board to each
grantee of the Options (the “Grantee”) as being the period during which
an Option may be exercised and in any event, such period shall not be
longer than 10 years from the date upon which any particular Option is
granted in accordance with the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. Options
may be vested over such period(s) as determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion subject to compliance with the requirements under
any applicable laws, regulations or rules.

The exercise price (“Exercise price”) shall be such price as determined
by our Board in its absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the
relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of
the grant of the Option), but in the case that any Share would be allotted
and issued to a Grantee upon the exercise of an Option in accordance
with the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Exercise Price
shall not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a Business Day, (b) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five (5) Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant,
and (c) the nominal value of a Share. For the avoidance of doubt, in the
case that the Share would be transferred from the Trustee to a Grantee
upon the exercise of an Option in accordance with the terms of the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme, the Exercise Price shall be determined by the
Board, as it may think fit taking into account the Grantee’s contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.

A summary of the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme has been
set out in the section headed “D. Share Incentive Scheme” in Appendix IV
of the Prospectus.
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On February 15, 2018, the Board approved to grant Options from the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to eligible employees for their past
contribution to the success of the Group, and to provide incentives to
them to further contribute to the Group, the details of which are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated February 20, 2018.

The Options are conditionally vested upon satisfying specified service
vesting condition, which is mutually agreed by the employees and
the Company. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
repurchase or settle the Options in cash.

On February 15, 2018, 49,498,610 Options, which are to be satisfied
solely by the Shares held by Epic City Limited when they are exercised,
were granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. No new
Share will be allotted to satisfy such Options. The vesting period of the
Options is three years and the vesting schedule is 33.33% after twelve
months from the grant date, 33.33% after twenty-four months from the
grant date, and 33.34% after thirty-six months from the grant date. The
Exercise Price of the Options granted is HK$0.0074 per Share (in respect
of 21,419,696 share options), or US$0.0074 per Share (in respect of
28,078,914 share options) (equivalent to HK$0.0579 per Share based on
the exchange rate of HK$1.00 to US$0.1279). As no new Shares will be
allotted by the Company to satisfy the Options, the grant of the Options is
not governed by Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The options granted vested as follows:

33.33% vested
Further 33.33% vested
Remaining 33.34% vested

On the 1st anniversary of the date of grant
On the 2nd anniversary of the date of grant
On the 3rd anniversary of the date of grant

No Option has been granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company
or an associate of any of them (as defined in the Listing Rules) since its
adoption and up to December 31, 2021.
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The Company has not granted any Options to be satisfied by new Shares
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. Details of movements of the
number of the Options to be satisfied by existing Shares held by the
Nominee under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme for FY2021 are set
out below:

ARRAREGRBEERAABERBIRES SR OME
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Outstanding
as at
December 31,

Outstanding Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2021
as at January 1, during during during (% of total
2021 FY2021 FY2021 FY2021 issued Shares) Exercise Price
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SECURITIES

As at December 31, 2021, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/
she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in
the register referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

Interest in Shares or Underlying Shares of our
Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest

ERBSITBRAERESNE

EDK ekt

o)

*iJr A=1+—B ARAEFL&ES
ﬁﬁl REREBEE (EERBHFLBE
1%1&5\]%XV4B)H§H§? - HBERO REFTEA (a)RiE
EFMPEROIEXVEFTRFE8NEBEMEAR
ﬂ&ﬁé‘ﬁ“ﬁﬁ(@?E*E%F‘“%&EﬂfﬂlﬂﬂE’]MS{ %
SIS REANERIORE) (D) IREBEEFSFR
HEEPIFE 3521 BCAZIGPIENERLRMT
(C)MARIFBZRETRIZAMEG AR R LI X r s sk
KB :

m]n\\

RARQFRDHEER DN ERS

Approximate
percentage of the
Number of ordinary Company'’s issued

shares interested" share capital

EARAREBITRAE
EEHE EEME BERSNEEREE MR B
Mr. LU Yuanfeng® Interest in controlled corporation; interest of 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
spouse; interest held jointly with another person
Boe R U S @ R EEER  REER  BE - ALTHRARKE
AR
Mr. HUANG Guozhan® Interest in controlled corporation; interest held 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
jointly with another person
wmEDESEA® THEEER BE - ATHRAFENER
Mr. HUANG Degiang® Interest in controlled corporation; interest held 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%

jointly with another person

HIBREE® EEGDEEER  BE - ATHERFENHEE

Notes:

(1)  The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2) Under the SFO, Mr. LU Yuanfeng is deemed to be interested in all Shares held
by LYF Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly owned by him. Mr.
LU Yuanfeng is also deemed to be interested in all Shares held by (i) Ms. LUO
Simin as Ms. LUO Simin is the spouse of Mr. LU Yuanfeng; and (ii) Mr. HUANG
Guozhan and Mr. HUANG Degiang as they are parties acting in concert.
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(3) Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Guozhan is deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by (i) LXT Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly owned by
him; and (ii) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG Degiang as
they are parties acting in concert.

(4) Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Degiang is deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by (i) HDQ Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly owned by
him; and (ii) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG Guozhan as
they are parties acting in concert.

Interest in associated corporation

(3) IBAREE 5 RIS 5 - EBUR L AR AR ()LXT
Digital Holdings Limited({¥ =& #BMAA]) : &
(iR A - BB L T REEHREE (ARE
SR-BUOTHAL)FH2HBRMFEEER -

(4) RIEF ARG R - FEREERIB RN ()HDQ
Digital Holdings Limited({#2&#BHAE]) + &
(iPERE A - BB LT RFEELE (BRE
ER—BITHAL) IR HROPHEEES

RAEEE B RS

Approximate
percentage of

Capacity/nature Number of shareholding
Name of Director Associated Corporation of interest Shares interest
EENE HHBEE 54 EmtE RIDEE BMAORET DL
Mr. LU Yuanfeng LYF Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100 100%
BRI 5T A LYF Digital Holdings Limited E=AEAA
Mr. HUANG Guozhan LXT Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100 100%
HEEE A LXT Digital Holdings Limited EnEBA
Mr. HUANG Degiang HDQ Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100 100%

B E

HDQ Digital Holdings Limited

BaEEAA

Note:

(1)  Under the SFO, a holding company is regarded as an “associated
corporation.” As of December 31, 2021, LYF Digital Holdings Limited, LXT
Digital Holdings Limited and HDQ Digital Holdings Limited held 27.64%,
2.85% and 4.91% of our issued share capital, respectively, and thus are our
associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme” and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at
December 31, 2021, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company has any interests and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

fi -

(1) RIBFHFRBAEGL - ZERARER A EE
ZE] BE_T=-_—F+=-ZA=+—H " LYF
Digital Holdings Limited * LXT Digital Holdings
Limited ,HDQ Digital Holdings Limited 2 Bl 4
BB BITIRAM27.64% ~ 2.85% [ 4.91% -
it = B e AR R A -

BREXKIERAREEERBRETS | —aEEE
RIBEEAM  RZTE=-_—F+-_A=+—8"
MERRAESSAERITRABRAR R & H AR
ZE(EERBFHFRIAEGROIEXVE)HRN - 18
AR REFPHEEREBEES RAERIIEXVEE
TREDEBEME RN NT R (BIERIEE S
REABRAIE S - W EESR AR N m Ok
2 IRIEE S RS 0] 352 /B0 A GBI Fr
EHE R MR RRBEEETRIEMNGARA 7] L#R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at December 31, 2021, the following corporations/persons had
interests of 5% or more in the issued shares of the Company according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under section

336 of the SFO:

i -

Number of ordinary

FERRNESFHED

RZZBE-_—F+-_A=+—8  BEAQRREFF
FHAE 455 336 15787 B S Bl Arac ik -
UTEE ANEHEBARRT D BITRNE%L A =

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

shares interested® capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest HEEEN EARDRE BITRAE
BRERESEB ERME EERHEM HERE S
Mr. LU Yuanfeng® Interest in a controlled corporation; interests 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
of spouse; interest held jointly with
another person
REJRIE S @ REGEERES  IBER B3 - ALTHRF
FENER
LYF Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner; interests held jointly with 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
another person
LYF Digital Holdings Limited EnEA BE-ATHABAENER
Ms. LUO Simin® Interest in a controlled corporation; interests 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
of spouse; interest held jointly with
another person
BREHELO REGEE RS  BEELR B5—ATH#E
FANER
Angel Age Limited Beneficial owner; interests held jointly with 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
another person
Angel Age Limited EREAAN R - ALTHRBANER
Mr. HUANG Guozhan® Interest in a controlled corporation; interest 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
held jointly with another person
ERREL AW XEHEE RS - BE— AT RREBANER
LXT Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner; interests held jointly with 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%

LXT Digital Holdings Limited

another person
Enfh @R ATHAKENER

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021
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Number of ordinary

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

shares interested® capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest BREEEN EEDRABRITRAE
BREEEEB BEME ZERHA® BN E DL
Mr. HUANG Degiang® Interest in a controlled corporation; interest 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
held jointly with another person
BEARKEO REGEERR  BE - ATHAKENES
HDQ Digital Holdings Limited Beneficial owner; interests held jointly with 947,958,387 (L) 47.40%
another person
HDQ Digital Holdings Limited EnlBA HE-ATHABENER
7Road Holdings Beneficial owner 294,144,901 (L) 14.71%
FLRBEER BERERA
The Core Trust Company Limited® Trustee 141,591,189 (L) 7.10%
The Core Trust Company Limited® A
Epic City Limited® Nominee for another person 141,591,189 (L) 7.10%

Epic City Limited® S—ATHRAEA
Notes: 5T
(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. (1)
(2) Under the SFO, Mr. LU Yuanfeng is deemed to be interested in all Shares (2)
held by LYF Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly owned by
him. Mr. LU Yuanfeng is also deemed to be interested in all Shares held
by (i) Ms. LUO Simin as Ms. LUO Simin is the spouse of Mr. LU Yuanfeng;
and (i) Mr. HUANG Guozhan and Mr. HUANG Degiang, as they are parties
acting in concert.
3) Under the SFO, Ms. LUO Simin is deemed to be interested in all Shares (3)

held by Angel Age Limited, a company which is wholly owned by her. Ms.
LUO Simin is also deemed to be interested in all Shares held by (i) Mr. LU
Yuanfeng as Mr. LU Yuanfeng is the spouse of Ms. LUO Simin; and (ii) Mr.
HUANG Guozhan and Mr. HUANG Degiang, as they are parties acting in
concert.

FEILIRTZALTREOHEIEFE -

RIEEH R AEGRE - EREXEWRABNRL Y F
Digital Holdings Limited({E 2 &H BN A A)EHE
B2 AR R A R o BERIE S A MR AR ()
REHXLT (ARRERL T AELEENERB) R
(i EB R AR EEREE (AR BEA—BITH
ALV RHBEN R IR R A o

RIEEZ LB G - 5B L HE AR Angel
Age Limited(f% 2 & WA MR R A2 A
hEEE LD o BRBBEZLIRE RN ()ERESLE
(ARERESERBLLHOERMB) R(ii)FEESE
ERERREE(AREER—HTHALIFE
M2 BB A AR o
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(4) Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Guozhan is deemed to be interested in all
Shares held by (i) LXT Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly
owned by him; and (ii) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG

Degiang as they are parties acting in concert.

(5) Under the SFO, Mr. HUANG Degiang is deemed to be interested in all
Shares held by (i) HDQ Digital Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly
owned by him; and (ii) Mr. LU Yuanfeng, Ms. LUO Simin and Mr. HUANG

Guozhan as they are parties acting in concert.

(6) The Core Trust Company Limited, being the trustee of Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme, directly holds the entire issued share capital of Epic City
Limited, which holds Shares underlying the options to be granted under the

scheme for the benefit of eligible participants pursuant to such scheme.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as
at December 31, 2021, no person had registered an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, at no time during FY2021
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities including debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During FY2021, the Group’s largest customer accounted for 27% of the
Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest customers accounted for
73% of the Group’s total revenue.

During FY2021, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 31% of the
Group’s total purchases. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
77% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or the
Group’s five largest customers.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had 170 employees (December
31, 2020: 175), 60 of which were responsible for game development and
maintenance, 78 for game operation and offline events organisation,
and 32 for general administration and corporate management. The total
remuneration expenses, excluding share-based compensation expense,
for FY2021 were approximately US$4.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately 12.2% as compared to FY2020. The Group enters
into employment contracts with its employees to cover matters such as
position, term of employment, wage, employee benefits and liabilities for
breaches and grounds for termination.

Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
allowances, bonus, share options and other employee benefits, and is
determined with reference to their experience, qualifications and general
market conditions. The emolument policy for the employees of the
Group is set up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualification
and competence. We provide regular training to our employees in order
to improve their skills and knowledge. The training courses range from
further educational studies to skill training to professional development
courses for management personnel.

LTERSBFEANREEESH

ARRA FHBEARRRREAFERRA
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s employees in Hong Kong have all participated in the
Mandatory Provident Fund in Hong Kong. The employees of the PRC
subsidiaries are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The employees of the PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to this retirement benefits scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.

Details of the pension obligations of the Company are set out in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for FY2021 are set
out in consolidated financial statements contained herein. The related
party transactions did not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) in relation to the Director’s and officer’s liability insurance is
currently in force and was in force during FY2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
for enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole. The Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the CG Code as its own code to govern its
corporate governance practices.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021
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In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during FY2021, save
for deviation from code provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code for
FY2021. Please refer to the section headed “Board of Directors” in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 38 to 41 of this annual report for
details.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 37 to
52 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

Since the COVID-19 Outbreak in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across China and other countries in the world. To shoulder our social
responsibilities and offer humanitarian support, the Group has promptly
launched an assistance scheme in response to the COVID-19 Outbreak.
Under this scheme, the Group has mobilised its global subsidiaries to
procure medical masks, protective gowns and other medical supplies and
has donated the same to medical institutions, government bodies, and
charitable organisations in countries in the world in 2021.

Save as disclosed above, during FY2021, the Group did not make any
charitable donations.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for FY2021 have been audited
by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming 2022 AGM.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS FEEREBRESRER

For FY2021, the Company has complied with the relevant laws and RZZBZ—MBFE  RKAGCETHARARGEE

regulations that have a significant impact on the Company. R BHRBERRIER -

On behalf of the Board REESFE

LU Yuanfeng FE R I

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer TEEREEHTE

Hong Kong, March 28, 2022 HE B _F=A-+N\H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BRI RS

s

ZHONGHUI

To the Shareholders of Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Digital
Hollywood Interactive Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 116 to 200,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2021,
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in

and consolidated statement of profit or loss and

equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue
Refer to Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group’s revenue from
online games amounted to USD12,752,704, representing 99.99% of the
Group’s total revenue. It was mainly derived from the sales of in-game
virtual items. The balance of associated contract liabilities amounted to
USD1,918,625 as at December 31, 2021.

The Group’s in-game virtual items are categorised as both consumable
virtual items and durable items. Revenue derived from consumable items
in its online game service are recognised once they are consumed.
Revenue derived from durable virtual items in its online game services
are recognised ratably over the lifespan of durable virtual items with
reference to the playing period of paying players (“Player Relationship
Period”), on a game by game basis. If the Group does not have the ability
to differentiate revenue attributable to durable items from consumable
items for a specific game, the Group recognises revenue from both
durable and consumable items for that game ratably over the Player
Relationship Period. During the year ended December 31, 2021, all in-
game virtual items were treated as durable items by the Group.

The determination of the Player Relationship Period for relevant game
virtual items requires significant judgement and estimates. It is made
taking into account all known and relevant information available to the
Group at the time of assessment. Thus, specific audit focus was placed in
this area.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

Understanding, evaluating and validating the key internal controls
in relation to the recognition of revenue from in-game virtual items,
including oversight exercised by management in assessing the
Player Relationship Period and computing the monthly revenue of
game virtual items performed by management on a sample basis;

Inspecting of evidence of management’s review on a sample basis;

Testing of the integrity and system logic of data and information for
supporting the determination of the Player Relationship Period, on a
sample basis;

Discussing with management and evaluating their judgements and
estimations made in determining the Player Relationship Period for
each game;

Assessing the accuracy of the management’s judgements and
estimations by comparing to historical patterns on a sample basis;

Testing the result of Player Relationship Period by reperforming the
computation on a sample basis;

Recalculating revenue and contract liabilities based on the
respective Player Relationship Period of each game on a sample
basis.

We consider that the significant judgment and estimates involved in

determining the Player Relationship Period adopted by management

in the revenue recognition of in-game virtual items of the Group were

supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirement of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BAZBE®RE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BAZBE®RE (&)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate treats of safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BAZBE®RE (&)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yeung Hong Chun

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P07374

Hong Kong, March 28, 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BftEEREMEERER

For the year ended December 31, 2021 i EZ =% = —

F+-A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—EC--F —R-BHF
Notes uUsD usD
Bt EH ET
Revenue LON 7 12,753,453 17,550,312
Cost of revenue (BN (7,340,087) (8,389,947)
Gross profit EX 5,413,366 9,160,365
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAX (3,091,368) (5,419,249)
Administrative expenses TR (3,046,413) (4,850,805)
Research and development expenses R (1,893,970) (1,877,748)
Net impairment losses on financial assets CRLEEREBEREE (531,515) (527,229)
Other losses, net H i EsEFE 8 (155,041) (34,232)
Operating loss KEEE (3,304,941) (3,548,898)
Finance income EUR TN 9 20,625 224,209
Finance costs B TE R AR 10 (386,308) (114,026)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKWBR Ak 34 479,461 -
Loss before income tax MRETE B ATE 18 (3,191,163) (3,438,715)
Income tax expense PR 11 (176,757) (200,265)
Loss for the year ERER 12 (3,367,920) (3,638,980)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income: Hth2m (X)W -
Item that will not be reclassified to T BT EEEmAIER -
profit or loss:
— Changes in fair value of equity investment —NAanBEEFEEHE
at fair value through other FHAE b 2 T W as 09 AR
comprehensive income REREN R BEZES (792,176) 201,060
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: — AJfEEEF HHREmHIEE -
— Exchange differences on translating — MEINETEHIIE K E5E
foreign operations 171,046 599,596
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for FREMZME (FX),
the year, net of income tax Wi BHBRAAESR (621,130) 800,656
Total comprehensive expense for the year FR2HEBAXEAE (3,989,050) (2,838,324)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
SOHABRH2ERER (4)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TFTF
Note usb usD
B 5% E EYM
Loss for the year attributable to: DTEEFRER :
— Owners of the Company — RNARHH A (3,367,920) (3,638,980)
Total comprehensive expense for the year LI TEGFAZEBAZEALE :
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company R VNGIE 2PN (3,989,050) (2,838,324)
Loss per share (USD cents) BRER (ZW) 15
_ Basic —EK (0.18) (0.20)
_ Diluted — (0.18) (0.20)

PEHREBHEEGRART T —FFIR @



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SO BRI R

As at December 31, 2021 R =—ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TFTF
Notes usbD uUsD
ihg=2 E3 e
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E YN 16 1,445,391 1,743,556
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 1,406,545 1,633,824
Intangible assets B EE 18 62,476 418,830
AR EBEFEAEES
Financial assets at fair value through T AE M2 E U AY
other comprehensive income SREE 21 372,069 1,164,245
Prepayments and other receivables TR 3R R H At JE WL 3R IE 24 3,700,644 3,714,391
Deferred tax assets FEEFIAE E 29 99,094 -
7,086,219 8,674,846
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables =) T e 22 1,032,458 1,282,604
Contract costs BRI 23 803,382 616,740
Prepayments and other receivables TE A R R H At FE R IR 24 10,397,590 13,783,691
Short-term deposits EHER 25 1,000,000 5,000,000
Bank and cash balances RITMIR 5% 25 31,681,054 26,914,401
44,914,484 47,597,436
TOTAL ASSETS HWEE 52,000,703 56,272,282
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity E=
Share capital &N 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
Reserves (e 31 39,193,628 43,105,488
Total equity MR 41,193,628 45,105,488
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

SO BRI R (&)

As at December 31, 2021 A —ZE——F+—-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TFTF
Notes usbD uUsD
ihg=2 E3 e
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables B S ENFIE 26 1,788,977 3,866,255
Contract liabilities X =N 23 2,218,271 2,448,797
Accruals and other payables FERT B R M B At RS FE 27 4,801,778 2,721,422
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 344,469 295,702
Current tax liabilities BT IE B & 277,602 211,573
9,431,097 9,543,749
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 1,375,978 1,623,045
Total liabilities FeS=Ri 10,807,075 11,166,794
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES HEEREE 52,000,703 56,272,282

The consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 200 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on March 28,

2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Lu Yuanfeng
ek I U
Director

EF

FMBE200EMAHIBRRCEHEFEN_F
ToE=AZ T N\AHRERRETIBETRARE

Huang Guozhan
HEE
Director

BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
S ERE R

For the year ended December 31,2021 HEZ T -—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERRHEE ARG
Shares
held for
the Share
Share Option Retained
capital Scheme Reserves profits Total
FREB R AEST B
BE HEZRG itk REEF et
usbD usbD usD usD usD
EY EY E E E
(Note 30) (Note 31)
(B#=E30) (Kt=E31)
At January 1, 2020 RZTZTF—A—H 2,000,000 (147,560) 38,104,404 7,318,884 47,275,728
Total comprehensive income/ FRz2EKE (FX) B8
(expense) for the year - - 800,656  (3,638,980) (2,838,324)
Share-based payments (Note 33)  LAR% {5 A3k (Fi5£33) - - 652,680 - 652,680
Exercise of share options Srd-1ied - 3,336 12,068 - 15,404
Changes in equity for the year FRERZH - 3,336 1,465,404  (3,638,980) (2,170,240)
At December 31, 2020 RZZZEF+ZA=1+—H 2,000,000 (144,224) 39,569,808 3,679,904 45,105,488
At January 1, 2021 RZF=Z—F—f—H 2,000,000 (144,224) 39,569,808 3,679,904 45,105,488
Total comprehensive expense FRZERTBE
for the year - - (621,130) (3,367,920) (3,989,050)
Share-based payments (Note 33)  LAR% {5 AZEH 35k (Fi5£33) - - 67,362 - 67,362
Exercise of share options rd-1ierd - 5,246 4,582 - 9,828
Changes in equity for the year - 5,246 (549,186) (3,367,920) (3,911,860)
At December 31, 2021 R-B-Z—-%+=ZHA=+-—H 2,000,000 (138,978) 39,020,622 311,984 41,193,628
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BHRERER

For the year ended December 31,2021 HEZ T -—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TFTF
usbD USD
ES ET
Cash flows from operating activities REKLETHNESR
Loss before income tax BRETISTIRIES 18 (3,191,163) (3,438,715)
Adjustments for: SRA TR IE/ERE
Amortisation of intangible assets I A 358,213 476,295
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BERRETE 347,122 362,077
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 328,640 313,095
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWB QT8 (479,461) -
Impairment of other receivables E bR IRRE - 13,878
Impairment of prepayments TE FORE = 91,699
Impairment of intangible assets ERAERE - 1,197,113
Interest revenue F BN (20,625) (6,045)
Lease interests HEFE 105,250 114,026
Loss allowance provision for trade receivables B SR IBEERE 531,515 513,351
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BERZEEE
plant and equipment - 573
Net foreign exchange losses M 5 5185 58 235,403 497,069
Reversal of contract liabilities BEEHEE - (352,537)
Share-based payments expenses AR BET S KA 67,362 652,680
Operating (loss)/profit before changes EEBSEEA Y (BB),/ 5T
in working capital (1,717,744) 434,559
Change in trade receivables B 5 WG IEE E) (329,204) 527,684
Change in contract costs BRIKAEE) (186,642) 154,662
Change in prepayments, deposits and AR - ke REMEKFIEZS)
other receivables 3,302,919 6,659,036
Change in trade payables B S RIS 282,830 731,186
Change in contract liabilities EHBEEY 123,404 (706,673)
Change in accruals and other payables FERT B A R H A E N RIEE D) 676,962 (801,881)
Cash generated from operating activities KEEZBFERE 2,152,525 6,998,573
Income tax paid BRAEH (225,433) (326,513)
Interest received B UHLE 20,625 6,045
Lease interests paid ENEENE (105,250) (114,026)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHFBRESFHE 1,842,467 6,564,079
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
AHREREBR ()

For the year ended December 31,2021 HEZ-Z-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TFTF
usbD USD
ES ET
Cash flows from investing activities REREZTHNESR
Withdrawal of short-term deposits REVE BT 5,000,000 -
Placement of short-term deposits 15 UG HATF 3k (1,000,000) (5,000,000)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEEMXE  BELEE (8,270) (3,332)
Purchases of intangible assets HERLEE - (48,767)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of HE—RIEBAREER
a subsidiary RE ML FE (472,007) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEME (A BLFE
investing activities 3,519,723 (5,052,099)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEIBNRESRE
Exercise of share options TR AR A - 10,587
Payment for IPO costs BIRAFREERAMNR - (36,400)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEAEAE (308,039) (292,297)
Net cash used in financing activities REITBMARSEE (308,039) (318,110)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEYEMFEE 5,054,151 1,193,870
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEETE R E B R E (287,498) 400,257
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FUNRS KA SEEY
the year 26,914,401 25,320,274
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FRORERESEEY
the year 31,681,054 26,914,401
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERBELZENDIN
Bank and cash balances RITRBESER 31,681,054 26,914,401
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on November 24, 2014 as
an exempted company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business in Hong Kong is 11/F, Tai Sang Bank
Building, 784 Nathan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The address of
its headquarters is 2nd Floor, No.368 Jiang Nan Da Dao (South),
Haizhu District, Guangzhou, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the development, operations and publishing of
web-based games and mobile games business (“Game Business”)
in North America, Europe, the PRC and other regions.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) that are relevant
to its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on
January 1, 2021. IFRSs comprise International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”); International Accounting Standards; and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised IFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised IFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and revised
IFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
and revised IFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gk bR e

For the year ended December 31,2021 HEZ T -—F+_-_A=+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB and the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by investments which are
carried at their fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise its judgements in
the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties,
to determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise that
right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is

transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date the
control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that
subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to significant
influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting period when there is
objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group’s share of
the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that associate and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to apply the
equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in United States Dollars (“USD”), which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the exchange reserve. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful
lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvement Shorter of estimated useful
lives or remaining lease term

Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Computers 3 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by
the Group. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use
assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
The principal lease terms are ranging from 1 to 9 years.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the lease payments discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be
determined, or otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an
initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets
of value below USD5,000.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which is it incurred.

Game intellectual properties and licenses

Under certain exclusive online mobile games arrangements
entered between the Group and the game developers, the Group
pays upfront license fees to the game developers as the Group
obtained the games developed by those game developers. The
Group recognises the upfront license fee as intangible assets.
The intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the expected economic life, ranging from 2 to 3 years. These
amortisation are recorded in cost of revenue (where the games
are commercially launched) or administrative expenses (where the
games are not yet commercially launched).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 years.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
OIS RN ()

For the year ended December 31, 2021 HZ =&~ —

3.

FH—A=+—RIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified as under the following
categories:

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at amortised cost; and

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables)
are classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected
credit losses.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading
as at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair values recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
equity investment revaluation reserve. On derecognition of
an investment, the cumulative gains or losses previously
accumulated in the equity investment revaluation reserve are
not reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in profit or
loss, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are
the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a
default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the
loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents
the expected credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount
is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under IFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of
the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations

(c)

The Group’s companies incorporated in the PRC contribute
based on certain percentage of the salaries of the employees
to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan and other
defined contribution social security plans organised by relevant
government authorities in the PRC on a monthly basis. The
government authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable and other social security payables
to all existing and future retired employees under these
plans and the Group has no further obligation beyond the
contributions made. Contributions to these plans are expensed
as incurred. Assets of the plans are held and managed by
government authorities and are separate from those of the
Group.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payment

The Group operates the Share Option Scheme, which is an equity-
settled share-based compensation plan under which share awards

are granted to employees as part of their remuneration packages.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured
at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the share-based awards is recognised as an expense over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied, and credited to share premium
under equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the share-based awards granted:

- including any market performance conditions;

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of share-based awards that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

If the terms of a share-based award are modified, at a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. An
additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payments arrangement,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee and other qualifying
participants, as measured at the date of modification.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
OIS RN ()

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing
the performance of the Group’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

FESHBE @

BIE (@)

EIETRIREAE N B ENR 2 RRAERSE HARR
SEEHRELINEEER B BREASEN
BBRE -

BHAERITRERN AN HTIAE E H AT
HABRY  BRRF-HERBERNSH
FRAREE R FRAEE T HMKIAE
ENEER  ARERREERBEN TRY
B

7 BB R &

RED B RED MNP RE M2 M SR
EHRHTAEEIZSRITRE LB IARA
SEBERB DI ERARF EERBNIT G
BRI 5o

EHEAGES BT EEAMEHEMETE
B - A BAERL@ALE - ARES
BRWHE « AEBIRONE - FEER R
Bl - 54 @RISR R B R
HOMEERGERB - TEEABRILE
P EERA E B A H 1A T B3 1T A
B o

AR5
BB ARAEEAMEA TR

o

(@) MHM—BALFERTEHE  ZBA
THERKORANSEASEA

[
()  BAREEFZESERAREGRE
(i) HAFEBEAZEN X

(i) AEARREARNSATHEEE
AR -

PEHREBHEEGRART T —FFIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii

=

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet
available for use are reviewed annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except deferred tax
assets, investments and receivables to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
OIS RN ()

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
B OB R R M EE (&)
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
4. KEY ESTIMATES
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(a) Estimates of the playing period of paying players
(“Player Relationship Period”) in the Group’s game
publishing services
As described in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group recognises revenue from durable virtual items
ratably over the Player Relationship Period. The determination
of Player Relationship Period of each game is based on the
Group’s best estimate that takes into account all known and
relevant information at the time of assessment. Such estimates
are subject to re-evaluation on a semi-annual basis. Any
adjustments arising from changes in the Player Relationship
Period as a result of new information will be accounted for
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

(c) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
OIS RN ()

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB and EURO (“EUR”) and Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”). The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

As at December 31, 2021, if USD had weakened/strengthened
5% against RMB with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after income tax for the year would have
been approximately USD175,000 (2020: USD172,000) higher/
lower, respectively, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB-denominated
receivables and payables.

As at December 31, 2021, if USD had weakened/strengthened
5% against EUR with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after income tax for the year would have
been approximately USD100,000 (2020: USD94,000) lower/
higher, respectively, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of EUR-denominated
cash and cash equivalents.

The cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables
of the Group’s Hong Kong entities are denominated in HKD,
which is pegged against USD, and are not therefore subject to
significant foreign currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Price risk

(c)

The Group’s equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
equity security price risk. The directors manage this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with difference risk
profiles.

As at December 31, 2021, if the share prices of the investments
increase/decrease by 5%, the other comprehensive loss would
have been approximately USD19,000 (2020: USD58,000)
lower/higher, arising as a result of the fair value gain/loss of
the investments.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances, trade and
other receivables, and investments included in the statement of
financial position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances and investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
limited because the counterparties are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong. There has
been no recent history of default in relation to these financial
institutions.

Trade receivables and certain other receivables at the
end of each reporting period were due from the Platforms
and payment channels in cooperation with the Group. If
the strategic relationship with the Platforms and payment
channels is terminated or scaled-back; or if the Platforms and
payment channels alter the co-operative arrangements; or if
they experience financial difficulties in paying the Group, the
Group’s game development receivables might be adversely
affected in terms of recoverability. To minimise this risk, the
Group maintains frequent communications with the Platforms
and payment channels to ensure the effective credit control.
In view of the history of cooperation with the Platforms
and payment channels and the sound collection history of
receivables due from them, the directors believe that the
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding trade receivable
balances due from the Platforms and payment channels is low.
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For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

For other receivables not due from payment channels,
management makes periodic collective assessments as
well as individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records and past
experience. The directors believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period by comparing the risk of a
default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (if available);

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the borrower’s
ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower;

- significant changes in the value of the collateral or in the
quality of guarantees or credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment.
A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 60 days of when they fall
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally
categorises a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor
fails to make contractual payments greater than 360 days past
due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the
Group, if practicable and economical, continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loan loss provision
is determined for each of the categories. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss
rates for each category and adjusts for forward looking data.

Definition

Category Loss provision

Performing Low risk of default 12-month expected

and strong capacity losses
to pay
Non-performing

Significant increase Lifetime expected

in credit risk losses

Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient

reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

SOt R (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continved)y 5. BMIREBEE a

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) REVE SRR (2)
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of AEENeREBEENRUREGRE
the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: KEIEDTaT ¢
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
DPME 1ER2E 26FE55F BB5F st
usb usD usD usb usb
EV Ey T =y EV
At December 31, 2021 R-ZB-—-%
+=A=+—H
Trade payables B SN 5IE 1,788,977 - - - 1,788,977
Accruals and other payables EEtERA R
Hith 508 3,321,540 - - - 3,321,540
Lease liabilities HEERE 434,850 417,557 1,114,163 - 1,966,570
5,545,367 417,557 1,114,163 - 7,077,087
At December 31, 2020 RZZB-ZF
+ A=+—H
Trade payables B SN IR 3,866,255 - - - 3,866,255
Accruals and other payables EEtERAR
Hfth 15008 1,326,585 - - - 1,326,585
Lease liabilities HEERE 400,122 392,087 1,186,477 281,746 2,260,432

5,592,962 392,087 1,186,477 281,746 7,453,272

(e) Interest rate risk (e) =@M
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and HRAEBETEERAEBEEREBRE
liabilities, the Group’s operating cash flows are substantially ﬁﬁzzlx‘ﬁIa’j%«effﬁﬁ,mij:ﬁZ?%?ﬁ%
independent of changes in market interest rates. MEBEFHZE
The Group’s bank deposits bear interests at fixed interest rates AEBNRITERIZE TN XS
and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks. HERS AR BENRRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5.
(f) Categories of financial instruments at

December 31,

MEEMRERE®

) RT-—A=+—-AWEBIT
B

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TFTF
usb USD
ES EL
Financial assets: SREE
Financial assets at fair value through BAnEBEGEEEZHTA
other comprehensive income HEhzmlasmemEE 372,069 1,164,245
Financial assets at amortised cost REERATENSREE
(including cash and cash (BREESRESEED)
equivalents) 37,752,439 40,726,003
Financial liabilities: THMEHE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHRAAENEREE 6,830,964 7,111,587

(g) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of

financial position approximate their respective fair values.

(9) 2 REE

rEEeREERERBERREA G
BHRAROEEMEREZ G RAAE
BERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
OIS RN ()

For the year ended December 31, 2021 HZ =&~ —

6.

FH—A=+—RIFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. AAEEFE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or ARBEIETS2EE 2 HREE A HET

paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market WBEFR SR EELEMBUERKNERLIELE

participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of EFRENHER - LT AR BAEFTEREFER
fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises WAREEER B2 AnEBEMANMGE
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure AP ABE D B=AERK

fair value:

Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for B—REAZE: KAEER u“’EE'HﬂTL/{HX
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can MIEREEXBERERT
access at the measurement date. %52 B CREHAE) -

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within E_HBARE: HREESABEEESHEEL
level 1 that are observable for the asset or AEBR 2B A\HE (F—RA
liability, either directly or indirectly. BENRERIN)

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. BE-HBAHE: EEHIEEZTIHIHA

B

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out REFBHNKE AEREDERNEBEHNSEIAR

of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in NEHNEAIEZSEZASEHNEAEA K

circumstances that caused the transfer. H e

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at December 31, (a) RT+-A=Z+—HRNAAEBEERKEE

Fair value measurements using level 1: FRE RO ALEEEE -
2021 2020
—B-—fF ke S 5
uUsbD uUsD
EY ET
Description A
Recurring fair value measurements: &EMHQAAEEIE :
Equity investments at fair value BRAREBESEAHEEETA
through other comprehensive Hiv2Eam I RARE
income
— Listed security in Hong Kong — BB LTHES 372,069 1,164,245
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA RS ZER

2021 2020
—E-—F TE-TF
usD usb
EY T
Online game revenue LSRR A 12,752,704 17,537,512
Licensing revenue FFEFREUA - 10,417
Advertising revenue BEEWA 749 2,383
Total revenue FEE PN 12,753,453 17,550,312
Disaggregation of revenue from REEFEHNHBAZSIF
contracts with customers:
Timing of revenue recognition WA e R B
Over time BER B A 12,753,453 17,550,312
Segment information o ERE R
For management purpose, the executive directors of the Company HEBEMNTS  AQTHITEERAAEFH
consider that the Group generates revenue primarily from the TERBIREREREEREEEKA - AAQF]
provision of online game services. The executive directors of HITEEBEREA— AT MBRHRCL ¥
the Company review the operating results of the business as B UIEHEBE RSB RIEIERE -
one segment to make strategic decisions about resources to be It AATITEERAAEFREE —ES
allocated. Therefore, the executive directors of the Company 2B WY -

consider that there is only one segment of the Group and no further
analysis is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Revenue from major customers

The Group has a large number of game players, no individual game
players generated revenue which exceeded 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020: nil).

The revenue generated from top five largest revenue collection
platforms, accounted for 73% (2020: 69%) of the Group’s revenue
for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The following table summarises the percentage of revenue from
games licensed by a single company or group exceeding 10% of the
Group’s revenue during the year ended December 31, 2021:

WARDEBER &)

REETEFEFHBA

AEEHREHEBEANEMIR - #EERE
EBURELANBABBAEBRREBEE=_S=-—
F+ZA=+—HALEFERAMNI0% A L
ZECTFE) e
REARKBKARRFEEHEAEAEEEHS
—E-—F+ZA=Z+—HIEFEMNKRAN
73% (ZZE=FF : 69%) °

THRAREBEE S -_—F+-_A=+—801t
FEREE—NEKEBTREEEMEANSE
B U A BB 10% IR AE L -

2021 2020

—EZ—fF —ZT-FF

Game licensor A BEREAA 27% 20%
Game licensor B HEEIIEAB N/A* 11%

*

The corresponding percentage of revenue did not contribute over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group.

Geographical information

Non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred
income tax assets, by country:

* WA B IE B B 2 L 3 R AN SR B AR A B
10% °

1 35 & R

BEFIDWIERDEE (BT R FEERT
BREERI) -

2021 2020

—E-—fF —TFF

usb USD

E3 e

BVI EBRUES 3,500,000 3,500,000
The PRC FE 2,910,312 3,570,988
Hong Kong B 149,656 366,352
Other locations Hipih & 55,088 73,261
6,615,056 7,510,601

No geographical information for revenue is presented as 99.99% of
the Group’s revenue are drived from global online customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Game publishing service revenue

The Group is a publisher of online games developed by third party
game developers or its own. The Group licenses online games from
game developers and earns game publishing service revenue by
making a localised version of the licensed games and publishing
them to the game players through distribution platforms, include
major social networking websites (such as Facebook), online
application stores (such as Apple Inc.’s App Store (“Apple App”) and
Google Play installed in mobile telecommunications devices), web-
based and mobile game portals in certain countries and regions
(collectively referred to as “Platforms”), including the Group’s
websites. The games licensed to the Group are operated under
a free-to-play model whereby game players can play the games
free of charge and are charged for the purchase of Game Tokens
or other virtual items via payment channels, such as the various
mobile carriers and third-party internet payment systems (collectively
referred to as “payment channels”).

(i)  Principal Agent Consideration
Third party developed games
Proceeds earned from selling Game Tokens and other virtual
items are shared between the Group and game developers,
with the amount paid to game developers generally calculated
based on face value of Game Tokens or other virtual items
determined by game developers, after deducting certain
deductible fees, multiplied by a predetermined percentage
for each game. The deductible fees are predetermined and
negotiated game by game, including the fees paid to the
payment channels and the Platforms, as well as the credit
allowable for deduction for each game.

WARDEBER &)

PR ITREBWA

AEE A RPHEHEEEITH  BITHE=H
AR E SRR EE - AEER
PSSR E AR ER WRIEZER
WA TR RBERETRE (BEE
B 430k (MNFacebook) ~ 48 FEMIZA R
JE (R EBREEERETHApple Inc. By
App Store ([Apple AppJ) % Google Play) *
ETBERkEOME RE BB EM M
(ZBAITFa] BEASERPI))BHTTHE
BITR - B BB B TIRIS A - ANEE
BEENEE DA BEERLE Bt
BEEITR AT LA S B AT D e I A B B e R
HEMERYAERNTES (NEERS
EEBRE=-FEBMEAINRS (HBAI
HEE]))XNER -

(i) ZEAE

E=THRENEE

BB IS R K E ) AR ER
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B MmN TEEFERNSE KRB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Game publishing service revenue (Continued)

(i)  Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)
(1) The Group acts as Agent

With respect to the Group’s game licenses arrangements
entered into during the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, the Group considered that the (i) game
developers are responsible for providing the game
product desired by the game players; (ii) the costs
incurred by the game developers to develop the games
are more than the licensing costs and game localisations
costs incurred by the Group; (iii) game developers have
the right to determine the pricing of in-game virtual items
and the specification, modification or update of the game
proposed by the Group. The Group’s responsibilities
are publishing, providing payment solution and market
promotion service, and thus the Group views game
developers to be its customers and considers itself as
the agent of game developers in the arrangements with
game players. Accordingly, the Group records the game
publishing service revenue from these licensed games,
net of amounts paid to game developers.

Games operated directly by the Group:

Games operated directly by the Group are in the form
of self-operation on its own websites and cooperation
with Platforms, which the Group is responsible for
determining Platforms and payment channels, hosting and
maintenance of game servers for game running, providing
customer service as well as marketing activities. For
games self-operated by the Group, payment channels are
responsible for payment collections related to the games.
For games cooperated with Platforms, Platforms are
responsible for distribution, platform maintenance, paying
player authentication and payment collections related to
the games.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B OB R R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)

(i)  Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)
Third party developed games (Continued)

(1

The Group acts as Agent (Continued)

Games operated directly by the Group: (Continued)

As the Group is responsible for identifying, contracting
with and maintaining the relationships of Platforms and
payment channels, commission fees paid to Platforms
and payment channels are included in cost of revenues
and presented on a gross basis. The Group considers it
is the primary obligor to game developers for the reasons
identified above as it has been given latitude by game
developers in selecting Platform and payment channels
for its service to game developers.

Different from the above analysis, for games cooperated
with Facebook if it had been specified by game
developers and Apple App, the game developers are
fully aware of Facebook and Apple App’s roles and
responsibilities. The Group considered that Facebook,
Apple App and itself provide services to the game
developers together, as the Group does not have the
latitude in selecting and negotiation with Facebook and
Apple App and does not have the primary responsibility
to game developers for the service provided by them,
commission charges by Facebook and Apple App are
deducted from revenue.

Games subcontracted to Platforms:

Certain games are subcontracted to Platforms to operate
directly. For such subcontracted games, Platforms are
responsible for determining secondary Platforms and
payment channels, hosting and maintenance of game
servers for game running, providing customer service as
well as marketing activities. The Group’s responsibilities
are delivering games to Platforms, and thus the Group
views the game developers to be its customers and
considers itself as the agent of game developers in the
arrangements with Platforms, as the Group does not
have the primary responsibility to game developers for
the service provided by these Platforms. Accordingly, the
Group records revenue on a net basis, amounts paid to
game developers and revenue-sharing amounts paid to
Platforms or third party payment vendors are deducted
from revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
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For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)

(i)  Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)

Third party developed games (Continued)

(2) The Group acts as Principal
During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
there was a game license arrangement under which the
Group takes primary responsibilities of further game
development and updates, game operation, including
determining Platforms and payment channels, providing
customer services, hosting game servers, if needed, and
controlling pricing and game and services specifications
during the license period. The Group bears the cost
incurred to further develop the game. Under this type of
game license arrangement, the Group considers itself as
a principal in this arrangement. Accordingly, the Group
records the online game revenue from this third party
licensed game on a gross basis. Commission fees paid
to Platforms and payment channels and amortisation
of license fees paid to third party game developer are
recorded as cost of revenues.

Self-developed games

The Group sometimes enters into license arrangements
under which the Group takes primary responsibilities of game
development and game operation, including determining
Platforms and payment channels, providing customer services,
hosting game servers, if needed, and controlling pricing and
game and services specifications. The Group bears the cost
incurred to develop the games. Under this type of agreements,
the Group considers itself the principal. Accordingly, the Group
records the online game revenues from these games on a
gross basis. Commission fees paid to Platforms and payment
channels and amounts paid to licensor are recorded as cost of
revenue.

The Group self-develops mobile games. Revenues derived
from self-developed games are recorded on a gross basis as
the Group acts as a principal to fulfil most obligations related to
the mobile game operation. Commission fees paid to Platforms
and payment channels are recorded as cost of revenue.
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For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDZIER &

(Continued)
PR ITIRBUWA (&)

(i) Timing of revenue recognition (i) WA TERIFRET
Third party developed games FE=F AR
(1) The Group acts as Agent (1) AEEEZRE

Game publishing service revenue (Continued)

Games operated directly by the Group:

For the purposes of determining when services have
been provided to the respective players, the Group has
determined the following:

— Consumable virtual items represent items that are
extinguished after consumption in the form of fixed
charges levied on each round of games played. The
paying players will not continue to benefit from the
virtual items thereafter. Revenue is recognised at a
point in time (as a release from contract liabilities)
when the items are consumed and the related
services are rendered.

— Durable virtual items represent items that are
accessible and beneficial to paying players over
an extended period of time. Revenue is recognised
ratably over the average life of durable virtual items
for the applicable game, which the Group makes
best estimates to be average Player Relationship
Period.

The Group estimates the Player Relationship Period on
a game-by-game basis and re-assesses such periods
semi-annually. If there is insufficient data to determine the
Player Relationship Period, such as in the case of a newly
launched game, it estimates the Player Relationship
Period based on other similar types of games developed
by the Group or by third-party developers until the new
game establishes its own patterns and history. The Group
considers the games profile, target audience, and its
appeal to players of different demographics groups in
estimating the Player Relationship Period.

If the Group does not have the ability to differentiate
revenue attributable to durable virtual items from
consumable virtual items for a specific game, the Group
recognises revenue from both durable and consumable
virtual items for that game ratably over the Player
Relationship Period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Game publishing service revenue (Continued)

(i) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Third party developed games (Continued)

(1) The Group acts as Agent (Continued)
Games subcontracted to Platforms:
Revenue of games subcontracted to Platforms are
recognised ratably over the Player Relationship Period,
for (i) the Group has a continuous obligation to game
developers to coordinate Platforms for providing service
to game players, and (ii) the Group does not have the
ability to differentiate revenue from games subcontracted
to Platforms attributable to durable virtual items from
consumable virtual items for a specific game.

(2) The Group acts as Principal
Revenue of third party developed games when the Group
acts as a Principal are recognised ratably over the Player
Relationship Period or as the durable virtual items are
consumed, which is similar to the policy of third party
developed games operated directly by the Group when
the Group acts as an Agent mentioned above.

Self-developed games

Revenue of self-developed games are recognised ratably
over the Player Relationship Period or as the durable virtual
items are consumed, which is similar to the policy of third
party developed games when the Group acts as a Principal
mentioned above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Licensing revenue

The Group authorises third parties to operate its online games. The
Group receives additional up-front license fees from certain third-
party licensee operators who are entitled to an exclusive right to
operate the Group’s games in specified geographic areas. Revenue
from licensing agreements is recognised when the game contents
have been delivered to the third party licensees and when the Group
has no further remaining obligations. Depending on the terms of
the respective agreements, revenue is recognised either by point
in time, whereas fixed and non-refundable upfront payments are
received from the licensees upon commence of the license periods;
or ratably over the license period when the Group is required to
continue to provide services over the license periods.

Advertising revenue

The Group provides advertising placement for a specified period on
the interface of online games. The Group recognises revenue ratably
over the period during which the advertising services are provided.

OTHER LOSSES, NET

WARDEBER &)

(e L ON

REERBEE=FEEEPRES - AEEW
BERBREREHRANEEREBBRNE T
FE=RFEERRREINANTIER - &
BEARRNTE=TRTEEREAREEL
BE-SHRTEER - BRRBRIRIGEL
WO o 22 F-HE B8 1ok 1O 8RR - UK AR R (B B4
(ERFrESHMLRLETFEERRKEE
R ATHREFRIBZ B ) s A iR Az b
DI (EAREEEZEER T RMERARY
) 73R o

BEEBRA

AEENEEMRAEERERSE LRIES
BN o NEBEIRHE S IR MR L I FER
EREL NG

H At 5518 7 58

2021 2020

=B —F —ECTF

usbD uUsD

EH ET

Reversal of contract liabilities (Note) GHREERE (M) - 352,537
Government grants T 48 B 43,675 70,964
Net foreign exchange losses bE B R F R (235,403) (497,069)
Others Hh 36,687 39,336
(155,041) (34,232)

Note: During the year ended December 31, 2020, one of the games operated
by the Group was terminated and therefore, the Group bore no further
obligation to the game players of such game.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

SOtE S Em R (8)
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
9. FINANCE INCOME 9. M#EUWA
2021 2020
—E-—F TE-TF
usbD UsD
Ep e
Interest revenue from bank balances RERITEHRHOF WA 20,625 6,045
Net foreign exchange gains b 5 W a5 58 - 218,164
20,625 224,209
10.FINANCE COSTS 10. B 3 A A<
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
usbD UsD
EPH e
Lease interests HEFE 105,250 114,026
Net foreign exchange losses I H B8 55 281,058 -
386,308 114,026
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. TERAX
2021 2020
—E-—F TE-TF
uUsbD UsD
Ep e
Current tax — Overseas withholding BVEARETE — G HNEIFTSRL
income tax (“WHT”) ([FEFT18HL)
— Provision for the year — FAEE 198,832 194,180
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income BVEARHIE — R B ZEFTIEHL
Tax (“EIT") and (TZMETH ] REBMEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax
— Under-provision in prior year — FFEBETR 77,019 -
Deferred tax (Note 29) RIERE (Mi5E29) (99,094) 6,085
176,757 200,265

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
Cayman lIslands and accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands
income tax.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the BVI, the company
incorporated in BVI are not subject to any income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits for each of the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 are calculated in accordance with
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HKD2 million of profits of qualifying
corporation are taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HKD2 million are
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporation not qualifying the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%.

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in the
PRC has been calculated at the tax rate of 25% on the estimated
assessable profits for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, based on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof.

ARBRBERASEESARENFSHESEMN
R ERRBERARF - At - KARERR
BFREREMEN -

REEBEZHESNHRA LA  REBEK
BB MK MR B BESN TS o
HE-_ZT-—Fr-_F-ZTF+=-_A=+—H
IFEE - BIRT R 16.5% 8 (H T 1 s 5% A5t
RBEBFEFREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R R EE ()
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Guangzhou You Lai Information Technology Company Limited was
qualified as “Advanced Technology Service Enterprises” in 2021 and
2020 and was entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for
the years ended 2021 and 2020.

Guangzhou Zhang Ying Kong Information Technology Company
Limited was qualified as “Small Low-Profit Enterprise” for the years
ended 2021 and 2020 and was entitled to a preferential income tax
rate that was calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
RMB1 million of profits of qualifying corporation are taxed 2.5%, and
profits above RMB1 million are taxed at 10%.

According to the applicable the PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profits derived after January 1, 2008 are
generally subject to a 10% WHT. If a foreign investor incorporated in
Hong Kong meets the conditions and requirements under the double
taxation treaty arrangement entered into between the PRC and Hong
Kong, the relevant withholding tax rate will be reduced from 10% to
5%.

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group
does not have any plan to require its PRC subsidiaries to distribute
their retained earnings and intends to retain them to operate and
expand its business in the PRC. Accordingly, no deferred income tax
liability on PRC WHT was accrued as of the end of each reporting
period.

The Group has subcontracted games to a platform operating in
Vietnam. According to the applicable the Vietnam tax regulations,
royalty fees generated from Vietnam are subject to a 10% WHT.

The Group cooperates with a platform in Brazil. According to the
applicable the Brazil tax regulations, income generated from Brazil
is subject to 10% remittance tax and 15% income tax, which is
withheld by the platform.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) M. R @
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product PS84 51 2 BB P IS B AT A R SR LA B 1 26 P
of loss before income tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income 1S E25% PAEMWE 2 R EERNT

tax rate of 25% is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F TE-TF
uUsbD usbD
Ep ET
Loss before income tax KRETIS AT E 18 (3,191,163) (3,438,715)
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% R E25% T EMHBIE (797,791) (859,679)
Effect of different tax rates available to @ AR TR B2 FH
different subsidiaries TR KL 465,151 314,905
Tax effect of temporary differences and I/ MR TR = 2 L S EIEH
tax losses not recognised M 294,145 346,031
Tax effect of income that is not taxable HZERFIURARNFIE L (128,961) (4,389)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BT E T A B ARS8
for tax purpose BT E 68,362 209,217
Under-provision in prior year LEERETE 77,019 -
Overseas WHT BINEHFTIS IR 198,832 194,180
Income tax expense FSfiAX 176,757 200,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
OIS RN ()

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

12.LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging the following:

12. FREE

REEFABRTEMG AT SR

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TE
usb usb
E e
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESH
— Amortisation of licenses — FrAl s A (R AMABAR)
(included in cost of revenue) 207,898 319,143
— Amortisation of licenses (net off revenue) — AR S GBI 146,829 150,111
— Amortisation of other intangible assets - HiBpEERHE GIATHRAR)
(included in administrative expenses) 3,486 7,041
358,213 476,295
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0% BEREENE 347,122 362,077
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREBERE 328,640 313,095
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) ERHH (M:13)
— As Directors - ERE=S 40,202 38,436
- For management - EREEE 189,810 171,422
230,012 209,858
Research and development expenses HEREY 1,893,970 1,877,748
Auditor's remuneration kA
- Audit services — B R% 257,401 442 400
— Non-audit services — FEE R - 6,300
257,401 448,700
Impairment of intangible assets BVEERE - 1,197,113
Impairment of trade receivables B S RENIERE 531,515 513,351
Impairment of other receivables H it W IE R (E - 13,878
Impairment of prepayment for IREE R RERNTAE
royalty fees and license fees (FTAMABA)
(included in cost of revenue) - 91,699
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments EIMA(BEEEHH)
— Wages, salaries and bonuses —I% #Hekfa 3,780,847 3,744,508
— Pension costs - defined contribution plans - BEEHA - RERFGE 238,946 55,451
- Social security costs, housing benefits and - HEREKA  EEEFREMESET
other employee benefits 628,285 344,815
— Share-based payments expenses — MR BERATEZ 67,362 652,680
4,715,440 4,797,454
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

13.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 13.EERFETHRAEFMHRE

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID AEREHMAL
EMPLOYEES
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s () EBRFETHAEEHM
emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to directors and chief ENENTEEREZEITRABNE
executive are as follows: Bz -
2021
—E--F
Other social
security
costs,
Pension housing
costs- benefits and
defined other
contribution employee
Name of directors Fees Salaries plans benefits Total
HitH &RE
gxd BA - fIE
BA - RE BRREM
E3pg ne e i HE | EEEHN st
usD usbD usbD usb usb
EY EY EYH EY EY
(Note i)
(BN
Executive directors: HiTEE -
Mr. Lu Yuanfeng FERIE S - 62,019 3,914 3,263 69,196
Mr. Huang Guozhan BEELAE - 54,067 3,392 2,848 60,307
Mr. Huang Degiang BEREA - 54,067 3,392 2,848 60,307
Independent non-executive directors:  BU I TEE -
Ms. Imma Ling Kit-sum (Note i) BZLIE (M) 5,434 - - - 5,434
Mr. Li Yi Wen FRUEE 13,666 - - - 13,666
Mr. Lu Qi Bo ERURLE 13,666 - - - 13,666
Professor CHAU Chi Wai, Wilton B EHE (Faii)
(Note iii) 7,436 - - - 7,436
40,202 170,153 10,698 8,959 230,012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

13.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 13.EERFETHRAEFMHRE

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EERESHFMAL @
EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s () EBRFETHRAEFHM w0

emoluments (Continued)

2020
—E-EE

—F—=

Other social
security costs,

housing
Pension  benefits and
costs-defined other
contribution employee
Name of directors Fees Salaries plans benefits Total
Hip i &1RE
B¥% MK f
RA-RE  BAREM
i e ¥t fHGHE EEREH st
usD usb usD usD usb
EH e EH £ e
(Note i)
(FiEi)
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Lu Yuanfeng B 5 - 59,288 305 2,889 62,482
Mr. Huang Guozhan HEELE - 51,684 264 2,522 54,470
Mr. Huang Degiang HEREE - 51,684 264 2,522 54,470
Independent non-executive directors: BB TEE -
Ms. Imma Ling Kit-sum (Note ii) BZL L (M) 12,894 - - - 12,894
Mr. Li Yi Wen FRNEE 12,771 - - - 12,771
Mr. Lu Qi Bo BRUK LA 12,771 - - - 12,771
38,436 162,656 833 7,933 209,858
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R (4)
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

13.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid or
receivable in respect of that person’s other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertakings.

(i)  Retired on June 2, 2021.
(iiiy  Appointed on June 2, 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No other significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
or at any time during the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020:
nil).

13.EERFETHAEHFMHMRR
EREEFMAL @

(a)

(b)

EERFETHABREFM &)

GEE

() BENESENFHF—REEAZAL
FRERANRNEMNBLARNE
58 B O LA AR 1 © A9 sk ey
M e

(i) RZZT-—FEXA-ABHT-

(iiiy RZTZ—FA-BEZRE -
FAMBEEESAETEZTHABRENR
BERESWHFMNZHE -

EERXG  ZPHEHH
ME X

REBE-_ZT-_—F+-A=+—HILF
AR RERTMER - A EE
KRRNR BTN ARARREEHE KM
BEREAERNEEMEANEEEBER L
HMERRS  THEEREH(ZZEZZE
Fom) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R R EE ()
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

13.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

13.EERFETHAEHFMHMRR
EREEFMAL @

(c) BEBEEHMAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year FALrEBEREESTMALIEE %
included one director (2020: nil). The emoluments of the EF(ZTZF E) HTHE(Z
remaining four (2020: five) individuals are set out below: ToTF  RR) AL Z2HMES AT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
usbD uUsbD
Ep ET
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - ekt 239,277 220,625
Pension costs — defined BEENAN — REHKETE
contribution plans 13,350 1,247
Other social security costs, Hibt g RERE - FEEF &
housing benefits and other HibfEB4&F|
employee benefits 11,296 9,988
Share-based payments LARR (7 A EBR AT 5K 22,543 444,792
286,466 676,652

The emoluments fell within the following bands: FMNFIATEE -

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_THF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000757C 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 21,500,000 7T - 4
4 5

REBEEZT - —FRZZ_TF+_A=1+—
AIEFE  ASEHERENESKES 5
ATZHEAME - (EAMAREERF AL
VERBERAEIE -

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or
the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

14.DIVIDEND 14. K&
The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of ARREETEHARNBE-_T-_—F+=
any dividend for the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020: nil). A=+—RLEFEZHMARE(ZT=ZF :
) o
15.LOSS PER SHARE 15. BRE18
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on FRERREEREEB BB TSRS -

the following:

2021 2020
—EZ—fF —ZT-FF
usbD usbD
Ep ey
Loss BE
Loss for the purpose of basic and A ESRERNREE M MEE
diluted loss per share (3,367,920) (3,638,980)
2021 2020
—EZ—F —E_THF
Number of shares RHHE
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ BLafESREALREEHEMSH
shares in issue less shares held EEITEVINIE T T AR R B R
for the Share Option Scheme for the MERETEFE RS (MisEa)
purpose of calculating basic and
diluted loss per share (Note a) 1,856,765,612 1,855,371,418

Notes: 5T

(a) The loss per share is determined based on that 1,856,765,612 (2020: (a) ERBEDERERTHMETHEAR
1,855,371,418) shares were the weighted average number of ordinary # B A51,856,765,612K (T T :
shares in issue excluding the 143,234,388 (2020: 144,628,582) shares 1,855,371,418/%) (TBEHE_T——F
which were the weighted average number held for the Share Option FTZA=+—RALEFERERETEFAELN
Scheme for the year ended December 31, 2021, without taking into DT AE£0143,234,388 % (— T - T4 ¢
account any shares which may be granted and issued by the Company 144,628,582%) ) 5t H + EHRTFTRAAFIR
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. IR &I AT R R B AT AR 1D -

(b) The 31,182,377 (2020: 36,428,295) options granted and remained (b) HREHmEARITERS1,182,3774H (ZF =
unexercised are not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share T : 36,428,295 ) EREHHE—T ——
because they are antidilutive for the years ended December 31, 2021 FHZA=Z+—HIEFEAREEME - At
and 2020. These options could potentially dilute basic loss per share in R ESREIBERITESZEBRETE
the future. A o ZEBEN KRR AT S TTARER

E1A -

PEHREBHEEGRART T —FFIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
OIS RN ()

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. 1% - BMERRME

Office Leasehold Motor
equipment Computers improvements  vehicles Total
WAERE Bl HENEEE RE a@st
usb usb usb usb usb
EYH E E EYH E
Cost AR
At January 1, 2020 RZE-FF—A—A 112,065 425,983 2,175,076 109,137 2,822,261
Additions NE - 3,332 - - 3,332
Disposals HE - (1,280) - - (1,280)
Exchange differences fEHZER (408) 11,088 145,410 - 156,090
At December 31, 2020 and R-Z-ZE+-A=t-HK
January 1, 2021 —E--%-f-H 111,657 439,123 2,320,486 109,137 2,980,403
Additions NE 3,743 4,527 - - 8,270
Exchange differences ERERE 10,131 10,637 62,102 - 82,870
At December 31, 2021 R-B--5+-A=1+-H 125,531 454,287 2,382,588 109,137 3,071,543
Accumulated depreciation 2T E
At January 1, 2020 R-E-ZE5-f-H 84,487 320,110 423,557 18,190 846,344
Charge for the year ERHE 23,216 48,284 268,750 21,827 362,077
Disposals & - (707) - - (707)
Exchange differences EREE (1,022) 9,908 20,247 - 29,133
At December 31, 2020 and RIBZZF+ZA=1t-HK
January 1, 2021 —E--%-f-H 106,681 377,595 712,554 40,017 1,236,847
Charge for the year FRZL 5,443 32,210 287,642 21,827 347,122
Exchange differences fEHZEH 10,122 9,287 22,774 = 42,183
At December 31, 2021 RZZ--%+-A=t-H 122,246 419,092 1,022,970 61,844 1,626,152
Carrying amount BREE
At December 31, 2021 R-Z--%+-A=t-H 3,285 35,195 1,359,618 47,293 1,445,391
At December 31, 2020 RZE-ZF+-A=+-H 4,976 61,528 1,607,932 69,120 1,743,556
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

17.LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. HEREARERE
Disclosures of lease-related items: THEHEEE ZHE
At December 31, 2021 2020
R+=—HA=+—H —E-—fF —ZT-TF
usbD USD
EYH P
Right-of-use assets — Buildings FRAEEE-ET 1,406,545 1,633,824
Lease commitments of short-term leases 2 HiflE 2 TH & HFIE 8,902 11,063
The maturity analysis, based on BRERMAREREUAEEEE
undiscounted cash flows, of the BEMENIEBITEOT -
Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:
— Less than 1 year — PR1F 434,850 400,122
— Between 1 and 2 years —1E2F 417,557 392,087
— Between 2 and 5 years —2FE54F 1,114,163 1,186,477
— Over 5 years —5F LAk = 281,746
1,966,570 2,260,432
Year ended December 31, 2021 2020
HET-A=1T—HILHFE —E-—fF —ZT-FF
usbD USD
EJH EI

Depreciation charge of

right-of-use assets FRAEEENTERX 328,640 313,095
Lease interests HER L 105,250 114,026
Expenses related to short-term leases 2 HiFE E/ERIFM 10,955 25,055
Total cash outflow for leases BRHENRES R B 424,244 425178
Additions to right-of-use assets (FREEELN 61,552 -

Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to HEWZ —RETRB1EIF - HEKKIZ
9 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and ERIELERE B S ST ERK G - 1
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease B EEINER R - EHEEETSEH
agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased assets EE RS -

may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SOtE S Em R (8)
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
18.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Game
intellectual
properties Computer
and licenses software Total
PR A ERE
R B4 st
UsD uUsD uUsbD
EpH EpH EH
Cost 5%
At January 1, 2020 R-E-_ZEF—H—H 3,463,798 42,176 3,505,974
Additions NE 213,000 5,745 218,745
Exchange differences fERZEE 23,416 3,158 26,574
At December 31, 2020 and R-ZBE-EF+-A=+—-HBK
January 1, 2021 —E-—-%—A—H 3,700,214 51,079 3,751,293
Exchange differences [ H ZEEE 7,838 (229) 7,609
At December 31, 2021 R-B=Z—F+=HA=+—H 3,708,052 50,850 3,758,902
Accumulated amortisation and Rt B RBEREE
impairment losses
At January 1, 2020 R-ZE-ZEF—H—H 1,614,438 28,714 1,643,152
Amortisation for the year N 469,254 7,041 476,295
Impairment B 1,197,113 - 1,197,113
Exchange differences M H ZRE 13,230 2,673 15,903
At December 31, 2020 and R-ZB-_ZF+=-A=+—-HBK
January 1, 2021 —E-_—-%—HF—H 3,294,035 38,428 3,332,463
Amortisation for the year F N 354,727 3,486 358,213
Exchange differences PE 5 =58 5,670 80 5,750
At December 31, 2021 R-ZB-—-F+=-HA=+-—H 3,654,432 41,994 3,696,426
Carrying amount IREE
At December 31, 2021 R-B-—-F+=-A=+—H 53,620 8,856 62,476
At December 31, 2020 RZZEZZF+-_A=+—H 406,179 12,651 418,830
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

19. SUBSIDIARIES 19. B A7)
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group as at December 31, AEER-_ZEZ—FR-_F-TF+_A=+
2021 and 2020 are as follows: —HMNMBARGBENT

Percentage of ownership interest/

Place of voting power/profit sharing
incorporation/ Issued and BHEE:/ REE/
registration and paid up/ FMEIRES L
Name operation registered capital 2021 2020  Principal activities
s/ BEIRES/
£ ERipeESE AR ZBI-F T IERER
Directly owned
ERHA
Digital Hollywood International Limited (‘Hollywood BVI") BVI UsD100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Digital Hollywood International Limited ([ Hollywood BVI]) ZBRUHE 1005 7T 100% 100% REER
Proficient City Limited (‘PCL") BVI/Global USD50,000 - 100%  Operation of web-
based and mobile
games
Proficient City Limited ([PCL]) EERIES/ 50,000%7 - 100% EERERTHEL
eSSk
Proficient City Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Proficient City Hong Kong Limited ik 10,0007 100% 100% REER
Angame Inc. BVI/Malaysia UsD100 100% 100%  Operation of
mobile games
Angame Inc. EERIES/ 10057 100% 100% EEFHBE
SRAS
Indirectly owned
BREs
Game Hollywood Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong/ HKD1 100% 100%  Operation of
Hong Kong, online games
Taiwan and
Vietnam
Game Hollywood Hong Kong Limited 55/ BE 17T 100% 100% EEELEH
GEREH
Now To Play Game Limited Hong Kong/ HKD10,000 100% 100%  Operation of
Overseas web-based games
Now to Play Game Limited &%/ 85 10,0007 100% 100%  2EM@EGE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

19. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. i B A Al ()

Percentage of ownership interest/

Place of voting power/profit sharing
incorporation/ Issued and HERER /ZR/
registration and paid up/ MEARAEDL
Name operation registered capital 2021 2020  Principal activities
KL/ BEIRES )/
S ke HfER ZB--f ZTCTE FEEE
BN EHESREER A (Guangzhou You Lai Information the PRC USD2,000,000 100% 100%  Technical support
Technology Company Limited “Guangzhou You Lai")* services
BMERESRRERAR ([EMER]) HE 2,000,000 7T 100% 100% B RERS
EMEEZEERHBRAT (Guangzhou Zhang Ying Kong the PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Development of
Information Technology Company Limited)* mobile games
ENERAEERRERAT HE AR#1,000,0007C 100% 100% HEFHER
B2 AEREHER AR LT (Guangzhou Suiyue Niandai the PRC RMB1,270,000 100% 100%  Marketing and
Software Technology Company Limited)* technical support
service
BEMTRAFREHRRERAR HE ARH#1,270,0007C 100% 100%  TEEER
B R RS
EREZEEREAERLT (Beijing You Tang Information the PRC RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Technology Company Limited)*
FREEEERRERAR e AR#2,000,0007C 100% 100%  REER
FRERESRRERAE (Beiing You Lai Information the PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Technology Company Limited)*
FREREERRERAR e AR#1,000,0007C 100% 100%  REER

* The English names of certain subsidiaries of the Company referred * EXFRAARETIHERRNAXAEREE
herein represent the management’'s best efforts in translating the BERBHEHZERAMENEXEZE - BR%
Chinese name of these companies as no English names have been ERRWEELEXETE -
registered.

Note: The Company has set up a structured entity, Epic City Limited (“Share M ARARERY —REBMEEEEpPic City
Scheme Trust”), solely for the purpose of administering and holding Limited ([ it 8IE7E]) - EREERER
the Company’s shares for the Share Option Scheme (Note 30), the BEARARRBERESTSHE MRS (M
Company has the power to direct the relevant activities of Share Scheme 30) + AR A HEEETRM T EME TR ERE
Trust and it has the ability to use its power over Share Scheme Trust B WHEHERGOTEETERENUTE
to affect its exposure to returns. Therefore, the assets and liabilities of HRERE®R - Bt - RO EETHNEERE
Share Scheme Trust are included in the Group’s consolidated statement BERIINAEEBNE U BAHREK - WETR
of financial position and the shares it held are presented as a deduction BERGD T A B R BB B RN 25 A
in equity as shares held for the Share Option Scheme. D -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

20.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 20. A& N EINIRE
2021 2020
—E-—F TE-TF
uUsbD usbD
EH ET
Unlisted investment FEWIRE - -
Set out below are the details of the associate of the Group. The AT 5 AR L EE & Qa0 E R o T XA
associate as listed below has share capital consisting solely of ERRIMRAERFEZMRA - HAEMERR
registered capital, which is held directly by the Group. BASEHEERSR -
Details of investment in an associate as at December 31, 2021 and RZBEZ—FR-ZZ_FFF+-_A=+—HR
2020: —RKEE R RN ERE ¢
Place of
business/ % of
country of ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name incorporation interest relationship method
WD FrEREER
£18 EMRLER Bot(%) BEMEE STESE
EREERHEBIRAF (Shanghai Jiying the PRC 20 Note ii and iii Equity

Technology Company Limited, “Shanghai
Jiying”) (Note i)
FEEEMBRERAT ([ LEEE D) () & 20 BfFEEii Kiii =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R R EE ()
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

20.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Notes:

(i) Shanghai Jiying is principally engaged in the production and operation
of virtual reality recreational machines.

(i)  The Group has designated a member in the Board of Directors which

enables the Group to exercise significant influence in Shanghai Jiying

through the participation in operational, investing and financing actions.

Consequently, Shanghai Jiying has been accounted for as an associate.

Shanghai Jiying is a private company engaged in the game operation
and there is no quoted market price available for its equity.
(iii)  There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the
associate.
(iv) During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group assessed the
performance of Shanghai Jiying and considered the related investment
to be irrecoverable and therefore, the entire amount of the investment
in associate was fully provided for. There was no movement for the
impairment for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

20. A E NN E )

() LEEEXBRFERERREBEBNOEERE
78 o

AEEEREREGER—EKE  RAKEA
FERSELE  RARBETHN LEEET
BERFES - At LEEBEIIE—
BRANE

(i)

LEERA—RUEFEREENLERR K

BESRAEERBERARNBRENNAE

fa e

(iii)

ROE-F-NF+-A=T—ALEE &
EEFE DTRBORE - TRAEWRENR
TAKRE - BRRBERTN2BEESHE
SUERERE  RBE-F-—FR-F=
FEHAST—AILEE RELRED -

(iv)

21.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21.#BAAREBEFEBEZFHTA
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htt2HKENEemEE
INCOME
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTHF
usbD usbD
E3 ET
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Equity securities, at fair value BARFES  BRAREE
Listed in Hong Kong EBEBELET
— FingerTango Inc. — BRI EIERBR AR 372,069 1,164,245

The Group acquired approximately 0.6% of common stocks of
FingerTango Inc., a company listed in Hong Kong which is principally
engaged in the development, operation and publishing mobile game
business in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EZ EWRIE

2021 2020

—E-—F TR TE

usbD usD

Ep e

Trade receivables E 5 WA 3,199,502 4,812,624

Less: allowance for impairment B RER (2,167,044) (3,530,020)
Carrying amount BRHEE 1,032,458 1,282,604

B 5 REWRIER B A8E IR B MR R
online game business. The credit terms of trade receivables granted B RBTIFERE=ZFNFREHETNES
to the Platforms and third party payment vendors are usually 0 to ERFBEERBENAA0E120HB K0E
120 days and 0 to 30 days, respectively. 30H -

Trade receivables are arising from the development and operation of

2 HRWFIAEN R R A A MREH 2

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date, and

net of allowance, is as follows: BRERDITIAT -

2021 2020

—E-—fF —T-FTF

usb USD

EYH e

0-30 days 0£30H 441,995 490,539
31-90 days 31£90H 425,590 365,583
91-180 days 91%180H 115,498 295,680
Over 180 days HiB180H 49,375 130,802
1,032,458 1,282,604

BREPEEFRAR —T

— R @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R R EE ()
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (cContinued)

Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables:

22. EZEWFRIE )

E 5 RYGRIRR B R BB R -

2021 2020
—E-—F TE-TF

uUsbD usbD

EH ET
At January 1 ®n—A—H 3,530,020 2,946,572
Increase in loss allowance for the year £ (A /E518 B &1 A1 531,515 513,351
Amounts written off as uncollectible 7 BT Y [e] T i 85 ) 2 BB - (20,567)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—XWEBAA (1,932,985) -
Exchange difference X Z5E 38,494 90,664
At December 31 Rt+=—A=+—H 2,167,044 3,530,020

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables, which is calculated using a provision matrix
(including the use of internal and external data sources) where a
fixed provision rate applies depending on the shared credit risk
characteristics of the trade receivables.

In assessing the shared credit risk characteristics of the trade
receivables, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at December 31, 2021 and
2020 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

22. E5 ERIRFIE )

BUEE RZT-_—FRZT-_TF+=A
Tt HnEZERURFEET A THEER

f
Category 1* Category 2* Category 3* Category 4* Total
B8 |t B=g EmE* st
Expected loss rate TEHESIE X 5% 30% 50% 100%
R-Z——-%
Loss allowance as at +ZA=+—H8K
December 31, 2021 (USD) HERE (E7) 53,464 7,047 203 2,106,330 2,167,044
R-ZZB_THF
Loss allowance as at +ZRA=+—HM
December 31, 2020 (USD) EERE (1) 66,366 10,870 4,676 3,448,108 3,530,020

The Group’s loss allowance categories of trade receivables are as

follows:

Category 1 — Highest grade, lowest credit risk

Category 2 — Medium grade, low credit risk

Category 3 — Poor standing, high credit risk

Category 4 — High likelihood of default, very high credit risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

* AEEE S RUEFIRNBREFRINT

F—H - BaRH  KEEERR

FEF — R KEERR

F=F - B REEAR

FIE - SEQTREN - ERENEERR

AEENE S REFANEREDIATIIER

denominated in the following currencies: FHE -

2021 2020

=B —F —ECTHF

usbD uUsD

ES ET

uUsD e 922,402 958,821
RMB AR 79,302 284,534
HKD BT 30,754 39,249
1,032,458 1,282,604
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
OIS RN ()

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

23.CONTRACT COSTS AND LIABILITIES 23. 8RR AERBE
Disclosures of revenue-related items: WAMERETEE 2 -
At December 31, 2021 2020
R+=—A=+—~8 —E—F —TTHF
uUsbD UsD
EpH e
Contract costs — unamortised BHIRA — BETE S EN
commission cost charged by REEHESRA
distribution platforms 803,382 616,740
At December 31, December 31, January 1,
2021 2020 2020
B —g-—& -T-TF  -T-TF
+=-BA=+-—-8 +=—A=+—H —A—H
UsD UsSD USsSD
EpH EM e
Contract liabilities — unamortised AHBE - HEANRBEE
revenue from sales of Game Tokens P SANE R S Aok
and virtual items for web-based REFEBE D RETEH
games and mobile games REETH A 1,918,625 1,765,490 2,850,210
Contract liabilities — AHEE — FEAREE
royalty fees received in advance hix e 28 299,646 413,307 377,380
Contract liabilities — unamortised AHBE - BAN
balance of the initial license fee R4 - 270,000 280,417
Total contract liabilities aHaEEE 2,218,271 2,448,797 3,508,007
Contract receivables A EWEIE
(included in trade receivables) (G AR ZEWFIE) 1,032,458 1,282,604 2,234,622
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

SOt R M (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

23.CONTRACT COSTS AND LIABILITIES 23.84BARER «

(Continued)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTHF
usD usD
E3 ET
Transaction prices allocated to AHREFREHRBETHBEHNEEL
performance obligations unsatisfied BEHREE+—A=T—HIFE
at the end of the year and expected BRABWARNR ZER :
to be recognised as revenue in the
year ended December 31,:
- 2021 —ZF=—fF N/A 2,448,797
- 2022 S S 2,218,271 -
2,218,271 2,448,797
Year ended December 31, 2021 2020
HE+-A=+t—HIEE —E-—F T
uUsD usD
EH ET
Revenue recognised in the year that RERNERLNEFEVIFTAGLEBEHRA
was included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year 1,808,198 2,867,788
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
23.CONTRACT COSTS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)

23. R AREE @

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: FRENBENERNET :

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECTHF

uUsbD uUsD

E3 ET

Increase due to operations in the year A& ML N 1,931,602 1,808,578
Decrease due to disposal of a subsidiary & & &} B 2 7k 2 (83,930) -
Decrease due to reclassification HAE oD Emm L (270,000) -
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue A#EBEEEZRA (1,808,198) (2,867,788)

A contract liability primarily consists of the unamortised revenue
from sales of Game Tokens and virtual items for web-based games
and mobile games, where there is still an implied obligation to be
fulfilled by the Group over time.

Costs to obtain contracts, mainly related to contract acquisition
costs, which primarily consist of unamortised commissions cost
charged by distribution platforms are capitalised as contract costs
and amortised over the Player Relationship Period because the
Group expects to recover these costs. Capitalised contract costs are
amortised to profit or loss when the related revenue is recognised.

Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited Annual Report 2021

BHABTIEERREEERRER LT
BB T B B R B R PR S O R EE SRR
EPAEEDERENELAETRET

ERANNKATRASOWBKRAERE - M
BETZBENHTEMEIBAREHBS -
MARMAER IR ERANET A N
8 ARAREEEIWEZERA - DEAR
LB HORARERRBRARFERS T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R (4)
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

2APREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 24 FENRRHEMEKRE
RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
=B —F ZECTF
usbD uUsD
E3 ET
Included in non-current assets SFAERBEE
Prepayment for equity investments (Note i) A% A% & T8 {7 (Bt 5Ei) 3,550,000 3,550,000
Prepayment for game development PERIFAETEN R 83,920 98,540
Deposits e 66,724 65,851
3,700,644 3,714,391
Included in current assets FARBEE
Receivables relating to payment channels BB R E N YRR (K ETiii)

(Note iii) 3,334,054 7,427,108
Prepaid royalty fees (Note ii) TETHRAEE (B Eii) 6,166,941 6,185,258
Prepaid advertising charges ENESER 159,316 51,934
Prepaid server rental expenses AR RREBHERZ 32,406 14,590
Deposits Be - 2,911
Others Eib 704,873 101,890

10,397,590 13,783,691
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
Bt R R M ()
For the year ended December 31,2021 HEZ T -_—F+_A=+—HIFE

24 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Prepayment of USD50,000 was for the right to equity purchase of
certain shares of a company engaged in game operation.

On April 20, 2018, Hollywood BVI made a prepayment to purchase the
shares to be issued by Nouveau Capital Partners Corp. (“Nouveau”),
which was established with limited liability in accordance with the laws
of BVI, and it is principally engaged in investment holding, at a total
consideration of USD3,500,000. As at the date of this report, to the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, Nouveau held approximately 16.27%
of the issued share capital in Bright Idea Life Company Limited (78A
HETERRMD AR AR, “Bright Idea Life”). Bright Idea Life is a company
established with limited liability in accordance with the laws of Taiwan
district, which is principally engaged in the provision of cultural and
art promotion services via multimedia, animation, games and virtual
reality technologies. The right to purchase of the shares will be
effective when the Investment Commission in Taiwan approves this
transaction. Pursuant to the arrangements, Hollywood BVI has the
right to require Nouveau to refund all the initial aggregate principal
amount of USD3,500,000 in the condition that the conversion cannot be
executed due to relevant approval cannot be obtained from Investment
Commission in Taiwan.

(ii) As at December 31, 2021, prepaid royalty fees mainly represent the
prepayments of approximately USD6,167,000 (2020: USD6,185,000) to
certain game developers. During the year ended December 31, 2021,
no impairment was made. Impairment totalling USD91,699 was made
for certain prepaid royalty fees and license fees as the corresponding
games were taken offline during the year ended December 31, 2020.

(iii)  Receivables relating to payment channels mainly represent the balances
in PayPal and Skrill (formerly Moneybookers), for cash collection from
game players for games operated on the Group’s websites.

(iv) Impairment on other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a deposit
or receivable has occurred since initial recognition, the impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit losses. Based on the Group’s
assessment on other receivables, impairment provision of USD95,949
was made as at December 31, 2021 (2020: USD96,759).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R (4)
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

25.SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND BANK
AND CASH BALANCES

The effective interest rate for the short-term deposits with original
maturity dates over three months as at December 31, 2021 was
0.51% (2020: 0.45%).

The bank and cash balances and short-term deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

25. B R RBITRRSER

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HRIPEBE=
EAMEHEFRNERNER0.51% (2=
T 0.45%) °

RIT R EHRLEHFERIIAT I E
18

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTHF

usbD usD

E3 ET

usD X 4,705,249 9,005,958
RMB ARY 6,235,322 1,032,341
HKD BT 18,361,841 18,697,015
EUR BT 3,378,642 3,179,087
32,681,054 31,914,401

The conversion of USD denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC amounted to
USD10,222,626 (2020:USD7,189,017) are subject to relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

IAETTHER &I E A INE BB % F LA SN
BSHEM A£2010,222,626 T (— T - T4F ¢
7,189,017 70) B IRTT 4 £ IR & (& [ R
+ JE38 ST P B BU A8 45 B9 4B RE HME B Il 3R Bl
KRB o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. 5 EHRIE
The aging analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as B S RENREREERAMNRES AT
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F TE-TF
usb usb
EH ET
0-90 days 0£290H 511,790 573,828
91-180 days 91%180H 393,120 602,035
181-360 days 1812360 H 652,821 1,179,648
Over 360 days #E3i8360H 231,246 1,510,744
1,788,977 3,866,255
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are NEFEKE S EMNFTBEBNETEIA TG
denominated in the following currencies: ERERE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
usbD usb
EYH ET
usD Ev 1,570,977 3,737,235
RMB AR 218,000 129,020
1,788,977 3,866,255
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
27.ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

27. BT ERA R EA BN RE

2021 2020

B —F ZETF

usbD uUsD

E3 ET

Other tax payables HAh e TIR 173,483 194,094
Salary and staff welfare payables Eft#HekEIEHN 1,306,755 1,200,743
Accrued professional service fees A EERBE 310,137 524,651
Advertising payables ENESE 187,618 215,784
Rent payable EAEe 187,256 178,763
Other payables (Note) b T 8 () 2,014,886 -
Others Hib 621,643 407,387
4,801,778 2,721,422

Note: During the year, the Group disposed a subsidiary to a third party, the

amount due to the disposed subsidiary was transferred to other payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

SO B R R EE ()
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. fHE&GE
Present value
Lease payments of lease payments
HEMR HEMRNRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E--F —ZT-TF ZB--F CZIT-ITF
usD usD usD usb
EY ET EY T
Within one year —FR 434,850 400,122 344,469 295,702
Over one year but within five years —FUEERFRA 1,531,720 1,578,564 1,375,978 1,347,329
Over five years HEFEUE - 281,746 - 275,716
1,966,570 2,260,432 1,720,447 1,918,747
Less: Future finance charge B RREA TSR (246,123)  (341,685)
Present value of lease liabilities HEREBEMRE 1,720,447 1,918,747
Less: Amount due for settlement within B R2EANFBEENEE
12 months (shown under current (ERBEEETIITR)
liabilities) (344,469)  (295,702)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months A 1218 A% EIEIEE NS5 1,375,978 1,623,045
As at December 31, 2021, the average effective borrowing rate R-E-—F+-_A=+—H FHEREE

was 5.47% (2020: 5.67%) per annum. Interest rates are fixed at the
contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate

risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

29.DEFERRED TAX 29, IEFERIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets LWTAREEBRAZETEREEHIBEARERE
recognised by the Group: E
Contract Contract Tax
costs liabilities losses Total
BHRA BHER BEER st
usb usD usD usD
EY E E E
At January 1, 2020 R-ZZE-Z£—-A—A (5,757) 11,779 - 6,022
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss (Note 11) Bzt A/ (F0%) (HEE11) 5,817 (11,902) - (6,085)
Exchange differences fE N Z5E (60) 123 - 63
At December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021 R-Z-_TF+-_A=+—HK
—T=—§—A—H = - - -
Credit to profit or loss (Note 11) st AR (FFEE11) - - 99,094 99,094
At December 31, 2021 R-B=-F+=H=+-—H - - 99,094 99,094

Deferred income tax liabilities of USD525,000 (2020: USD586,000)
as at December 31, 2021 have not been recognised for the
WHT and other taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries established in the PRC. Such
amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted earnings totalled
USD10,505,000 (2020: USD11,726,000) as at December 31, 2021.

As of December 31, 2021, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of USD1,640,000 (2020: USD998,000), in respect
of deductible temporary differences and cumulative tax losses
amounting to USD11,991,000 (2020: USD6,989,000) in total, as
it is uncertain that future taxable income will be available in those
subsidiaries against which the tax losses can be utilised. Of the
tax losses amounting to USD7,908,000, tax losses amounting
to USD16,000, USD6,000, USD1,756,000, USD2,928,000 and
USD795,000 will expire in 2022, 2023, 2024, 2025 and 2026,
respectively. The remaining tax losses amounting to USD2,407,000
have no expiry date.

MN-ZB-—F+-_A=+—R0 YERETHE
AR A ST B BT /BB A B A AR BB 1 28 I FE A /9 FE 30
il H A A5 B R RIE A AT S T & 5525,000 3%
TT(ZZ-Z4 :586,000%7T) - BEEHED
FEXABERE R-Z-_—F+_-_A=+—
H &Y RIE H ZE 74 $£7510,505,000% T (= F
— T4 11,726,000 T) ©

R-ZE-——F+-_A=+—8 AE@ELE
AR R ERE RS 2£11,991,000F ¢
—ZE-FF :6,989,000E0) M EERBE
EIERIEERTEEE1,640,000% L (=%
T4 998,000 L) HARUTEEZE
B 8 X B 78 AR 2R I BR A0 v A SR 5 PR B IS s 48
F AR o FE$ 58 /47,908,0003 TR 75 S
B W EE16,000% T * 6,000 T *
1,756,0003 7T * 2,928,000 7T & 795,000
TEARIR T —F —_FT=_=F - ZT=
WE - ZTE_RAFR T RFEH B TH
7% E182,407,000 = TWEFIHF A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R R EE ()
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

30.SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES HELD 30.BAR#MEBRESZAZEENR

FOR THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME il
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZER™AE &8
usbD
Ey
Authorised: VETE
Ordinary shares of USD0.001 SREE(E0.0013E T
(2020: USDO0.001) each (ZZE=Z4F : 0.001FL) K
gl
At January 1, 2020, December 31, 2020, R=—ZT_THF—-HF—H-
January 1, 2021 and December 31, 2021 —E_EHF+-A=+—8 "
—E-—fF-HF—-HR
—E-—-H+=-HA=+—H 4,000,000,000 4,000,000
As at December 31, 2021, the total number of issued ordinary R—E-—_—F+=-A=+—8" ZK"ﬂE%éfﬁ
shares of the Company was 2,000,000,000 shares (2020: ERRESATREEMET(ZE-E
2,000,000,000 shares) with par value of USD0.001 per share (2020: F : FRXEE0.001%7T) 192,000,000,000 1%
USDO0.001 per share) which included 138,978,123 shares (2020: —Z=F 4 :2,000,000,0000%) * BIERHE
144,224,041 shares) held under the share incentive scheme. They Bl A 19138,978,123 Kk h (=&
have been fully paid up. ZTF 0 144,224,04118) - ZERHBEHR
A summary of the Company’ s share capital and shares held for the RARKRA R ERET A ORDME
Share Option Scheme are as follows: wmr
Shares held
Number of for the Share
shares in issue Share capital Option Scheme
IR ESE
2RITROEE IR BENRS
usbD usbD
E3 E3
(Note)
(=)
At December 31, 2021 R=-—ZT=-—F+=-HA=+—H 2,000,000,000 2,000,000 (138,978)
At December 31, 2020 RZZE-TF+=-A=+—H 2,000,000,000 2,000,000 (144,224)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R (4)
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

30.SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES HELD
FOR THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(Continued)

Note: According to the written resolutions of all the members of the Company
dated November 2, 2015 and capitalisation issue dated November 24,
2017, an aggregate of 150,000,000 ordinary shares were authorised
and reserved for the issuance to the employees, directors of the Group
and other persons pursuant to the share incentive scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) adopted by the Company.

The Company has appointed Core Trust Company Limited as the trustee
to assist with the administration and vesting of options granted pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme. On May 27, 2017, the Company allotted
and issued shares to Share Scheme Trust, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Core Trust Company Limited, which are or will be used to satisfy the
options upon exercise. The shares held by Share Scheme Trust are
presented as a deduction in equity as shares held for the Share Option

Scheme.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Share Scheme Trust
transferred 5,245,918 ordinary shares of the Company (2020: the Share
Scheme Trust transferred 3,335,966 ordinary shares of the Company) to

the grantees exercising of the awarded shares.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for stakeholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital (including share capital and capital
reserves) by regularly reviewing the capital structure. As a part
of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group’s capital risk is low.

30. AR BBRETEFEHR

7 )

M BERHRA—Z-—RF+—A-RARFTERE
BRENEMRERLERA-ZT—LF+—A
BB R(LETT - 5#£150,000,000 %
TmAk B R R RE AREBEA R R RANR
7 %R a8 ([T 8 ]) BT T ASES
BE  -EEREMAL -

NAFIE Z{ICore Trust Company Limited
EAZTEANRBER KRB BEIREBRET
FELMERE R-T—tFRA=-++
H  ARFBE MM EIEFE (Core Trust
Company Limited®) 2 & ME R F)) B K2
TR + FALASIHG A LA 2 BB AR I 1T (B BS A
FE - RO FTENS R A RN AR B ERT
EIHBORN 23 AEZRD -

REBEE-_ZT-_—F+-A=+—ALEFE K
DET B RITEEERRONARAE
#5,245 918 ARFEBR (T T F :
Betn st BMEFEE #5352 3,335,966 IR A A 7] & 3
%) o

AEEERERN B BRRENEEEERSE
M) o M AR HEE R REMH
SAAEERENE A RESRENELERE
VURE B AR A

AEEBEBEMRANEAGBUERESN (8
ERAREAGER) - FRERRH—E
BEARER  ARESSHEARFRN KSR
S8 ABRREREEAS BTHBEOHIHEEE
ERREER - EERR - AEENERRR
1® -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
OIS RN ()

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

31.RESERVES

31. %%
(a) The Group (a) x&KH
Foreign
Share-based currency
Share payments Statutory  translation Other
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
NRBAER
ROEE  HHRREE AR EBRERE Hit R E
usD UsD usD usb usb usb
Eys EY s £y i1 By N
At January 1, 2020 RZE-F5-A-H 35,893,900 4,538,203 945,312 (934,257) (2,338,754) 38,104,404
Changes in fair value of financial BARBESEAEEGHA
assets at fair value through other B2 ENENSHEEN
comprehensive income NrEERY - - - - 201,060 201,060
Share-based payments (Note 33) IR BEBER ! (F13E33) - 652,680 - - - 652,680
Exercise of share options fIfeERE 401,651 (389,583) - - - 12,068
Currency translation difference ERBEET - - - 599,596 - 599,506
At December 31, 2020 RZEZFFTZA=1-H 36,295,551 4,801,300 945,312 (334,661) (2,137,694) 39,569,808
At January 1, 2021 R-E--%-f-A 36205551 4801300 045312 (334661)  (2137,694) 39,569,808
Changes in fair value of financial BAREBEHEEEEGHA
assets at far value through other B2 ENENSREREN
comprehensive income RrEEEY - - - - (792,176) (792,176)
Share-based payments (Note 33) AR BER R (HEE33) - 67,362 - - - 67,362
Exercise of share options fIfbrE e 629,411 (624,829) - = = 4,582
Currency translation difference EEBEER - - - 171,046 - 171,046
At December 31, 2021 RoB--E+-BS+-8 36924962 4,243,833 045312 (163,615)  (2929,870) 39,020,622
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

31.RESERVES (Continued) 31. ﬁﬁ(fé)
(b) The Company (b) &AF
Shares held Equity
for the Share-based  investments
Share Option Share payments  revaluation Accumulated
Scheme premium reserve reserves losses Total
HEREE NRBARER Rakg
BENRS ROGE  WARRE EfRE 2itHR #it
usD usD usD usp usp usp
En EYr in i1 By i
At January 1, 2020 RZE-Z%5-A-A (147,560) 35,893,900 4,538,203 (1596,422)  (2,893,832) 35,794,289
Total comprehensive income/ ERRERE/(RY) 48
(expense) for the year - - - 201,060 (209,840) (8,780)
Share-based payments (Note 33) DA BEA R (333) - - 652,680 - - 652,680
Exercise of share options fIfeERE 3,336 401,651 (389,583) - - 15,404
At December 31, 2020 RZBZFFTZA=1T-H (144,224) 36,295,551 4,801,300 (1,395,362)  (3,103,672) 36,453,593
At January 1, 2021 RZF=-5-A-A (144,224) 36,295,551 4,801,300 (1,395,362)  (3,103,672) 36,453,593
Total comprehensive FR2ARY S
expense for the year - - - (792,176) (707,464)  (1,499,640)
Share-based payments (Note 33) ARG BRI (333) - - 67,362 - - 67,362
Exercise of share options TibiERE 5,246 629,411 (624,829) - = 9,828
At December 31, 2021 R=B=-5+ZA=t-A (138,978) 36,924,962 4,243,833 (2,187,538)  (3,811,136) 35,031,143
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R R EE ()
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

31.RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the
Group and the Company

(i) Shares held for the Share Option Scheme
The consideration paid by Share Scheme Trust (Note 30)
for acquiring the Company’s shares, including any directly
attributable incremental cost, is presented as “Shares
held for the Share Option Scheme” and the amount is
deducted from total equity.

When Share Scheme Trust transfers the Company’s
shares to the awardees upon vesting, the related costs
of the awarded shares vested are credited to “Shares
held for the Share Option Scheme”, with a corresponding
adjustment made to “Share premium”.

(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

(iii) Share-based payments reserve
The share-based payments reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in Note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
31.RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the
Group and the Company (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and the Articles of Association of subsidiaries
located in the PRC, it is required to appropriate 10% of
the annual statutory net profits after offsetting any prior
years’ losses as determined under the PRC accounting
standards, to the statutory surplus reserve fund before
distributing the net profit. When the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve fund reaches 50% of the share
capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion of
shareholders. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to offset prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by issuing new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholding
or by increasing the par value of the shares currently
held by them, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory surplus reserve fund after such issue is no less
than 25% of share capital.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Equity investments revaluation reserve

The equity investments revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R R EE ()
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

32.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32. KA RMEB KM E
OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
=B —F ZECTF
usbD UsD
EPH e
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBENEBEZESH:A
other comprehensive income HtermbimnemEE 372,069 1,164,245
Investments in subsidiaries RETBARMEE 455,449 455,449
Prepayments SEEREN 50,000 50,000
877,518 1,669,694
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE Uk B BB A R 3R TE 28,274,144 28,069,553
Prepayments and other receivables TE A R R H At FE R IE 66,056 56,229
Bank and cash balances IRITRR S E5% 17,263,777 17,696,213
45,603,977 45,821,995
TOTAL ASSETS HMEE 46,481,495 47,491,689
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Equity e
Share capital A& A< 2,000,000 2,000,000
Reserves s 35,031,143 36,453,593
Total equity MR 37,031,143 38,453,593
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAT BT B8 A B Rk IA 9,146,433 8,900,553
Accruals and other payables FEEH 8 R I Hth FE 5 RROE 303,919 137,543
Total liabilities weE 9,450,352 9,038,096
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES HEZNEE 46,481,495 47,491,689
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
SO B R (4)
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE

33.5HARE-BASED PAYMENTS 33LURGAEBRNIRRS
TRANSACTIONS

On February 15, 2018, 21,419,696 and 28,078,914 shares options RZZE—NF=-A+HH ©21,419,6961 &
were granted under the Share Option Scheme, with exercise price 28,078,914 17 B AR 4 5 BIAR % BE AR A 1 2135
of HKD0.0074 and USDO0.0074 per share, respectively. The vesting i ITEE S B AEAR0.0074 7% T £20.0074
period of the share options granted is three years and the vesting ET o IREBRENGSBESRA=F  MHEE
schedule is 33.33% after 12 months from the grant date, 33.33% BEAREE HHR12(8 A% 58E33.33% -
after 24 months from the grant date, and 33.34% after 36 months R BEIE24 8 A 1258 33.33% + RARE
from the grant date respectively. i HEA#E36 18 A 14 578 33.34%

The directors have used the Binomial option-pricing model to SECFEAIEX T ERIRE T BRE
determine the fair value of the share options as at the grant date. RELHBHNARBE EFAUZEBHHEK
Key assumptions, such as risk-free interest rate, expected volatility ErERRAE - BHEEREERSEER
and dividend yield, are required to be determined by the directors oo EERFE - FEARREIE R EE S BIFE
with best estimates. The risk-free interest rate, expected volatility %2.65% * 54.58% % 0% °

and dividend yield were assessed to be 2.65%, 54.58% and 0%,
respectively.

Movements of the number of share options outstanding and their BARITR AR I ) B B B R % F R AR Y AR
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BN TIEITEENT
2021 2020
“E--f k-
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise shares exercise shares
price per under price per under
share option the option share option the option

BhEkE BREAT BhERE BT
THTEE BH&A FHTRE B BE

usb usb
in e
At January 1 »“—A—H 0.0047 36,428,295 0.0047 39,977,019
Forfeited during the year FRRY - - 0.0074 (212,758)
Exercised during the year ERiTE 0.0019 (5,245,918) 0.0046 (3,335,966)
At December 31 W+ZA=1+—H 0.0052 31,182,377 0.0047 36,428,295
Vested and exercisable at December 31 RTZA=+—-BERBRATE 0.0052 31,182,377 0.0047 22,357,406
The Group recognised an expense of USD67,362 (2020: AEEREE-_ZE-_—F+_A=1+—HIF
USD652,680) for the year ended December 31, 2021 in relation to ERARAREAOBRERRRX67,362%
share options granted by the Company. TL(ZZF=ZF : 652,680%7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SO B R R EE ()
For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 4. HEMBE AR
On January 6, 2021, the Group disposed its entire equity interests RZZEZ—F—ARA  AKEEURESKE
in its subsidiary, PCL, at a cash consideration of USD1 to an 1ETM—2BLE=HHEENBARPCL
independent third party. B 2 HRARAE -
Net assets of PCL at the date of disposal were as follows: PEEHHNPCLEEFEI T ¢
USD
e
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H e WOk IE 2,029,678
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS AR 472,007
Trade payables B SRR HIE (2,322,360)
Contract liabilities aHEE (83,930)
Accruals and other payables FEETE A K E A E T 58 (574,855)
Net liabilities disposed of HEMNAEFE (479,460)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR R E 479,461
Total consideration — other receivable from a third party 4R B — FEUE = B9 H b e 708 1
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEMRESMLIFRE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HENRERREEED (472,007)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
AORTB MK T (H)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 HZ =&~ —

FH—A=+—RIFE

35.CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 35 ®EETBELXNAEES

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising

TRINFFARNREEHEENAEEEEY

from financing activities during the year: g :
Lease liabilities
HEAE
uUsD
ET
At January 1, 2020 RZZT_ZFEF—H—H 2,070,995
Changes in cash flows ReREg (292,297)
Non-cash changes IR EH
— Exchange differences —[EHEFE 140,049
At December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021 RZZBZEF+ZA=+—AHK
—E--%—-A—H 1,918,747
Changes in cash flows RenRes (308,039)
Non-cash changes JEIE & E )
— Additions — 1&h0 61,552
— Exchange differences —EBNERE 48,187
At December 31, 2021 RZE-—F+=-A=+—H 1,720,447

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

36. RARAEE

The Group is currently involved in a lawsuit of a series of intellectual
property licensing agreements against Shenzhen Qianhai Huanjing
Network Technology Co., Ltd. (FIITADELERERIEERAA),
a company established in the PRC on July 12, 2015 and a fellow
subsidiary of 7Road Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. The outcome of this legal proceeding is
undeterminable at the moment. The directors do not expect that the
outcome of this legal proceeding will have a material adverse effect
on the Group’s financial position or results of operations.

REBRE L Rt EIRIITANE LB R RS
BERAR (RZZE—AFEA+-BEFEX
SUHRE]  RBEEREERER QR R FH

JBRR]) H)— B E R AR -
ULIER AR BRI R A EE - EETRHILIA
AT EUAEENP IR G EREEL
BEARTHMZE -

BHREBHEEERAT

—E—FFH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B OB R M EE (&)

For the year ended December 31,2021 H#EZ—Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILtFE
37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management personnel compensations
The compensations paid or payable to key management
personnel (including directors and CEO) for employee services
are as follows:

37.

BB SRS

(a) BEREEIREASOEHM
HEESRGENHENHAREEEAR
(RREERERNTE) OIS0
™

2021 2020

—E-—F TE-TF

usbD UsD

ESH e

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE&  HFakiesa 210,355 201,092

Pension costs — defined contribution plans &EZ& KA — FE T2 10,698 833
Other social security costs, housing Hib it RERA - FEEF &

benefits and other employee benefits EtiEBET 8,959 7,933

230,012 209,858

(b) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group does not have any material related party
transaction for both years.

38.EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On January 20, 2022, Guangzhou You Lai (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an investment cooperation
agreement with Guangzhou Red Circle Information Technology
Company Limited (BEMALE{E ERHZABR AR, the “JV Partner”),
pursuant to which Guangzhou You Lai and the JV Partner have
agreed to establish a project company in the PRC for an investment
project which consists of proposed properties acquisition by way of
bidding at the public auction and potential subsequent operational
management of the target properties in case of successful bidding.

39.APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on March 28, 2022.
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38.

39.

(b) BattMBmREMAOBESEN - K
5 B W 8 4F 2 19 S AR T B KRR BEE 05 &2
5 o

BEHREE

RZEZZF—A=Z+H  BMEHK(EKAA
WEEZEAMBAR) BEMALBEERERE
BRAR([EERBEDITIRESERZ &
I ENERES SR M EREERBIK I IE
BREIA#ITIRETEE - HPREEARBE
IR TAV RIS - AR — BB
MEHBZEEETNETREEEERE -

SO B RR A&

AHFBBREERN - E-_—_F=-A_-1+/\BHE
B EMRET)E -
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